

# **Table of Contents**

GENERAL INFORMATION	3
SCHEDULE	5
GENERAL RULES	9
JUNIOR SHOW RULES	21
ANIMAL HEALTH REGULATIONS	26
SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAMS	29
SHOW SCHOLARSHIP & INCENTIVES	30
CALF SCRAMBLE	32
LIVESTOCK PREMIUM SALE	35
JUNIOR MARKET STEER SHOW	37
JUNIOR MARKET BARROW SHOW	41
JUNIOR MARKET LAMB SHOW	47
JUNIOR MARKET GOAT SHOW	51
JUNIOR RABBIT SHOW	54
GENERAL HEIFER SHOW	56
JUNIOR ANGUS HEIFER SHOW	58
JUNIOR AMERICAN REGISTERED BREEDS HEIFER SHOW	60
JUNIOR BEEFMASTER HEIFER SHOW	62
JUNIOR BRANGUS HEIFER SHOW	63
JUNIOR CHIANINA HEIFER SHOW	64
JUNIOR HEREFORD HEIFER SHOW	65
JUNIOR LIMOUSIN HEIFER SHOW	66
JUNIOR MAIN ANJOU HEIFER SHOW	67
JUNIOR OTHER REGISTERED BREEDS HEIFER SHOW	68
JUNIOR RED ANGUS HEIFER SHOW	70
JUNIOR SANTA GERTRUDIS BREEDING SHOW	72
JUNIOR SHORTHORN HEIFER SHOW	
JUNIOR SIMMENTAL HEIFER SHOW	74
JUNIOR ALL BREED HEIFER FUTURITY	75
JUNIOR BREEDING GILT SHOW	76
JUNIOR STARS GILT SHOW	78
JUNIOR STARS GILT SALE	82

JUNIOR EWE LAMB FUTURITY SHOW	84
JUNIOR BREEDING SHEEP SHOW	86
JUNIOR TEXAS STARS WETHER DAM SHOW	90
JUNIOR TEXAS STARS WETHER DAM SALE	93
JUNIOR ANGORA WETHER GOAT FUTURITY	94
JUNIOR ANGORA GOAT SHOW	96
JUNIOR TEXAS STARS WETHER DOE SHOW	98
TEXAS STARS WETHER DOE SALE	101
JUNIOR BOER GOAT SHOW	103
JUNIOR WOOL & MOHAIR FLEECE SHOW	106
AGRICULTURAL MECHANICS PROJECT SHOW	108
AGRICULTURAL PUBLIC SPEAKING CONTEST	113
JUNIOR ROBOTICS ARENA COMPETITION	115
JUNIOR ROBOTICS INVENTIONS COMPETITION	117
JUNIOR FOOD CHALLENGE	119
LIVESTOCK JUDGING CONTEST	122
WOOL JUDGING CONTEST	123
WILDLIFE JUDGING CONTEST	124
MEAT JUDGING CONTEST	125
CONSUMER DECISION MAKING CONTEST	126
YOUTH MINIATURE HEREFORD SHOW	
OPEN MINIATURE HEREFORD SHOW	129
TLBAA YOUTH TEXAS LONGHORN SHOW	131
TLBAA WORLD QUALIFYING HALTERED TEXAS LONGHORN SHOW	134
OPEN BREEDING SHEEP SHOW	
OPEN BOER GOAT SHOW	141
OPEN I LAMA SHOW	1.4.4

## **GENERAL INFORMATION**

Mailing Address:

San Angelo Stock Show & Rodeo Association

200 West 43rd Street

San Angelo, Texas 76903

**Grounds Physical Address:** 

4722 Grape Creek Road

San Angelo, Texas 76903

Telephone Number: (325)653-7785 Fax Number: (325)653-3270

Website: <u>www.sanangelorodeo.com</u>

E-mail: <u>brittni@sanangelorodeo.com; macy@sanangelorodeo.com</u>

#### **EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE**

Larry Garvin, President Mike Boyd, Vice President

Doran Reynolds, Treasurer Clif Caldwell, Secretary

Brad Fly, Comptroller

#### **BOARD OF DIRECTORS**

Casey Barrett	Jimmy Barton	Jimmy Belcher	Mike Boyd
Cliff Caldwell	Joann Carr	Kevin Collins	Brad Fly
Larry Garvin	Marcus Herrera	Lane Hughes	Ladd Hughes
Brenda Kellermeier	Raliegh Little	Raymond Meza	Derek Morrison
Gray Mundell	Corey Owens	Doran Reynolds	Mike Salisbury
Dale Schwartz	Reed Stewart	Kenny Strube	Larry Teague

Luke Uherik

#### **STAFF**

Justin Jonas, Executive Director

Brittni Kaczyk, Livestock Director

Macy Schwartz, Livestock Coordinator

Brenda Orozco, Secretary

Kermit Wendland, Operations Director

Tom Thompson, Market & Production Coordinator

Linda Rhodes, Executive Secretary

Mason McGuire, Fairgrounds Manager

#### **SUPERINTENDENTS**

Dr. Cody Scott, Calf Scramble

Steve Morris, Premium Sale Production

Dale Schwartz, Market Barrow Show

Victor Probant, Market Goat Show

Reed Stewart, Co-General Heifer Show

Rhonda Stewart, Co-General Heifer Show

Dr. Runyan & Dr. Salisbury, Angus Heifer Show

Maggie Farrington, Brangus Heifer Show

Reed Stewart, Hereford Heifer Show

Jessica Chesshire, Maine Anjou Heifer Show

Cody Halfmann, Red Angus Heifer Show

George Alschwede, Shorthorn Heifer Show

Maegan Schwartz, Heifer Futurity

David Kempen, Stars Gilt Show

Russell Kott, Ewe Lamb Futurity

Craig Barton, Texas Stars Wether Dam Show

John Allen, Angora Goat Show

Kenny Strube, Texas Stars Doe Show

Maggie Farrington, Ag Speaking Contest

Corey Owens, Livestock Judging Contest

Dr. Cody Scott, Wildlife Judging Contest

Bryan King, Meats Judging Contest

Dennis Urbantke, Youth & Open Longhorn Shows

Warren Cude, Junior & Open Boer Goat Shows

Susan Leslie, Open Llama Show

Raliegh Little, Premium Sale Fund

Jimmy Belcher, Market Steer Show

Corey Owens, Market Lamb Show

Marvin Clark, Rabbit Show

Joey Halfmann, Co-General Heifer Show

Wade Kirkwood, ARB Heifer Show

Tim Raley, Beefmaster Heifer Show

Bryan Benson, Chianina Heifer Show

Bruce Lawrence, Limousin Heifer Show

Justin Yancey, ORB Heifer Show

Tim Raley, Santa Gertrudis Heifer Show

Brandon Green, Simmental Heifer Show

Dale Wilde, Jr. Breeding Gilt Show

Kyle Stephens, Stars Gilt Sale

Melvin Bohnert, Junior Breeding Sheep Show

Zane Willard, Angora Wether Goat Futurity

Faron Pfeiffer, Junior Fleece Show

Michael Kissire, Ag Mechanics Contest

Laura Howard & Traci Terrill, Robotics

Courtney Redmon, Food Challenge Contest

Dr. Mike Salisbury, Wool Judging Contest

Garry Branham, Consumer Decision Making

Dolores Jenkins, Mini Hereford Shows

Robbie Eckhoff, Open Breeding Sheep Show

# **SCHEDULE**

Junior Food Challenge	Wednesday, January 23, 2019	
Youth & Open Mini Hereford Show: Barn Opens		8:00 a.m.
Youth & Open Mini Hereford Show: Barn Opens	The sales that a 24 2040	
Youth & Open Mini Hereford Show: In Place		0.00
Youth & Open Mini Hereford Show: Check In		
Friday, February 1, 2019  Ag Speaking Contest: Registration		
Ag Speaking Contest: Registration	Youth & Open Mini Hereford Show: Check In	2:00 p.m.
Ag Speaking Contest: Preliminary Round (Finals Immediately Following Prelims & Results Following Contest) Robotics Competition: Registration Open Mini Hereford Show Open Mini Hereford Show immediately following Robotics Competition: Contest Ir. Market Lamb & Goat Show: Barn Opens Ir. Texas Stars Wether Doe & Dam Show: Barn Opens Immediately Following the Competition Ir. Texas Stars Wether Doe & Dam Show: Barn Opens Ir. Texas Stars Wether Doe Show: Weigh In Ir. Texas Stars Wether Doe Show: Weigh In \$1:00 p.m. Ir. Texas Stars Wether Doe Show: Weigh In \$2:00 p.m. Ir. Texas Stars Wether Doe Show: Weigh In \$2:00 p.m. Ir. Texas Stars Wether Doe Show: In Place Ir. Texas Stars Wether Doe Show: In Place Storo p.m. Ir. Texas Stars Wether Dam Show: In Place Storo p.m. Ir. Texas Stars Wether Dam Show: All Show Ir. Texas Stars Wether Doe Show: All Show Ir. Texas Stars Wether Dam Show: All Show Ir. Texas Stars Wether Dam Show: All Show Ir. Texas Stars Wether Dam Show: In Place Ir. Market Lamb & Goat Show: In Place Ir. Texas Stars Wether Dam Show: All Show Ir. Texas Stars Wether Dam Sale Ir. Market Lamb & Goat Show: Weight Cards Due Ir. Texas Stars Wether Dam Sale Calf Scramble #2 Ir. Market Lamb & Goat Show: Weight Cards Due Ir. Texas Stars Wether Dam Sale Calf Scramble #3 Ir. Market Lamb Show If Inewool, Finewool Cross & Dorper) Ir. Market Lamb Show If Inewool, Finewool Cross & Dorper) Ir. Market Goat Show: Arrive Ir. M	Friday, February 1, 2019	
(Finals Immediately Following Prelims & Results Following Contest) Robotics Competition: Registration 9:00–10:00 a.m. Youth Mini Hereford Show	Ag Speaking Contest: Registration	8:00 a.m.
Robotics Competition: Registration	Ag Speaking Contest: Preliminary Round	9:00 a.m.
Youth Mini Hereford Show	(Finals Immediately Following Prelims & Results Following Contest)	
Open Mini Hereford Show immediately following Robotics Competition: Contest	Robotics Competition: Registration	9:00–10:00 a.m.
Robotics Competition: Contest	Youth Mini Hereford Show	10:00 a.m.
Jr. Market Lamb & Goat Show: Barn Opens	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Jr. Texas Stars Wether Doe & Dam Show: Barn Opens	Robotics Competition: Contest	10:00 a.m.
Robotics Competition: Results	Jr. Market Lamb & Goat Show: Barn Opens	12:00 p.m.
Immediately Following the Competition  Jr. Texas Stars Wether Doe Show: Weigh In		
Jr. Texas Stars Wether Doe Show: Weigh In		Approximately 2:00 p.m.
Jr. Texas Stars Wether Dam Show: Weigh In & Classify 3:00-5:00 p.m.  Jr. Market Lamb & Goat Show Barn Closes 5:00 p.m.  Jr. Texas Stars Wether Doe Show: In Place 5:00 p.m.  Jr. Texas Stars Wether Dam Show: In Place 5:00 p.m.  Jr. Texas Stars Wether Dam Show: In Place 5:00 p.m.  Saturday, February 2, 2019  Jr. Market Lamb & Goat Show: Barn Opens 6:00 a.m.  Jr. Texas Stars Wether Doe Show: All Show 8:00 a.m.  Jr. Texas Stars Wether Dam Show: All Show Following Doe Show  Calf Scramble #1 1:00 p.m.  Jr. Market Lamb & Goat Show: In Place 1:00 p.m.  Jr. Market Lamb & Goat Show: Weight Cards Due 4:00 p.m.  Jr. Texas Stars Wether Doe Sale 6:00 p.m.  Jr. Texas Stars Wether Dam Sale After TX Star Doe Sale  Calf Scramble #2 7:30 p.m.  Sunday, February 3, 2019  Jr. Market Lamb Show 8:00 a.m.  (Finewool, Finewool Cross & Dorper)  Jr. Market Goat Show: Arrive 9:00 a.m.  Calf Scramble #3 2:00 p.m.	Immediately Following the Competition	
Jr. Market Lamb & Goat Show Barn Closes	Jr. Texas Stars Wether Doe Show: Weigh In	3:00-5:00 p.m.
Jr. Texas Stars Wether Doe Show: In Place		
Jr. Texas Stars Wether Dam Show: In Place	Jr. Market Lamb & Goat Show Barn Closes	5:00 p.m.
Saturday, February 2, 2019  Jr. Market Lamb & Goat Show: Barn Opens	Jr. Texas Stars Wether Doe Show: In Place	5:00 p.m.
Jr. Market Lamb & Goat Show: Barn Opens	Jr. Texas Stars Wether Dam Show: In Place	5:00 p.m.
Jr. Market Lamb & Goat Show: Barn Opens	Saturday February 2, 2019	
Jr. Texas Stars Wether Doe Show: All Show		6:00 a m
Jr. Texas Stars Wether Dam Show: All Show		
Calf Scramble #1		
Jr. Market Lamb & Goat Show: In Place		
Jr. Market Lamb & Goat Show: Weight Cards Due 4:00 p.m.  Jr. Texas Stars Wether Doe Sale 6:00 p.m.  Jr. Texas Stars Wether Dam Sale After TX Star Doe Sale Calf Scramble #2 7:30 p.m.  Sunday, February 3, 2019  Jr. Market Lamb Show 8:00 a.m. (Finewool, Finewool Cross & Dorper)  Jr. Market Goat Show 8:00 a.m. Ag Mechanics Show: Arrive 9:00 a.m. Calf Scramble #3 2:00 p.m.		•
Jr. Texas Stars Wether Doe Sale		-
Jr. Texas Stars Wether Dam Sale	<del>-</del>	•
Calf Scramble #2		
Sunday, February 3, 2019  Jr. Market Lamb Show 8:00 a.m. (Finewool, Finewool Cross & Dorper)  Jr. Market Goat Show 8:00 a.m. Ag Mechanics Show: Arrive 9:00 a.m. Calf Scramble #3 2:00 p.m.		
Jr. Market Lamb Show	Can Scrambic #2	7.50 p.m.
Jr. Market Lamb Show	Sunday, February 3, 2019	
(Finewool, Finewool Cross & Dorper)  Jr. Market Goat Show	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	8:00 a.m.
Jr. Market Goat Show8:00 a.m.Ag Mechanics Show: Arrive9:00 a.m.Calf Scramble #32:00 p.m.		
Calf Scramble #3	, , ,	8:00 a.m.
Calf Scramble #3	Ag Mechanics Show: Arrive	9:00 a.m.
·		
·		•
	<u>-</u>	r
Monday, February 4, 2019	Monday, February 4, 2019	
Jr. Market Lamb Show8:00 a.m.		8:00 a.m.
(Southdown & Medium Wool)	(Southdown & Medium Wool)	
Jr. & Open Boer Goat Show: Barn Opens8:00 a.m.	Jr. & Open Boer Goat Show: Barn Opens	8:00 a.m.

Ag Mechanics Show: Judging	
Jr. & Open Boer Goat Show: Complete Check-In	5:00 p.m.
Tuesday, February 5, 2019	
Open Boer Goat Show: Show	
Ag Mechanics Show: Results	
Jr. Boer Goat Show: Show	1:00 p.m.
Thomsday Falouson 7, 2010	
Thursday, February 7, 2019	0.00
Jr. Breeding Heifer Show: Barns Open	
Jr. Angora Goat Show & Angora Wether Futurity Barn Opens.	•
Jr. Breeding Heifer Show: Check In Complete	•
(Angus, Shorthorn, Maine Anjou, Limousin, ORB, Chianina, Simmental, AF	•
Jr. Breeding Heifer Show: Barns Closes	8:00 p.m.
Friday, February 8, 2019	
Jr. Breeding Heifer Show:	8:00 a.m.
Ring A: Angus, Shorthorn, Maine Anjou, Limousin	
Ring B: ORB, Chianina, Simmental, ARB	
Jr. Breeding Heifer Show: Barns Open	
Stars Gilt Show: Barn Opens	10:00 a.m.
Jr. Breeding Gilt Show: Barn Opens	10:00 a.m.
Jr. Angora Goat Show: In Place	5:00 p.m.
Jr. Angora Wether Futurity: In Place & Weigh In By	5:00 p.m.
Stars Gilt Show: Barn Closes	8:00 p.m.
Jr. Breeding Gilt Show: Barn Closes	8:00 p.m.
Jr. Breeding Heifer Show: Barns Closes	8:00 p.m.
Saturday, February 9, 2019	
Stars Gilt Show: Barn Opens	6:00 a.m.
Jr. Breeding Gilt Show: Barn Opens	6:00 a.m.
Jr. Angora Wether Futurity: Show	8:00 a.m.
Jr. Breeding Heifer Show: Barns Open	8:00 a.m.
Jr. All Breed Heifer Futurity: Check In	9:00 a.m.
Stars Gilt Show: In Place	9:00 a.m.
Jr. Breeding Gilt Show: In Place	9:00 a.m.
Stars Gilt Show: Check In	10:00 a.m.
Jr. Breeding Gilt Show: Check In	
Stars Gilt Show: (Pedigree Show)	
Jr. All Breed Heifer Futurity: Show	•
Jr. Angora Goat Show: All show	-
Calf Scramble #4	•
Jr. Breeding Heifer Show: Barns Closes	•
Jr. Breeding Heifer Show: Paper Check	•
(Hereford, Red Angus, Brangus, Beefmaster, & Santa Gertrudis Only)	5.00 р.пп.
Calf Scramble Finals	7·20 n m
Can Scrambic Finals.	7.30 p.111.

Sunday, February 10, 2019	
Stars Gilt Show	8:00 a.m.
(Non-Pedigree)	
Jr. Breeding Gilt Show	8:00 a.m.
Jr. Breeding Heifer Show:	8:00 a.m.
Ring A: Hereford & Red Angus	
Ring B: Brangus, Beefmaster, & Santa Gertrudis	
Monday, February 11, 2019	
Special Edition Stock Show	9:00 a.m.
·	
Tuesday, February 12, 2019	
Jr. Market Barrow Show: Barn Opens	6:00 a.m.
Jr. Market Steer Show: Barn Opens	8:00 a.m.
Jr. Market Barrow Show: In Place	3:00 p.m.
Jr. Market Barrow Show: Weight Cards Due	4:00 p.m.
Jr. Market Steer Show: In Place	4:00 p.m.
Jr. Market Steer Show: Weight Cards Due	5:00 p.m.
Stars Gilt Sale	6:00 p.m.
Wednesday, February 13, 2019	
Jr. Market Barrow Show	8:00 a.m.
(Hampshire, Light Crossbred, Dark Crossbred)	
Jr. Market Steer Show: All Show	
All Non-Sale Steers Must Leave Barn by	7:00 p.m.
Thursday Cabruary 14, 2010	
Thursday, February 14, 2019  Jr. Market Barrow Show	9.00 a m
(Duroc, LOPB, DOPB, Berkshire, Yorkshire)	0.00 d.III.
Jr. & Open Breeding Sheep: Barn Opens	10:00 a m
Ewe Lamb Futurity: Barn Opens	
Live Lamb Futurity. Barri Opens	10.00 a.iii.
Friday, February 15, 2019	
Jr. Rabbit Show: Barn Opens	7:00 a.m.
Jr. Rabbit Show	
Consumer Decision Making Contest: Registration	
Consumer Decision Making Contest	
Youth & Open Longhorn Show: Barn Opens	
Open Llama Show: Barn Opens	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Jr. Ewe Lamb Futurity: In Place	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Jr. & Open Breeding Sheep: In Place	3:00 p.m.
Jr. Ewe Lamb Futurity: Weigh & Clip Samples	
Saturday, February 16, 2019	
Open Llama Show: Exhibitor Meeting	7·20 a m
Open Llama Show: Exhibitor Meeting	
Jr. Breeding Sheep: Dorper Show	
Meats Judging Contest	
ivicals junking contest	o.UU a.ffl.

Livestock Judging Contest  Wool Judging Contest  Wildlife Judging Contest  Open & Youth Longhorn Show: In Place	8:30 a.m. 8:45 a.m.
Open Longhorn Show	
Open Breeding Sheep: Dorper Show	1:00 p.m.
Jr. Ewe Lamb Futurity: Show	2:00 p.m.
Junior Premium Sale	2:00 p.m.
Sunday, February 17, 2019	
Jr. Breeding Sheep (Except Dorper): Show	8:00 a.m.
Open Llama Show: Halter	9:00 a.m.
Youth Longhorn Show	
Jr. Wool & Mohair Fleece Show	11:00 a.m.
Open Breeding Sheep (Except Dorper): Show	1:00 p.m.

<sup>\*</sup>This schedule is subject to change.

<sup>\*\*&</sup>quot;In Place" & "Registration Times" are typically the end point. For further information on scheduling and rules please see the specific Show Rules.

#### **GENERAL RULES**

The San Angelo Stock Show & Rodeo Association is a non-profit organization that strives to provide an outlet for the youth of Texas to participate in the agricultural industry. SASSRA is committed to the humane treatment of every animal exhibited and takes every possible precaution to insure the safety and well-being of participating animals and exhibitors.

The San Angelo Stock Show & Rodeo Association (SASSRA), its officials, directors, employees and agents from hereinafter referred to as **Show Management**.

#### Statement of Liability

All exhibits are under the control and direction of the Show Management, but the San Angelo Stock Show & Rodeo is not responsible to any loss or damage that may occur even as a result of our own negligence. The exhibitor will be solely responsible for any consequential or other loss, injury or damage done to, or occasioned by, or arising from, any animal or article exhibited by him/her and for its description as given in the catalog. He or she shall indemnify the San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo against all legal or other proceedings in regard thereto, as well as any damage or injury to any other person or property, cause by the exhibitor or any of the animals exhibited with such exhibition or any of the animals exhibited, even if caused by the negligence of the San Angelo Stock Show & Rodeo. Exhibitor and each signatory hereto, and any servant, agent, family member or employee of the Exhibitor hereby waives all right to sue the San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo, even as a result of the Stock Show's negligence or any matter related to exhibiting in the San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo or making any challenge to our determination of a violation of its rules.

- 1. Interpretation and Violation of Rules: Individuals, including participants, are requested to report any rule violation(s) to the Show Management immediately so that appropriate action may be taken. The San Angelo Stock Show & Rodeo Association Executive Committee reserves the final and absolute right to interpret these rules and settle and determine all matters, questions and amend or add to these rules as its judgment may determine. Any exhibitor who violates any of these rules will forfeit all privileges and premiums and may be subject to such penalty as the Executive Committee may order.
- **2. Special Rules:** Special Rules are published in any department where necessary. If there is a conflict between the Special Rules and the General Rules, Show Management will govern the final ruling. To be eligible to enter, exhibitors and their livestock must meet the special requirements of the animal or breed of animal to be exhibited.
- **3. Eligibility:** Competition is open to the world, with the exception of the Junior Show (see Junior Show Rules), age regulations on Youth Shows, and any other event noted in an event's Special Rules. This is an invitational Livestock Show; SASSRA reserves the right to extend or withhold an invitation to any exhibitor.

#### 4. Ineligible Entries:

- a. Disqualified Exhibitors: The Show, cooperating with member shows of the North American Livestock Show and Rodeo Managers Association and using the Rule Infraction Database, reserves the right to refuse entry of any exhibitor who has been barred from any other show on the basis of unethical practices. An exhibitor found in violation of any Show rules is subject to have his/her name and the result of the rule violation submitted to the Rule Infraction Database administered by the North American Livestock Show and Rodeo Managers Association.
- **b. Diseased Animals:** Diseased animals cannot enter the Livestock Show area or grounds. Superintendents will refuse unloading privileges to animals showing signs and symptoms of disease.

- **c.** Barren Animals: Barren animals are not eligible for breeding classes.
- 5. Social Security Number Requirement: Every exhibitor and contestant must have a Social Security Number or Tax Identification Number to be eligible to participate in the San Angelo Stock Show & Rodeo. Social Security Numbers must be recorded on entry forms.

## 6. Entry Procedure:

- a. Entry Forms: All entries are required to be submitted on current, official entry forms available at http://www.sanangelorodeo.com. Photocopies are acceptable though original signatures are required on all entries.
- b. Junior Show Entry Submission: Entries are not considered complete unless they have been submitted online and postmarked on or before December 1, 2018, except for judging contest, ag speaking, rabbits, youth food challenge and robotics entries. Incomplete entries (entries not submitted online or postmarked) will be assessed an additional 10% fee. Ag speaking online entries must be submitted online on or before January 10, 2019. Judging Contest and junior food challenge entries must be made through www.judgingcard.com, no paper form is required.
- c. Open Show Entry Submission: Open show entries must be postmarked on or before January 10, 2019.
- d. Entering both Open and Junior Shows: Exhibitors are allowed to enter both the Junior Show and Open Show when applicable, however, separate entry forms and fees are required.
- e. Acceptance of Entry: The right is reserved to Show Management to reject entirely or accept conditionally any entry and to refuse any accepted entry admittance to the fairgrounds. Entry does not guarantee space in the exhibition buildings. All fees will be forfeited.
- f. Completion of Entry: Entry forms must be completed in its entirety. If any blank is left unfilled, the entry may not be accepted and will be returned to the exhibitor.
  - **g. Mailing:** Please mail the following items to the Livestock Department:
- 1. All completed entry forms (Open Show, Junior Show, etc). Include ALL original signatures and social security numbers.
  - 2. Payment-

\*Junior Show: Only checks from 4-H or FFA accounts, money orders, and cashier's checks will be accepted. Personal checks are NOT accepted.

\*Open Show: Personal checks are accepted.

San Angelo Stock Show & Rodeo **Livestock Department** 200 West 43rd Street San Angelo, Texas 76903

Phone: (325)653-7785

- h. Erroneous Entry: At the discretion of Show Management, exhibits that have been erroneously entered may be transferred to their proper classes prior to judging. Show Management will decide the disposition of each case of erroneous entry upon its merits. If such classes have been judged they shall not be reopened. No animal shall be changed from one class to another after deadline date unless it is ineligible for the class it is entered.
- 7. Entry Deadlines: All paper entry forms and payment are due on dates listed below. All Junior Show entries due on December 1, must also be submitted online.

**December 1:** Junior Market Steer, Junior Market Barrow, Junior Market Lamb, Junior Market Goat, Junior Breeding Gilt, Junior Stars Gilt, Junior Ewe Lamb Futurity, Junior Breeding Sheep, Texas Stars Wether Dam Show, Junior Angora Wether Goat Futurity, Junior Angora Goat, Junior Texas Stars Wether Doe, Junior Boer Goat, Heifer Futurity, Junior Breeding Heifer and Ag Mechanics entries.

December 2-15: Junior Show (listed above) Late Entry- Double original entry fee. Mail in only.

**January 10:** Ag speaking entries must be fully submitted online (including all documents/forms uploaded) and full payment mailed in to the SASSRA office. Junior Market & Breeding Rabbits, Open Breeding Sheep, Open Boer Goats, Open Llama Show, Open and Youth Miniature Hereford Show entries, Open and Youth Longhorn Show, Junior Robotics with forms and payment mailed in only. Junior Food Challenge entries submitted through <a href="https://www.judgingcard.com">www.judgingcard.com</a>. No forms or payment due to SASSRA.

**February 10:** Judging Contest Entries must be submitted through <a href="www.judgingcard.com">www.judgingcard.com</a>. No forms or payment due to SASSRA.

#### 8. Late Entry:

- **a. Late Junior Show & Agriculture Mechanics** entries will be accepted postmarked December 2-December 15, 2018 for double entry fee.
- **b. Extra Late Junior Show** entries will be accepted from December 16, 2018 until the end of check in for the show the entry is made and will automatically be charged a \$200 late fee per entry in addition to the original entry fee. Payment will only be accepted as cash, cashier's check, or money order.
- **c.** Late Open Show entries will be accepted postmarked January 11, 2019 until the end of check in for the show for double entry fee.
  - d. Rabbit Show no late entries will be accepted.
- **e. Judging Contests** entries will be accepted online from February 11, 2019 to the day prior to the contest for double fees. Additionally, entries will be accepted the day of the contest, onsite for double fees by cash payment only.

Show Management reserves the right to accept or deny any late entry. Late entries must still meet any and all ownership requirements.

- **9. Entry Fees:** No entry will be accepted if payment for entry fees does not accompany entry forms. If the check accompanying the entries should be returned by the bank for any reason, the entry will be cancelled and returned. There will be a \$25 service charge on all returned checks. The San Angelo Stock Show & Rodeo has the right to ban any exhibitor from future participation should there be a continuous problem with fees from an exhibitor.
- **10. Division Transfers:** Exhibitors will be charged a \$100 fee for any division transfers made after the time of entry up to the time of check in.
- **11. Drug Testing Fees:** A \$3.00 per entry drug testing fee may be applied to any show which animals will be drug tested. The income from this fee will help off-set the expenses of such tests. These fees will automatically be added to the entry fee of the show on the official San Angelo Stock Show Entry Form(s).

#### 12. Miscellaneous Fees:

Junior Show Processing Fee, per club/chapter \$10

Junior Show Late Entry Fee (Dec. 2-15), per entry Double Fee

Open Show Late Entry Fee (Jan. 11- Check In) Double Fee

Junior Show Late Entry Fee (Dec. 16- Check In), per entry \$200+ Entry Fee

Division Transfer Fee (Entry Deadline – Check In)

\$100 Fee

Junior Market Shows		
Junior Market Barrows	\$28.00 per head**	Limit 2 Head
Junior Market Steers	\$38.00 per head**	Limit 2 Head
Junior Market Lambs	\$28.00 per head**	Limit 5 Head*
Junior Market Goats	\$28.00 per head**	Limit 2 Head
Junior Breeding	g & Specialty Shows	
Junior Breeding Rabbits	\$5.00 per head	No Limit
Junior Market Rabbits	\$10.00 per pen	No Limit
Junior Breeding Gilts	\$25.00 per head	No Limit
Junior Stars Gilt Show	\$28.00 per head**	No Limit
Junior Ewe Lamb Futurity	\$30.00 per pair	Limit 1 Pair
Junior Breeding Sheep	\$25.00 per head	No Limit*
Junior Texas Stars Wether Dam Show	\$28.00 per head	Limit 5 Head*
Junior Angora Wether Futurity	\$25.00 per head	Limit 4 Head
Junior Angora Goat Show	\$25.00 per head	No Limit*
Junior Texas Stars Wether Doe Show	\$28.00 per head**	Limit 3 Head
Junior Boer Goat Show	\$25.00 per head	No Limit*
Junior Heifer Futurity	\$15.00 per head	Limit 1 Head
Junior Breeding Heifers	\$35.00 per head	No Limit
Youth Longhorn Show	\$42.00 per head	No Limit*
Youth Longhorn Points Show	\$20.00 per head	No Limit*
Wool & Mohair Fleece Show	\$10.00 per fleece	No Limit*
Junio	r Contests	
Agriculture Mechanics Show	\$30.00 per team	No Limit
Agriculture Speaking Contest	\$25.00 per entry	No Limit
Robotics Competition	\$40.00 per team	No Limit
Food Challenge	\$40.00 per team	No Limit
Livestock Judging Contest	\$12.00 per ind.	No Limit
Wool Judging Contest	\$12.00 per ind.	No Limit
Wildlife Judging Contest	\$12.00 per ind.	No Limit
Meat Judging Contest	\$12.00 per ind.	No Limit
Consumer Decision Making Contest	\$12.00 per ind.	No Limit

Оре	en Shows	
Open Breeding Sheep Show	\$25.00 per head	No Limit
Open Boer Goat Show	\$25.00 per head	No Limit
Open Longhorn Show	\$42.00 per head	No Limit*
Open Llama Show	See form for info.	
Open & Youth Mini Hereford Show	\$35.00 per head	No Limit

<sup>\*\*</sup>Includes \$3.00 Drug Testing Fee

**13. Passes:** Passes for junior show exhibitors will be mailed prior to the show, excluding robotics, food challenge, ag mechanics and judging contest contestants which will be handed out on arrival. Junior passes will be mailed to the Supervisor that submitted entries.

**Gate Passes:** Each exhibitor will be issued one (1) free Gate Pass valid for the duration of the Livestock Show and may purchase additional passes in advance or at the gate. CEA's and AST's who are supervising projects will be issued one (1) free Gate Pass valid the duration of the show. Open show entries will grant one pass per exhibitor, and one pass per owner (if different than exhibitor).

**Exhibitor Pass \$10.00** (Valid for duration of Livestock Show) Starting February 1, all passes will be **Season Passes** available for **\$20.00**.

**Car Passes:** Exhibitors and Supervisors will be eligible to purchase Car Passes good for the duration of the show. Car passes must be fully affixed to the windshield of the vehicle. Partially applied, laminated, wrapped or taped stickers are not valid. Failure to comply will result in confiscation of Car Pass and loss of parking privileges. These passes allow access to parking lots at Gate 4. Purchase of parking pass does not guarantee parking. CEAs and ASTs will **NOT** be sent a complimentary parking pass with entries.

- Car passes allow purchaser to enter Gate 2 on south end of fairgrounds and park along west side of the Sheep, Goat & Swine barn and in designated parking lot located just north of the Sheep, Goat & Swine Barn.
- Parking lots located south and southeast of Foster Communications Coliseum, north of carnival and north of the Horse Barn do **NOT** require parking pass.

Car Pass \$20.00 (Valid for duration of Livestock Show)

- **14. Project/Animal Substitutions:** Substitutions will be allowed within the same breed and division as the original entry at the time of check-in. Substitutions will not be allowed once check-in is completed. Any animal substituted must meet any and all requirements for the show it is to be entered. There is no fee for substitution. Ag Mechanics projects may be substituted prior to the event with the Livestock Office for no fee, or the day of check in for a fee (see Ag Mechanics Rules). Substitutions across divisions (or shows) will be allowed for a \$100 substitution fee, due at the Records Office.
- **15. Refunds:** There are absolutely no refunds of entry fees or passes.
- 16. Checks: Premium (prize money) and floor checks will be issued in March or April following the show. Premium Sale checks will be issued once payment has been received from buyers. In the event checks are not cashed within 90 days, they will be considered stale and must be reissued. There will be a reissue charge of fifty dollars (\$50.00) in addition to any stop payment or other bank charges.

<sup>\*</sup>Please see specific show rules for more details.

#### 17. Judges:

- **a. Selection of Judges:** Show Management is solely responsible for the selection of judges and determining judging systems. Judges will be familiar with all rules, regulations and procedures of the San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo.
- **b. Judges' Decision:** The judges' decisions are final. If fraud, misrepresentation, error or collusion is discovered after awards have been given, the show Management or appointed referee will make a decision regarding final placement. Such decisions may be appealed to the Executive Committee from whose decision there will be no appeal. Protests alleging that the judges overlooked exhibits will not be considered.
- **c. Interference with Judges:** An exhibitor or their representative who interferes with or displays disrespect to a judge or the Show could forfeit any monies earned or be subject to other penalties assessed by the show.
- **18. Sifting/Classifying Committees:** The San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo reserves the right to appoint sifting committees to determine the eligibility of animals by inspection prior to judging. Animals must have blankets removed and be ready for inspection when called upon by the committee. The sifting committee will eliminate any animal which, in its judgment, is not qualified to compete and may be required to leave the grounds. Decisions of the sifters and/or classifiers will be final and protests will not be considered. Interference with sifters and/or classifiers will not be tolerated.
- **19. Official Protests:** All protest must be made in writing and accompanied by a fee of \$100, which will be refunded if the protest is sustained. Such protests and fees must be submitted to the Livestock Office. Protests must clearly state the cause of complaint or appeal, giving good and sufficient reasons therefore, and must be delivered to the Management immediately upon the occasion for such protest. Protests not officially filed within 12 hours of the alleged incident will not be considered. These cases are referred to the Executive Director, who will have full power to act, and from whose decision there can be no appeal. Judging procedures will not be interrupted for protest investigation.

## 20. Breed Representation:

- a. Sheep or Goats: Should any breed represented in the open or junior breeding sheep or goat shows not have a minimum of four (4) breeders and sixteen (16) sheep or goats entered in their respective show at the time of entry deadline, their fees will be returned to the exhibitors and no show will be held. The show will be discontinued for the following year, unless the breed association pays the premium for the succeeding year.
- **b. Cattle:** Should any breed represented in the Youth Longhorn Show or Open Longhorn Show not have a minimum of five (5) breeders and a total of twenty five (25) animals in their respective show at the time of entry deadline, their fees will be returned to the exhibitors and no show will be held for two consecutive years.

In the Junior Heifer Show, if any breed has less than thirty (30) head entered on a three year average the breed will be dissolved into the appropriate ORB or ARB division. Additionally, at any time a breed has less than twenty (20) head entered the following year, the breed will be dissolved into the appropriate ORB or ARB division. Any breed that has more than thirty (30) head entered on a three year average will be given its own separate breed show. Any breed that has more than forty (40) head entered in a single year will be given its own breed show the following year.

## 21. Show Ring Competition:

**a. Entry Numbers:** Each entry will be assigned a number. In some divisions exhibitors will receive corresponding cards with numbers which must be displayed by exhibitors during judging.

- **b. Requirement to Show:** Animals properly entered in a show class and passed on by the sifting committee as eligible for competition must be brought into the show ring for competition. Exhibitors who refuse, without Show approval, to lead their animals for parade or for competition in the show ring will forfeit any and all prizes previously won. Also, by refusing the exhibitor may be barred from further participation in the Show and may be required to remove their stock from Show ground immediately.
- **c. Arena Promptness:** Exhibitors are responsible for knowing the times at which their projects will be judged. Judging will not be delayed for animals entering the arena late. Any exhibit not presented promptly will be ruled ineligible and barred from competition the class.
- **d. Judging Contests:** If and when an exhibitor is called upon to furnish one or more animals for the students judging contest, he or she will cooperate with the Show. Refusing to allow an animal to be used in this manner, without Show approval, could result in the forfeit of any prizes or such other action as the Show deems necessary. Selection of animals will be made under the direction of the department superintendent.
- **22. Disqualification:** Should any animal, project, contestant or team awarded a prize be disqualified, the lower placing animal, project, contestant or team will not move into the higher position.
- **23. Animal/Exhibitor Disqualification:** To support fair competition, to provide a level playing field and to protect the safety of food, the showing of unethically fitted livestock, livestock of any ineligible age for exhibition in the class entered, and/or animals being administered unapproved drugs is strictly prohibited. Additionally, any animal that has been administered a drug that is FDA approved for its species is subject to disqualification if that animal test positive for that drug upon arrival at the San Angelo Fairgrounds. All animals must remain free and clear of all drug and chemical residues while on show grounds. How or under what circumstances the animal came to ingest the drug is not relevant to any consideration.
- **23a. Unethical Fitting:** Unethical fitting is defined as any attempt to alter an animal's performance or alter the natural contour, confirmation, or appearance of the animal's body, hide, hair, or feet by any unnatural means.

Examples of unethical fitting include, but are not limited to:

- Treating or massaging any part of the animal's body, internally or externally, with an irritant, counterirritant, or other substance to temporarily improve conformation.
- Surgical alterations, excluding the removal of warts or horns
- Use of Injections
- Striking the animal to cause swelling in a depressed area
- Use of electrical contrivances
- Feeding of material not conducive to the health of the animal, safety of food or marketability of its carcass
- Blocking of nerves to prevent limping or switching of the tail
- The use of diuretics
- The use of alcoholic or carbonated beverages in the feed or administered as a drench
- **23b.** Over Age Animals: Any animal over the age requirement set forth by rules specific to that division will be disqualified.
- **23c. Unapproved Drug Use:** The showing of any animal that has been administered during its life any quantity of any unapproved drug, chemical or medication is strictly prohibited. Such drugs include, but are not limited to, any diuretic, any unapproved growth stimulant or other unapproved medication.

Unapproved means not approved by the Food and Drug Administration (FDA) and/or the U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) for slaughter animals including that may be destined for human consumption.

- **23d. Approved Drug Use:** If an animal has been administered a drug that is FDA approved for its species, sufficient time must have passed so that the animal does not test positive for that drug upon arrival to the Grounds. **Animals must remain free and clear of all drug and chemical residues while on show grounds. Please note that elimination time (the time it takes for no drug residue to be found in the system) is typically longer than the labeled withdrawal time for most approved drugs.**
- **23e. Animal Inspection & Testing:** As condition for participation in the show, every exhibitor must agree to submit any animal entered by the exhibitor for inspection at any time. Exhibitors agree to have such animal submitted to any test requested by the Show at any time. The exhibitor also agrees that the opinion reached by the Show or its officials as to whether such animal is unethically fitted or over age shall be final and binding without recourse against the Show or any of its officers. Further, the Show specifically reserves the right to have ultrasound, D.N.A., tissue, blood and/or urine laboratory analysis made on any animal entered for competition. The conclusions reached by the laboratory and/or veterinarian shall be final and binding without recourse against the Show or any of its officers. An exhibitor, and members of the exhibitors family, of an animal that is found to be unethically fitted, over age, and/or testing positive for any drug or medication or unapproved chemical may forfeit all rights and privileges to exhibit livestock in the future at the Show.
  - 23f. Unmanageable Animals: The Show may disqualify any animal deemed unmanageable.
- **23g. No adherence to Rules:** Any person found guilty of misrepresentation or not abiding by the Show rules will be disqualified and denied the privilege of showing in the San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo.
- 23h. Medication Received Prior to Show: Animals under the care of a licensed veterinarian and/or taking any type of performance enhancing medication to include but not limited to, steroids, diuretics, anti-inflammatories, tranquilizers and pain killers are ineligible for competition. In instances where an animal has been administered a drug that is FDA approved for its species, the exhibitor must be aware that the time it takes for all drug residue to completely clear the system is generally longer than the labeled withdrawal time for most drugs. SASSRA maintains a ZERO TOLERANCE POLICY for unethically fitted livestock. Adequate time must have passed so that the animal does not test positive for drug upon arrival. Once the animals arrive on the SASSRA grounds, they must remain free and clear of all drug and chemical residues.
- **23i.** Emergency Treatment: If an animal requires emergency treatment while on Show grounds, only a licensed veterinarian will be allowed to administer any drug, chemical or feed additive. An exhibitor may choose a licensed veterinarian other than the official Show veterinarian, but the official Show veterinarian MUST be notified in advance and he/she MUST be present. Animals which are administered treatments with a withdrawal or extended elimination time period will be disqualified from competition. Furthermore, the Official Show Veterinarian, in agreement with Show Management, reserve the right to treat any animal if, in the opinion of the Official Show Veterinarian, it is in the best interest of the animal's health and well-being to be treated. If the Official Show Veterinarian administers treatment to an animal, and therefore uses any medication that does not meet the appropriate withdrawal and or elimination time, will be determined ineligible to show for competition.

- **23j. Treatment Cost:** All treatment costs are the responsibility of the exhibitor.
- 23k. Consequences: In the event any animal is declared by the veterinarian or testing agency to be unethically fitted or disqualified for any reason the SASSRA President will appoint an Ethics Committee to evaluate the case. The Ethics Committee may temporarily decide to permanently bar the exhibitor and his or her family from any further participation in the San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo. Reinstatement of anyone barred may be made only by the Ethics Committee. The exhibitor will likely forfeit all titles, awards, prizes, auction proceeds, premiums and scholarships for all entries if the animal and/or exhibitor is disqualified. Market/Floor money will be forfeited if the animal is condemned at slaughter. The San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo in cooperation with members of the North American Livestock Show and Rodeo Managers Association, reserves the right to submit the name(s) of any disqualified exhibitor to the Rule Infraction Database.
- **231. Probation:** An exhibitor may be placed on a probationary status if results of drug tests are inconclusive, confirmation of a primary test cannot be granted, or another situation questioning the ethical fitting of livestock arises. The probation grants the right for the San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo to collect ultrasound, D.N.A., blood, tissue and/or urine samples for laboratory analysis on any animal entered by an exhibitor on probation at the exhibitor's expense. An exhibitor may remain on probation for any amount of time and may be released from probation only by the Board of Directors upon recommendation from the Ethics Committee.
- **24. Wholesome Meat Act:** The USDA Wholesome Meat Act applies to all market livestock. Only animals eligible for immediate slaughter may be brought onto the grounds and exhibited:
  - a. Animals must be in good health and carcasses free of drug or chemical residues.
- b. Drug label directions for use and withdrawal periods must be followed. Please note that elimination time (the time for no drug residue to be found in the system) is typically longer than the withdrawal time for most approved drugs.
- c. If drug or chemical residues are found in tissue of carcasses, the entire carcass may be condemned.

The San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo will in no way be liable or responsible for the condition of the carcasses or the sale price of the animal. In such cases, the exhibitor forfeits all rights to any and all proceeds including: Auction Price, Scholarships, Premium Awards, Market (Floor) Price and Special Awards.

- **25. Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act:** As required, in 21 CFR 589.2000, entry in the Junior Market steer, lamb and goat shows shall serve as verification by the exhibitor that, to the best of their knowledge, while under their ownership, possession or direct control, the animal(s) were not fed any feed containing ruminant-derived meat or bone meal. Entrants agree to allow packer inspections of feed ingredient records and facilities.
- **26. Disqualification/Condemnation of Animal:** "The Show practices a Zero Tolerance policy on all residue violations." The Show reserves the right to condemn and/or disqualify any animal, either live or slaughtered, found in violation of Rule 22 of the General Show Rules and Regulations listed in the handbook and the exhibitor will forfeit all auction sale and/or premium money if the animal is disqualified. If an animal(s) is disqualified, the class placing will not change. A disqualified exhibitor may forfeit all rights and privileges to exhibit livestock in the future at the Show.

- **27. Disclaimer of Warranties:** The San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo expressly disclaims any express or implied warranties (including merchantability), whether the goods or services are provided by the San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo or by others (such as drug testing). The San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo does NOT provide security or guard services and is not responsible for the acts of third parties. Exhibitor and exhibitor's parents and/or guardians agree that the San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo shall be entitled to disqualify any exhibitor whose animal tests positive for any drug even if the exhibitor and the exhibitor's parents or guardians are innocent of any wrongdoing and had no role in the administration of the drug shown by the drug test. Even if the source of the drug is unknown, the San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo shall be entitled to disqualify the exhibitor. Disqualification results in forfeiture of all prize money and auction proceeds.
- **28. Rule Infraction Database:** As a member of the North American Livestock Show and Rodeo Managers Association (NALSRMA), the San Angelo Stock Show & Rodeo reserves the right to refuse entry to any exhibitor that is entered into the NALSRMA Rule Infraction Database (RID). Furthermore, any exhibitors that violate the rules and regulations of the San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo are subject to being reporting to the NALSRMA RID. Information reported to the NALSRMA RID is available to all members of the NALSRMA.
- **29. Animal Health Regulations:** State Law requires most stock entering the grounds to be accompanied by proper health papers that shall be presented at the time stock arrives on the grounds. See Texas Animal Health Commission Rules for detail, there will be no exceptions.
- **30. Unauthorized Animals:** Any animals brought onto grounds which are not entered for competition or exhibition will become property of SASSRA and will be disposed of by discretion of the Executive Committee.
- **31. Objectionable Exhibits:** Show Management reserves the right to remove from the grounds any exhibit, animal or entry that may be falsely entered, or deemed unsuitable, or objectionable, without assigning a reason therefore. All fees will be forfeited.
- **32. Ownership Requirements:** All animals must be entered in the name of the owner(s) as shown on the Registration Certificate. All parties in a multiple ownership must be on the entry form. Firms and partnerships must be in existence at the time of making entry.

All animals in the breeding shows must be recorded or accepted for record in the recognized books of record for their respective breeds, and exhibitors must produce original certificates of registry at the request of the Superintendent of the show at any time during the show or registration for the show. For specific ownership deadline requirements please see the specials rules regarding the specific show.

Registration and health certificates must be available at all times during the show. Validation, bill of sale or other proof of ownership may be required for other animals.

**33. Animal Care:** All owners or persons in charge of property, or livestock, shall care for, guard, protect, and preserve same, as the San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo does not undertake to do so, and it shall not be held responsible for any loss, shrinkage, or damage to said property or livestock or the owners or exhibitors thereof. All exhibitors are responsible for security of their own animal/project(s) until they depart for their final destination (processing/ranch/etc.) The exhibitor is the absolute insurer of and is responsible for the

condition of their animal/project(s). The San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo is not responsible for the acts of third parties.

**34. Photographs:** Exhibitors must present themselves and their animals at the request of show officials for official photographers. All photographs taken by the official photographer(s) become property of the San Angelo Stock Show & Rodeo. Exhibitors wishing to purchase photographs must contact the Official Photographer.

Commercial photography and filming are often conducted at the San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo. You may be depicted in photographs or video recording of any San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo event, and by entering the grounds and/or competitive events associated with the San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo, you consent to the use of any depictions in connection with advertising, news reporting, public relations, webcasts or other broadcasts, or any other activities relating to the San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo, and you further release and waive all claims for compensation and any rights of review and approval, copyright, and right of publicity with respect thereto.

- **35. Release:** Exhibitors and their animals must remain on the Show grounds until animals are released by the Show Superintendent. An animal on exhibition may not be removed from the grounds prior to its release time without a special order. No animal will be released from the fairgrounds without a proper release form filled out and signed by Show Management. Any violation of this rule will cause forfeiture of all premiums earned by this exhibitor.
- **36. Project Care:** Exhibitors must remain in charge of their exhibits and care for them for the duration of the show or have a competent caretaker in charge of them who will be on duty at all times.
- **37. Group Classes:** All group class entries will be made upon arrival at the Show with the Superintendent. There is no entry fee to enter a group class.
- **38. Stalling:** Market Lamb & Market Goat show entries will be pre-stalled. All other show entries will be stalled upon arrival. Swine stall assignments will be made at Gate 5. Cattle stalls assignments will be made at the Stall Office in the Cattle Barn which requires entry at Gate 6 off Lake View Heroes Drive (formerly 50<sup>th</sup> Street). Breeding Sheep & Goat stall assignments will be made in barn of showing.
- **39. Stalls, Pens, Alleys:** Stalls, pens, alleys and exhibit spaces must be cleaned before 8:00 a.m. each day. Dispose of matter in the following ways:

Manure and/or Bedding Designated Dumpsters

Trash Trash Barrels

All chairs, equipment boxes, feed, etc. should be kept from the main alleys in the barn and should always allow for through traffic. Lights are not allowed on stalls or pens. Exhibitors are granted access to the barn 24 hours per day, however, exhibitors are not allowed to sleep in the barns.

- **40. Scales:** Exhibitors will not be allowed to bring portable scales in the Livestock Barn. Scales will be provided by the show in all barns; such scales are unofficial and are provided for exhibitors' convenience only.
- **41. Trim Chutes:** No trim chutes will be allowed on the grounds during the Junior Market Steer Show or Junior Breeding Heifer Shows.

- **42. Signs:** Exhibitors may display a sign over each exhibit advertising their own herds, FFA Chapter or 4-H Club. Signs must be put up in such a way as not to interfere with the exhibit. All forms of signs must be approved by Show Management, and the Livestock Superintendents reserve the right to have to objectionable signs removed.
- **43. Feed:** Feed will not be sold on the fairgrounds. You need to bring your feed or plan to purchase feed at local stores after arrival. The San Angelo Stock Show does not guarantee storage space.
- **44. Hay:** Any hay fed within the livestock barn must be placed in a feed trough or feed tub in an amount an animal may consume in a single feeding. Free-choice hay is NOT allowed. No hay bags or hay racks will be allowed. Bales of hay will not be allowed in the barn. All hay in the barn must be kept in a container, bucket, or bag from which it cannot spill and must be kept out of aisles. This applies to Livestock Building only (Sheep, Goat, and Swine Barn). Not applicable to Cattle Barn.
- **45. Shavings/Bedding:** Bedding is included with stalls. Any and all additional bedding must be purchased from Show Management. No outside shavings will be allowed. Straw will be allowed in for cattle tie-outs only.
- **46. Electrical Equipment:** Any equipment brought in to be used in the exhibit stall or space must comply with and be used in compliance with all Federal, State, and Municipal Occupation Safety and Health Regulations. Show Management will determine what equipment is allowed on Show grounds.
  - **a. Fans:** Fans are not permitted in the Livestock Barn (Sheep, Goat and Swine barn), unless the temperature exceeds 90 degrees Fahrenheit. Announcements will be made.
  - **c. Generators:** Generators are not allowed.
  - d. Heat Lamps/Propane Heaters: Heat lamps and propane heaters are not allowed in the barn.
- **47. Pets:** Service animals as well as any other animals under contract with the San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo are permitted to be on the Show grounds while personal pets are not allowed.

#### **JUNIOR SHOW RULES**

The San Angelo Stock Show & Rodeo Association, its officials, directors, employees and agents from hereinafter referred to as **Show Management**.

#### **Statement of Liability**

All exhibits are under the control and direction of the Show Management, but the San Angelo Stock Show & Rodeo is not responsible to any loss or damage that may occur even as a result of our own negligence. The exhibitor will be solely responsible for any consequential or other loss, injury or damage done to, or occasioned by, or arising from, any animal or article exhibited by him/her and for its description as given in the catalog. He or she shall indemnify the San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo against all legal or other proceedings in regard thereto, as well as any damage or injury to any other person or property, cause by the exhibitor or any of the animals exhibited with such exhibition or any of the animals exhibited, even if caused by the negligence of the San Angelo Stock Show & Rodeo. Exhibitor and each signatory hereto, and any servant, agent, family member or employee of the Exhibitor hereby waives all right to sue the San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo, even as a result of the Stock Show's negligence or any matter related to exhibiting in the San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo or making any challenge to our determination of a violation of its rules.

- **1. Rules:** All general rules apply to all shows within this division, as do the rules stated in the Junior Show Specific Rules and Regulations section and the specific show pages. It is the exhibitor's responsibility to know and understand each and all of the rules applicable to them and their exhibits.
- **2. Eligibility:** The term "exhibitor" shall mean the bonafide owner of the project. To be eligible to compete in the Junior Show exhibitors must:
  - Reside and attend school in Texas.
  - ➤ Be a bonafide member of a Texas 4-H Club or FFA Chapter, who have continuously owned and personally fed and cared for their animals under the direct supervision of a CEA or AST.
  - > Be enrolled and attend a public, private or home school elementary or secondary school in
  - ➤ Be between the ages of 9 and 18 on or before August 31, 2018, or 8 years old and in the third grade.
- **3. Social Security Number Requirement:** All exhibitors and contestants must have a personal Social Security Number to be eligible to participate in the San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo. Social Security Number must be recorded on entry forms.
- **4. Scholastic Eligibility:** All 4-H and FFA members are considered to be eligible by the San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo for participation in the Junior Livestock Show at the time entry applications are received from the AST/CEA. Any AST/CEA who has a member that becomes ineligible to participate, for any reason, must provide written and signed notification to Show Management at least 24 hours prior to any Junior Show activity in which the ineligible exhibitor is to participate. If an exhibitor is ineligible, then the entry is ineligible.
- **5. Foreign Exchange Students:** Non-United States citizens and Foreign Exchange students are ineligible for competition in the Junior Livestock Division. Such individuals are eligible to participate in the Open Division if all other requirements are met.

**6. Entry**: The San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo allows CEAs and ASTs in charge of 4-H Clubs or FFA Chapter programs the opportunity to enter members of their programs in the Junior Livestock Show, subject to the Junior Rules. These rules are only minimum requirements for participation in the Show and are not intended in any way to limit the right of any CEA or AST, or the Texas A&M AgriLife Extension or the Texas Education Agency, to impose additional requirements as they may deem necessary regarding participation in the Junior Livestock Show. The opportunity to enter 4-H Club and FFA members' projects in the Junior Livestock Show is made available only to CEAs and ASTs supervising these Junior Show projects. In no event are these rules to be construed as making any offer or opportunity available to any 4-H club or FFA member. In no event shall any CEA or AST be considered to be an agent of the San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo for any purpose.

All entries in the Junior Livestock Show must be made by the CEA or AST under whose supervision the animals were fed. The CEA or AST must certify on the entry form that the animal and the owner(s) are eligible under the rules of this show. It is the responsibility of the CEA or AST to read all rules and check each entry form carefully before signing it. If entries are not correctly submitted they will be returned. Entries submitted by anyone other than the CEA or AST will be returned.

Entries must be submitted online by the CEA or AST and further directions on steps to follow are available on the website. CEA's and AST's must submit the original paper entry form with original signatures from the exhibitor, the exhibitor's parent and/or guardian, and the CEA or AST overseeing the project. Entry forms must also be submitted for all Ag Mechanics projects and these must be signed by the CEA or AST. All entries submitted must have original signatures- photocopied or faxed signatures will NOT be accepted. Copying the entries before submitting them for personal records will be allowed.

All entries must be made together and paid by one check payable to the San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo, and sent in by the county agent or vocational agriculture teacher with the entry forms. Payment must be in the form of a school check, 4-H club check or money order. Personal checks will not be accepted for junior entries. All Judging Contest and Ag Speaking entries and payment will be handled through judgingcard.com

**7. Quality Counts Verification:** All junior show exhibitors are required to have gone through the Quality Counts program, complete and pass the on-line test through which they will be assigned a unique verification number. Each exhibitor's verification numbers must be recorded on their entry forms at the time of entry. This rule applies to ALL Junior Market Shows and Junior Breeding Shows.

Judging Contests, Agriculture Mechanics, Ag Science Fair, Robotics, Food Challenge and Ag Speaking Contest exhibitors are exempt from this requirement. Though it is strongly encouraged, Youth Longhorn exhibitors will not be required to take this test.

Please refer to the website <a href="http://qualitycounts.tamu.edu">http://qualitycounts.tamu.edu</a> for information on how to become verified.

**8. Ownership:** Exhibitors must own their animals/projects at the beginning of and throughout the entire feed and fitting period. Exhibitors must feed, care for, and exhibit their animals/projects without any aid or assistance during the entire feeding and fitting period except from the exhibitor's parents/guardian, CEA, AST or other 4-H or FFA members from the 4-H Club or FFA Chapter from which the animals/projects are entered. Show Management will rule on all issues regarding ownership (i.e. Ribbon, Premium, or Other Auction/Sale).

**9. Ownership/Fitting Periods:** The required ownership and fitting periods are:

Market Animals: Validation and/or sales receipt will be used to verify ownership date for market animals.

Market Steers July 1, 2018

Market Lambs November 1, 2018
Market Goats November 1, 2018
Market Barrows December 1, 2018

<u>Breeding Animals</u>: Original Registration Certificates will be used to verify ownership date for breeding animals with the exception of the Stars Gilt Show, Texas Star Wether Dams and Does. Animals must be registered in the Herdbook of their Association in only the name of the Junior owner on or before the required ownership date (see below). Original registration certificates must state the name of the Junior owner only.

Purchase, delivery, possession, transfer and registration must all take place on or before the required ownership date listed below. Superintendents will check Original Registration Certificates at the time of check-in. Registration certificates must be available at all times.

Breeding Sheep: October 1, 2018 (Must be validated through Breeding Sheep Validation by November 1, 2018)

Angora Wethers: October 1, 2018

Boer Goats: October 1, 2018 (State Validated through Breeding Goat Validation by November 1, 2018)

Texas Star Wether Does: October 1, 2018 (State Validated through Lamb & Goat Validation by November 1, 2018)

Texas Star Wether Dams: October 1, 2018 (State Validated through Lamb & Goat Validation by November 1, 2018)

Breeding Beef Heifers: November 1, 2018 (Must be validated through Texas 4-H and FFA Breeding

Heifer Validation administered by the Texas AgriLife Extension Service and the

Texas Education Agency by November 14, 2018.)

Angora Goats: December 1, 2018

Breeding Swine: December 1, 2018 (Must be state validated through Swine Validation)

- 10. Partnerships: Partnership animals are not eligible in the Junior Show.
- **11. Dual Show Entry:** Animals entered in the Junior Breeding Sheep Show and Junior Boer Goat Show may also enter their respective Open Shows.
- **12. Ineligible Animals:** Any animal that has sold at auction at any major livestock show is not eligible for the Junior Show.
- **13.** Ineligible Exhibitors: Exhibitors placing a Grand Champion Market Steer, Lamb, Barrow or Goat are not eligible to participate in the respective species in future shows.
- **14. Substitute Exhibitors:** All entries in the Junior Show must be exhibited and sold by the owners. Exception: A substitute exhibitor will be allowed to show in place of the owner under the following circumstances:
  - When an exhibitor has more than one entry in one class or another entry in the Junior Show and cannot be present.
  - When an exhibitor is ill or injured. (Must be accompanied by a doctor's note)
  - Approved school activity or state testing (Must be accompanied by a statement from a school official on official school letterhead). Attending school does not constitute.

The substitute must be an eligible Junior exhibitor from the same 4-H Club or FFA Chapter entered in the same department of the show. Parents, teachers, extension agents or other adults will not be allowed to show. Substitutions are not allowed for academic ineligibility.

Previous exhibitors of Grand Champions in the Jr. Market Steer, Jr. Market Barrow, Jr. Market Lamb and Jr. Market Goat shows may not serve as a substitute exhibitor in the respective division.

In any and all situations the Superintendent of the show and staff may use his/her own discretion as to whether a substitute showman will be allowed.

- **15. Refunds:** Refunds will not be made for any reason.
- **16. Country of Origin:** To meet Country of Origin labeling requirements, any and all market animals entered and/or exhibited must be bred, born and raised in the United States of America. Please check specific show rules for additional eligibility regulations on market animals, such as Junior Market Lambs must be Texas bred.
- **17. Stalling:** All junior shows will be stalled upon arrival to the San Angelo Fairgrounds with the exception of Junior Market Lambs and Junior Market Goats, entries in these shows will be pre-stalled. To pen together, groups must arrive and remain in line together.
- **18. Terminal Shows:** This is a terminal show for all market lambs, market barrows, and market goats, as well as steers placing 1<sup>st</sup> or 2<sup>nd</sup>. All market lambs, market barrows, market goats and 1<sup>st</sup> and 2<sup>nd</sup> place steers must go to the market. Non-placing steers may be sold at the market price or they may be released.
- **19. Sift, Non-Place, Premium and Auction Checks:** Owners will be paid by the San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo for sifted and non-placing animals based on weigh-in weight. Checks will be mailed directly from the San Angelo Stock Show. If applicable, premium monies for class placings will be distributed by the San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo and mailed with sifted and non-placing checks to the 4-H or FFA address. Auction sale checks will be issued by the San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo and may be mailed separate from premium checks and floor checks directly to the exhibitors mailing address.

#### **Market Animal Disposition**

The San Angelo Stock Show & Rodeo strives to ensure a fair price for market animal projects. Market conditions may dictate the sale of market animals be conducted through local terminal markets (i.e. sale barns, etc). The San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo reserves the right to charge the exhibitor freight, yardage, and any and all marketing fees applicable to the sale of each animal. Any animal deemed unmerchantable due to lameness, illness, etc. will receive no value.

- **20. Disqualification:** In the event an exhibitor engages in any conduct which results in disqualification, the San Angelo Stock show and Rodeo Association, may, in its sole discretion, prohibit future participation by the exhibitor and all members of the exhibitor's family, in any event which San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo sponsors.
- **21. Weighing:** Market steer, barrow, lamb and goat exhibitors will turn in their official show weight. The management reserves the right to weigh-back any animal at any time. Animals not weighing within the defined range set forth by the specific show rules are subject to a \$10.00/cwt fee.

- **22. Bedding:** Bedding is included with stalls. Any and all additional bedding must be purchased from Show Management. No outside shavings will be allowed. Straw will be allowed in for cattle tie-outs only.
- **23. Health Papers:** Health papers are not required for junior market animals; however, they are required for all breeding animals and will be checked at the gate of entry. Refer to Animal Health Regulations for full details.
- **24. Blocking Tables & Trim Chutes:** Blocking tables or any form of stanchion will not be allowed during the Market Lamb and Goat shows. Trim chutes will not be allowed during the Junior Market Steer or Breeding Heifer Shows.

#### **ANIMAL HEALTH REGULATIONS**

San Angelo Stock Show officials are allowed to impose animal health requirements that are more restrictive than those imposed by the Texas Animal Health Commission (TAHC). Specific TAHC regulations will supersede the Show requirements if there is a dispute between the two in which the Show rules are less restrictive than TAHC regulations. The show considers itself an interstate (accepting entries of livestock from within Texas and from other states) show for livestock entries. Exhibitors with livestock originating outside the State of Texas are encouraged to contact their state Animal Health officials to confirm specific requirements, if any, their state may impose on animals returning from a Texas show.

**CERTIFICATE OF VETERINARY INSPECTION:** The certificate must indicate that the accredited veterinarian found the animals or fowl to be free of symptoms or evidence of communicable disease and that all tests, immunizations, or treatments required by the Commission were completed. For certain diseases, a specific statement may be required indicating disease free status. The certificate is required to accompany animals and fowl entering the State of Texas as stated in the following summary of entry requirements. The certificate is valid for 45 days for equine and 30 days for all other species.

**PRIOR ENTRY PERMITS**: Entry permits are required as noted in the following summary of entry requirements. Permits may be obtained by calling 512/719-0777(24 hours), or 1/800-550-8242 or by writing the Texas Animal Health Commission, 2105 Kramer Lane, P.O. Box 12966, Austin, Texas 78711-2966.

#### **ROUTINE INSPECTION PROCEDURES**

- 1. Representatives of the Show should meet all incoming livestock vehicles at entry gate to Show Grounds.
- 2. At this point, all required documents will be inspected as well as a visual inspection of the shipment.
- 3. If shipment meets all requirements, the driver will then be allowed on grounds.
- 4. If the shipment does NOT meet the requirements, they will be asked to pull from the flow of traffic. Show Officials will then take necessary steps to correct the issue or dismiss the animals from premises. However at NO time will these animals be allowed on grounds to co-mingle with others.

#### **CATTLE**

**BEEF CATTLE** 

- 1. Certificate of Veterinary Inspection issued within the past thirty (30) days if any out-of-state cattle are exhibited.
- 2. All bulls entering for show purposes, only, which are more than (12) months of age may enter with an entry permit in lieu of the Trich test. Bulls permitted for entry into the State of Texas under the provisions of this subsection shall not be commingled with female cattle or used for breeding. Bulls that stay in the state more than sixty (60) days must be tested negative for trichomoniasis with an official Polymerase Chain Reaction (PCR) test.

#### JUNIOR MARKET STEERS

1. Certificate of Veterinary Inspection is **NOT** required.

#### **GOATS**

OPEN & JUNIOR BREEDING GOATS & JUNIOR ANGORA GOATS

- 1. Certificate of Veterinary Inspection current within thirty (30) days.
- 2. Sexually intact animals must have official USDA Scrapie Eradication Program Identification.

3. Registered animals may use a registration tattoo or electronic identification (accompanied by reader) "as official identification"; as long as registration papers accompany the animal with the Scrapie Premise ID number.

#### JUNIOR MARKET GOATS

1. Certificate of Veterinary Inspection is **NOT** required.

#### **SHEEP**

TEXAS ORIGIN SHEEP (Jr. Breeding Sheep, Open Breeding Sheep, Ewe Lambs)

- 1. Certificate of Veterinary Inspection issued within the past thirty (30) days.
- 2. Sexually intact animals must have official USDA Scrapie Eradication Program Identification.

OUT OF STATE ORIGIN SHEEP (Jr. Breeding Sheep, Open Breeding Sheep, Ewe Lambs)

- 1. Must meet the same requirements as for Texas Origin Sheep.
- 2. Negative ELISA brucella ovis test within thirty (30) days for all breeding rams 6 months of age or older. Each ram shall be individually identified with an individual ear tag or registration tattoo. This number, along with the test results and name of the approved laboratory and date of test, shall be entered on the Certificate of Veterinary Inspection. Exemption for rams from a certified brucella ovis free flock and Texas origin rams; certified flock number must be recorded on the Certificate of Veterinary Inspection.
- 3. All blackface ovine females and all blackface crossbred females, except hair sheep, imported into the State of Texas for breeding purposes shall originate from a Scrapie Certified Free Flock or have documentation supporting that the animals are of the genotype RR at codon 171 or AA at codon 136 and QR at codon 171.

#### JUNIOR MARKET LAMBS

1. Certificate of Veterinary Inspection is **NOT** required.

#### **SWINE**

#### **BREEDING GILTS**

- 1. All certificates must be issued on or after January 15, 2019, with the following information:
  - A. Leptospirosis vaccination is required on breeding swine within 30 days prior to date of the sale (on or after January 15, 2019) with vaccine containing the following strains: Canicola, Hardjo, Icterohaemorrhagiae, Grippotyphosa, and Pomona. Vaccination date must appear on the health certificate.
  - B. A statement must appear that says the animal has not been fed garbage, has not been exposed to hog cholera or pseudorabies, does not originate from a quarantined herd, nor has the herd of origin had PRV within the last six months, nor have the entries themselves been vaccinated for PRV.
  - C. Gilt identification must be included on health certificate in form of validation number and ear notches.

<sup>\*</sup>All health certificates left in possession of show management at the conclusion of all Gilt Shows will be disposed of. Exhibitors must pick up health certificate in Livestock Office before leaving the fairgrounds.\*

# JUNIOR MARKET BARROWS

1. Certificate of Veterinary Inspection is **NOT** required.

# **LLAMAS**

# **ALL LLAMAS**

- 1. Certificate of Veterinary Inspection current within thirty (30) days of show.
- 2. An entry permit on any llamas entering the state of Texas.

# SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAMS SAN ANGELO STOCK SHOW FOUNDATION.

The San Angelo Stock Show Foundation Scholarship fund will make available \$1,000 renewable scholarships to qualifying high school seniors. The Scholarships may be used to attend a Texas vocational/technical school or accredited Texas college or university. Applicants must be 4-H, FFA or FHA members. Applicants do not have to pursue a career in agricultural or related fields.

#### **Eligibility Requirements:**

- ★ Member of 4-H, FFA or FHA
- ★ Resident of Texas
- ★ Must be or have been a participant of San Angelo Stock Show
- ★ Satisfactorily complete the requirements for a high school diploma in the spring of the current year OR for renewal recipients satisfactorily completed the previous semester(s) of college with an overall grade point average of 2.5
- ★ Be accepted to a Texas vocational/technical school or accredited Texas college or university OR for renewal recipients, be enrolled in a Texas vocational/technical school or accredited Texas college or university.
- ★ Enroll for a minimum of 12 hours.
- ★ Meet the minimum requirements for the educational institution of their choice if graduating from high school this year.
- \* Renewal applicants must submit fall grades by January 15<sup>th</sup> to receive funding for the spring semester and July 15<sup>th</sup> to receive funding for the fall semester. Reports received after these dates will result in loss of funding for the semester.
- ★ Applicant must have taken either the ACT or SAT to be eligible.
- ★ Scholarships must be claimed within one year of high school graduation or the scholarship will be forfeited.

To obtain application contact: San Angelo Stock Show Foundation Scholarship Committee 200 West 43<sup>rd</sup> Street

San Angelo, Texas 76903 - (325)653-7785

www.sanangelorodeo.com or e-mail linda@sanangelorodeo.com

Application deadline is April 1, 2019

# SHOW SCHOLARSHIP & INCENTIVES SHOW SCHOLARSHIPS

The Texas Stars Doe Show will be awarding scholarships to the Top 5 Overall Does in varying amounts. Exhibitors must meet the following requirements to be eligible.

#### **Eligibility Requirements:**

- ★ Member of 4-H, FFA or FHA
- ★ Resident of Texas
- ★ Must be or have been a participant of San Angelo Stock Show
- ★ Satisfactorily complete the requirements for a high school diploma in the spring of the current year OR for renewal recipients satisfactorily completed the previous semester(s) of college with an overall grade point average of 2.5
- ★ Be accepted to a Texas vocational/technical school or accredited Texas college or university OR for renewal recipients, be enrolled in a Texas vocational/technical school or accredited Texas college or university.
- ★ Enroll for a minimum of 12 hours.
- ★ Meet the minimum requirements for the educational institution of their choice if graduating from high school this year.
- \* Renewal applicants must submit fall grades by January 15<sup>th</sup> to receive funding for the spring semester and July 15<sup>th</sup> to receive funding for the fall semester. Reports received after these dates will result in loss of funding for the semester.
- ★ Applicant must have taken either the ACT or SAT to be eligible.
- ★ Scholarships must be claimed within one year of high school graduation or the scholarship will be forfeited.

#### BREEDING LIVESTOCK SHOW INCENTIVE PROGRAM

Cash Incentives will be awarded to the Grand and Reserve Grand Champion in the Junior Breeding Livestock Shows. The Grand Champion will receive \$500 and the Reserve Grand Champion will receive \$250. Incentives will be paid following the San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo by check with other premium monies. Exhibitors may receive multiple incentives in all breed show.

The following shows are eligible for incentives:

Sheep & Goat Shows	<u>Heifer Shows</u>	Stars Gilt Show
Jr. Ewe Lamb Futurity	Jr. Angus Heifer	Division I Non-Pedigreed Gilt
Jr. Delaine Ewe	Jr. Beefmaster Heifer	Division II Non-Pedigreed Gilt
Jr. Rambouillet Ewe	Jr. Brangus Heifer	Division III Non- Pedigreed Gilt
Jr. Dorper Ewe	Jr. Chianina Heifer	Berkshire Gilt
Jr. White Dorper Ewe	Jr. Hereford Heifer	Chester White Gilt
Jr. Other Wool/ Medium Wool Ewe	Jr. Limousin Heifer	Duroc Gilt
Jr. Angora Doe	Jr. Maine-Anjou Heifer	Hampshire Gilt
Jr. Full Blood Boer Doe	Jr. Red Angus Heifer	Landrace Gilt
Jr. Percentage Boer Doe	Jr. Santa Gertrudis Heifer	Poland China Gilt
	Jr. Shorthorn Heifer	Spotted Gilt
Jr. Breeding Gilt Show	Jr. Simbrah Heifer	Yorkshire Gilt
Jr. Berkshire	Jr. Simmental Heifer	
Jr. Black OPB Gilt	Jr. ARB Heifer	<u>Other</u>
Jr. Duroc Gilt	Jr. ORB Heifer	Youth Llama
Jr. Hampshire Gilt		

Jr. Spot Gilt Jr. White OPB Gilt Jr. Yorkshire Gilt

#### JUDGING CONTEST INCENTIVE PROGRAM

Cash Incentives will be awarded to the High Point and 2<sup>nd</sup> High Point Senior individual in the Junior Judging Contests. High point individuals will receive a \$1,000 cash incentive and the 2<sup>nd</sup> highest ranked individual will receive a \$500 cash incentive. Incentives will be made payable to the individual following the San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo by check with other premium monies and mailed to the county extension agent or ag science teacher through which the student entered. The following contests are eligible:

Judging Contests
Wildlife Judging
Meats Judging
Wool & Mohair Judging – Wool Division Only

Consumer Decision Making Contest

The Livestock Judging Contest will award \$1,500 to the high point senior individual, \$1,000 to the second high point senior individual, and \$500 to the third high point senior individual.

#### **CALF SCRAMBLE**

Dr. Cody Scott, Superintendent



Entry Deadline: December 1, 2018- Postmarked Scramble Dates: Saturday, February 2 at 1:00 p.m.

Saturday, February 2 at 7:30 p.m. Sunday February 3 at 2:00 p.m. Saturday, February 9 at 1:00 p.m.

**Scholarship Scramble:** Saturday, February 9 at 7:30 p.m.

- 1. The San Angelo Stock Show & Rodeo Association will not be responsible for any accidents connected with this contest.
- 2. Qualifications for contestants:
  - A. The first 80 complete and correct entries received in the Stock Show Office will be eligible. (Entries open September 15 and the entry deadline is December 1, 2018)
  - B. Ages 13-18. Must have reached 13th, but not 19th birthday on or by February 1, 2019.
  - C. Open to all 4-H and FFA contestants in the state of Texas.
  - D. Must have been actively participating in Texas 4-H Club work for one year prior to February 1, 2018 or enrolled in a Texas Vocational Agricultural class for the fall term just preceding.
  - E. Contestants will be selected by 4-H and FFA supervisors.
  - F. Contestants are only allowed to compete in one of the four preliminary scrambles.
- 3. There will be four (4) go-rounds, one each during performances on Saturday, February 2 at 1:00 p.m., Saturday, February 2 at 7:30 p.m., Sunday, February 3 at 2:00 p.m. and Saturday, February 9 at 1:00 p.m. The top 4 in each go-round (16 total) will compete on Saturday, February 9 at 7:30 p.m. in the Scholarship Scramble.
- 4. There will be a five (5) minute time limit to catch a calf and lead it across the finish line. If after five minutes calves remain, one (1) minute will be allowed to catch and halter a calf. At this time, if any remain, the one (1) minute will be allowed to catch a calf. Judges will score according to this time frame and decisions of the committee are final.
- 5. Buckles will be awarded to the first place winner in the first four go-rounds.
- 6. Ten (10) calves will be turned into the arena the first 4 go-rounds, with 8 in the Scholarship Scramble. Contestants and calves will be placed in the arena as determined by management.
- 7. Contestants will carry into the arena a halter with attached ten foot rope. Neither the halter nor the rope will be used as a lariat. The halter must be placed on the animal in the usual way. The halter and rope will be supplied by the San Angelo Stock Show. No shoes with spikes, cleats or knobs on soles can be worn.
- 8. Contestants will not be allowed to work as a "team", but each contestant will attempt to catch and lead one of the calves. Each contestant catching a calf will be required to lead that calf across the finish line without aid. After catching a calf and placing the lead on the calf, the contestant will not be permitted to

fasten the rope to himself/herself in any manner to aid in leading the calf over the finish line. If two or more contestants catch the same calf, they will be ordered by the referee to release the calf.

- 9. If a contestant has hold of a calf, no other contestant will be allowed to touch the calf unless and until it breaks away. If a calf is caught by the tail, the contestant catching the calf shall be allowed a reasonable amount of time to place the halter; however, at the direction of the referee, the contestant will let the calf go.
- 10. Poor sportsmanship will disqualify any contestant automatically and undue roughness will not be tolerated by the referee. This scramble will be refereed by a group of not less than four (4) referees.
- 11. Each contestant must submit an entry form and Minor's Release to the Stock Show Association through his/her County Extension Agent or Ag Science Teacher. After all releases are checked and accepted by the Stock Show, each contestant will be notified of his/her acceptance as a contestant and the date and time he/she is to participate.
- 12. The Interscholastic League State Executive Committee, in cooperation with the State Board of Vocational Education has formulated a plan permitting calf scrambles and still protecting a contestant's amateur standing. This is done by placing the matter under the supervision of the Vocational Agricultural Department of the school and 4-H Club supervisors, and prohibiting the participants from receiving anything of cash value for winning the athletic part of the program.
- 13. Go-round scramble awards: A purchase certificate will be issued to each of the ten (10) contestants catching a calf in one of the three go-rounds in the following amounts:

1st – Advance to Finals\* 3rd – Advance to Finals\* 5th - \$110 7th - \$80 9th - \$60 2nd – Advance to Finals\* 4th – Advance to Finals\* 6th - \$100 8th - \$70 10th - \$50 \*Top four advance to Finals and are guaranteed at least a \$250 certificate. However, if a student receives a scholarship, no scramble certificate will be awarded.

14. Scholarship Scramble Awards: Scholarships will be awarded to places 1-8 in the Scholarship Scramble. No scramble certificate will be issued to scholarship recipients. Scholarships will be awarded in full upon receipt of proof of enrollment in a Texas vocational/technical school or accredited Texas College or University. Payments for places 1-8 will be made directly to the college or university. Places 9-16 will receive purchase certificates in the amount of \$250.

1st - \$2,000 scholarship	6th - \$500 scholarship	11th - \$250 certificate
2nd - \$1,000 scholarship	7th - \$500 scholarship	12th - \$250 certificate
3rd - \$1,000 scholarship	8th - \$500 scholarship	13th - \$250 certificate
4th - \$1,000 scholarship	9th - \$250 certificate	14th - \$250 certificate
5th - \$500 scholarship	10th - \$250 certificate	15th - \$250 certificate
		16th - \$250 certificate

15. Certificate Redemption: Scramble certificates must be completed and received by the SASSRA office no later than December 1, 2019. Certificates may be used to purchase an animal of any species or sex that will be a part of the student's 4-H or FFA project. Any animals purchased are NOT required to show at a future San Angelo Stock Show. Certificates may also be used for other project needs including but not limited to feed bills, clippers, etc. All non-animal purchases must have prior approval by a SASSRA staff member in writing. Any certificate received for a non-animal purchase without approval, may not be funded, thus the exhibitor will be responsible for such expenses.

## **SPONSORED BY:**



#### LIVESTOCK PREMIUM SALE

Saturday, February 16, 2019 2:00 p.m. – Sale Pavilion

Raliegh Little, Premium Fund Chairman Steve Morris, Sale Production Chairman

1. All animals selected for the sale are required to sell. The following animals will be eligible for the sale:

**72 Lambs-** 1<sup>st</sup> – 4<sup>th</sup> Place Finewool, Finewool Cross, Southdown, & Medium Wool 1<sup>st</sup>-2<sup>nd</sup> Place Dorper Lambs

**26 Steers-** 1<sup>st</sup> – 2<sup>nd</sup> Place Steers in each class

**84 Barrows-** 1<sup>st</sup> – 3<sup>rd</sup> Place Barrows in each class

**40 Wether Goats-** 1<sup>st</sup> – 4<sup>th</sup> Place in each class

- 2. The buyer pays amount bid and will not receive credit for the packer price. Buyers are responsible for paying the full amount of any and all bids submitted. All monies collected from the packer for the premium sale animals will be used to fund the Junior Breeding Livestock Show incentive program and additional premium sale monies.
- 3. All first and second place animals qualifying for the Premium Sale <u>MUST</u> have their photos made with the Official Show Photographers before placing their animals on the truck.
- 4. All exhibitors from Grand Champion down through second place must attend the sale. Grand and Reserve Grand Champion Overall will walk through the sale ring with animals. All other breed champions, reserve breed champions, first and second places must be present at the sale. Exhibitors placing third and lower will not present in the sale ring and are not required to attend the sale. Exhibitors with animals placing third or lower will be guaranteed a sale price at a date close to the premium sale and will be eligible for add-ons.
- 5. A substitute exhibitor will be allowed to show in place of the owner under the following circumstances:
  - ★ When an exhibitor is ill or injured. (Must be accompanied by a doctor's note)
  - ★ Approved school activity or state testing. (Must be accompanied by a statement from a school official on school letterhead.)

All documentation must be presented prior to the onset of the premium sale to Show Management. A substitute exhibitor from the same county/FFA who does not already have a position in the sale will be allowed to present in the ring. If there is no other exhibitor from the same club or chapter, another exhibitor present at the premium sale will be sufficient.

- 6. The Stock Show and Rodeo Association guarantees each steer sold in the Premium Sale a price of \$500 above the packer price, provided a packer bid is available.
- 7. There will be no guaranteed minimum price for the market lambs, barrows or goats.
- 8. There will be no commission charge for this sale. Junior Exhibitors selling animals in the Premium Sale will receive payment by check, by mail after the show closes and upon payment by the buyer for the full amount of the price.

- 9. Animals that are sold through the auction ring cannot be bought back by the exhibitor. Any exhibitor, or anyone acting for an exhibitor, who is found guilty of asking a purchaser to either give him his animal or sell it back to him will be barred from further participation in this show and forfeit all premiums and sale money above market value of the animal.
- 10. Any animal which has sold at auction at any major livestock show is not eligible for the sale.
- 11. All exhibitors must arrange to take care of all animals entered in any show as long as they remain on the grounds. Only live animals at delivery will be paid for.
- 12. Non-premium sale animals will be sold on packer bid. Pay weight will be the official show weight. All calves must be supplied with a good rope halter. Animals not exhibited in any market class will not be eligible for any sale. All market steers not eligible for the Premium Sale will be sold at packers bid unless reported as NO SALE with the Superintendent as the steer leaves the show ring. There will be no exceptions to this rule.
- 13. In the event the San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo is unable to obtain an adequate packer bid, all animals will remain in the possession of the exhibitor and will be taken home by the exhibitor.
- 14. Exhibitors participating in the Premium Sale are required to write a "Thank You" letter to all buyers of their lot(s). Exhibitors are not required to mail these to Show Management.

All sales are F.O.B. Fairgrounds.

#### JUNIOR MARKET STEER SHOW

Jimmy Belcher, Superintendent John Kellermeier, Co-Superintendent

Entry Fee: \$38.00 per head –Limit 2 Entries Per Exhibitor

Entry Deadline: December 1, 2018 Postmark (Double fees Dec. 2- Dec. 15)

Arrival Time: 8:00 a.m., Tuesday, February 12, 2019
In Place: 4:00 p.m., Tuesday, February 12, 2019
Turn Weights In: 5:00 p.m., Tuesday, February 12, 2019

Time of Show: 9:00 a.m., Wednesday, February 13, 2019 (ALL Breeds)

Judge: Brady Jensen, Brookings, South Dakota

- 1. All rules apply to the Junior Steer Show. Please refer to the General Rules and Junior Show Rules.
- 2. To be eligible to exhibit in the 2019 Steer Show, all steers must be validated in the Texas 4-H and FFA Steer Validation Program. Each entry must have been recorded on a 4-H or FFA Steer Validation Form Master List between June 1 and June 30. Exhibitors must have owned and cared for their steers continuously since June 30, 2018.

A hair follicle sample will be collected from all breed champions and all reserve breed champions and DNA analysis will be conducted on each of these hair follicle samples. The Steer Committee may also collect a hair follicle sample from any other steer entry from the purpose of conducting a DNA analysis. Any steer not having a positive match from the DNA analysis of this hair follicle sample, compared to the DNA analysis of the hair follicle sample taken from it at the time of enrollment in the validation program will be disqualified. The first and second place steers in each class will be nose printed. The Steer Committee may also nose print any other steer entry for the purpose of identification.

Steers arriving at the show without an official Texas Steer Tag must be validated by the Steer Committee. The official State Validation tags will be the show tag. Separate tags will not be issued.

- 3. Previous exhibitors of the Grand Champion Steer are not eligible to enter the Junior Steer Show.
- 4. Each exhibitor will be permitted to enter no more than two (2) steers.
- 5. Steers will be stalled in the Housley Communications Cattle Barn located North-East of the Coliseum. Enter Gate 6 off of 50<sup>th</sup> Street/Lake View Veterans Memorial Drive. Stalling assignments will be made upon arrival.
- 6. Official disposition forms must be picked up at the time of check in. Exhibitors will be required to turn in official disposition cards (Herein after referred to as weight cards) after the completion of the Self-Check-In process at the kiosks located in the Sale Pavilion.

To check in, Exhibitors will scan the independent barcode located on the weight card. Exhibitors will be prompted by the kiosk to enter all information from the weight cards, such as breed, weight, etc. The Self-Check-In process is subject to change. All four weight cards must be filled out in addition to the information entered in the kiosk. The information entered into the kiosk at Self-Check-In must match the weight cards and will prevail in the instance of a discrepancy. All information must be entered into the kiosk and weight

cards turn into show personnel by 5:00 pm on the day of check-in. There will be no official weigh in. There will be no preset weight breaks.

After completing the Self-Check-In, the kiosk will generate a confirmation receipt. It is the responsibility of the Exhibitor to ensure that all information on the receipt is correct. Exhibitors must submit the weight cards in its entirety to show personnel, who will then give the exhibitor a portion back that will be required for placement on the truck. It is recommended that exhibitors keep confirmation receipts from the kiosk throughout the duration of the show.

Superintendents will break classes immediately following the weight card & Self-Check-In deadline.

- 7. Steers must weigh a minimum of 1000 pounds. Any steer weighed in under this will be sifted.
- 8. The Steer Show Superintendent will have the right to weigh any animal in the barn at any time. Any animal not weighing within 5% of the weight turned in will be sifted and assessed a \$10.00 cwt. penalty. Any re-weighed steer weighing less than 1000 pounds will be sifted.
- 9. Steers will be designated for re-weighing during judging in the show arena at a time designated by the Superintendent. Any steer leaving the show ring and later returning for additional judging may be reweighed. Any steer weighing more than 5% above his initial official show weight will become ineligible for any award or the premium sale.
- 10. Steers will be shown in four breed classifications. These four breed classifications are: English Breeds, American Breeds & Crosses, Black European Breeds & Crosses & Other European Breeds & Crosses. Purebred Hereford, Polled Hereford, Angus, Red Angus and Shorthorn will be classified as English breeds. Steers that exhibit visibly obvious characteristics of Bos indicus genetics that support the commercial industry will be classified as American Breeds & Crosses. Steers not classified as English Breeds or American Breeds & Crosses will be classified as European Breeds & Crosses.
  - English Breeds Purebred Angus, Hereford, Polled Hereford, Red Angus, & Shorthorn Steers.
  - American Breeds & Crosses Any steer that exhibits visibly obvious characteristics of bos indicus genetics i.e. ear length and amount of hide & hump crest. Includes purebred Brahman, Brangus, Santa Gertrudis, Simbrah & other American Breed Crosses.
  - Black European Breeds & Crosses: To include purebred black Limousin, Maine-Anjou & Simmental cattle AND any cross bred calf.
    - Must have a black body cavity. Defined as the area behind the top of the shoulder blade down to the point of the shoulder and above the belly line.
    - White in the body cavity is only acceptable in the following instances:
      - § White is a continuation of the feathering
      - § White is at the fore and/or rear flanks similar to Hereford color pattern
      - § White spotting not collectively larger than 9 inches (basketball size) in diameter per side (cannot be all on the same side)
    - Skunk tail cattle are permitted provided the white above the rectum does not exceed the amount of white spotting allowed (basketball size)
    - Absent of diluter gene
    - No roan or brindle cattle permitted
  - -Other European Breeds & Crosses: Steers of any coloration pattern are acceptable.

- \*For complete listing of breed standards please review the 2017-2021 Texas Show Steer Breed Classification Guidelines.
- 11. A three-man classifying system will be used for classifying all steers.
- 12. No sifted steers will be sold. All sifted steers are required to leave grounds immediately.
- 13. All steers to be floored should be taken to the floor pen, outside the show arena, immediately following their class. All floored animals MUST be in the designated area by thirty minutes after the selection of the Grand Champion Steer. After the thirty minute time period following the show, animals are not guaranteed the ability to be floored. Steers may not be floored without a valid and correct disposition form.
- 14. All steers must be shorn prior to arrival at the fairgrounds. Hair must not exceed ¼" on any location of the body excluding the tail switch.
- 15. No trimming on the grounds. No trim chutes.
- 16. The Champion steer from each breed division will compete for Grand Champion Steer. Reserve Champion steers from each breed division are required to be brought into the arena. The Reserve Champion Steer from the breed division furnishing the Grand Champion Steer will become eligible to compete for Reserve Grand Champion Steer.
- 17. The Grand Champion Steer, Reserve Grand Champion Steer and all first and second place steers must sell in the premium sale, and will not receive any additional premiums. The Stock Show & Rodeo Association guarantees each steer sold in the Premium Sale a premium price of \$500.00 above the packer bid, provided a packer bid available.
- 18. Health papers are not required.



19. Steers must be dehorned, polled or scurred. Scurs/horn growth must not exceed three inches from the base of the head.

#### **Premiums**

Places 1 & 2 in all classes must sell in the Premium Sale.

Place 3 - \$200.00 Place 5 - \$130.00 Place 4 - \$170.00 Place 6 - \$100.00

# Premium checks will be mailed to the Agent/Instructor following the show

#### **CLASSES**

Class 1 – English Breeds, Lightweight	Ribbons 1- 6
Class 2 – English Breeds, Medium Weight	Ribbons 1- 6
Class 3 – English Breeds, Heavyweight	Ribbons 1- 6
Class 4 – Champion English Breeds	Banneı
Class 5 – Reserve Champion English Breeds	Banneı
Class 6 – American Breeds & Crosses, Lightweight	Ribbons 1- 6
Class 7 – American Breeds & Crosses, Medium Weight	Ribbons 1- 6

Class 8 – American Breeds & Crosses, Heavyweight	Ribbons 1- 6
Class 9 – Champion American Breeds & Crosses	Banner
Class 10 – Reserve Champion American Breeds & Crosses	Banner
Class 11 – Black European Breeds & Crosses, Lightweight	
Class 12 – Black European Breeds & Crosses, Medium Weight	Ribbons 1- 6
Class 13 – Black European Breeds & Crosses, Heavyweight	Ribbons 1- 6
Class 14 – Champion Black European Breeds & Crosses	Banner
Class 15 – Reserve Champion Black European Breeds & Crosses	Banner
Class 16 – Other European Breeds & Crosses, Lightweight	
Class 17 – Other European Breeds & Crosses, Medium Lightweight	
Class 18 – Other European Breeds & Crosses, Medium Weight	Ribbons 1-6
Class 19 – Other European Breeds & Crosses, Heavyweight	Ribbons 1-6
Class 20 – Champion Other European Breeds & Crosses	Banner
Class 21 – Reserve Champion Other European Breeds & Crosses	Banner
Class 22 – Grand Champion Steer	Buckle & Banner
Class 23 – Reserve Grand Champion Steer	Buckle & Banner

One junior & one senior showmanship award will be presented.

#### JUNIOR MARKET BARROW SHOW

Dale Schwartz, Superintendent Cole Mikulik, Assistant Superintendent



Entry Fee: \$28.00 per head —Limit 2 Entries per Exhibitor

Entry Deadline: December 1, 2018 Postmark (Double fees Dec. 1- Dec. 15)

Arrival Time: 6:00 a.m., Tuesday, February 12, 2019
In Place: 3:00 p.m., Tuesday, February 12, 2019
Turn Weights In: 4:00 p.m., Tuesday, February 12, 2019

Time of Show: 8:00 a.m., Wednesday, February 13, 2019 (Hampshire, Light Cross, Dark Cross)

8:00 a.m., Thursday, February 14, 2019 (Duroc, LOPB, DOPB, Berkshire, Yorkshire)

Judge: AJ Genter, Archbold, OH

1. All rules apply to the Junior Barrow Show. Please refer to the General Rules and Junior Show Rules.

2. To be eligible to exhibit in the 2019 Barrow Show, all barrows must be validated in the Texas 4-H and FFA Swine Validation Program. Each entry must have been recorded on a 4-H or FFA Swine Validation Form Master List between November 1 and November 30. Exhibitors must have owned and cared for their barrows continuously since November 30, 2018.

A hair follicle sample will be collected from all breed champions and all reserve breed champions and a DNA analysis will be conducted on each of these samples. The Barrow Show Committee may also collect a hair sample from any other barrow entry for the purpose of conducting a DNA analysis. Any barrow not having a positive match from the DNA analysis of this hair follicle sample, compared to the DNA analysis of the hair follicle sample taken at the time of enrollment in the validation program, will be disqualified.

Validation tags will be used for identification. Separate tags will not be issued.

- 3. Previous exhibitors of the Grand Champion Barrow are not eligible to enter the Junior Barrow Show.
- 4. Each exhibitor will be permitted to enter no more than two (2) barrows.
- 5. Barrows will be stalled in the Livestock Barn #2. To enter the grounds for livestock unloading and loading, all trailers will enter the fairgrounds on the North side at Gate 6 off of Lake View Heroes Drive. There will be two lots indicated for trailer staging. At the direction of officials, trailers will be allowed to back up to the West Side of the Livestock Barn for unloading. Once unloaded, vehicles will exit Gate 2, circle back towards Gate 6 to proceed toward the trailer lot.

- 6. Pen assignments will be made upon arrival.
- 7. Official disposition forms must be picked up in front of the show office at the time of check in. Exhibitors will be required to turn in official disposition cards (Herein after referred to as weight cards) after the completion of the Self-Check-In process at the kiosks located in the Sale Pavilion.

To check in, Exhibitors will scan the independent barcode located on the weight card. Exhibitors will be prompted by the kiosk to enter all information from the weight cards, such as breed, weight, etc. The Self-Check-In process is subject to change. All four weight cards must be filled out in addition to the information entered in the kiosk. The information entered into the kiosk at Self-Check-In must match the weight cards and will prevail in the instance of a discrepancy. All information must be entered into the kiosk and weight cards turn into show personnel by 4:00 pm on the day of check-in.

After completing the Self-Check-In, the kiosk will generate a confirmation receipt. It is the responsibility of the Exhibitor to ensure that all information on the receipt is correct. Exhibitors must submit the weight cards in its entirety to show personnel, who will then give the exhibitor a portion back that will be required for placement on the truck. It is recommended that exhibitors keep confirmation receipts from the kiosk throughout the duration of the show.

Superintendents will break classes immediately following the weight card & Self-Check-In deadline.

- 8. Barrows weighing less than 240 pounds or more than 280 pounds will be sifted. There will be a 10 pound weigh back on both the top and bottom of the weight submitted.
- 9. The Barrow Show Superintendent will have the right to weigh any animal in the barn at any time. Any animal not weighing within 10 pounds of the weight turned in will be sifted and assessed a \$10.00 cwt. penalty.
- 10. Barrows will be designated for re-weighing during judging in the show arena at a time designated by the Superintendent. Any barrow leaving the show ring and later returning for additional judging will be reweighed. Any barrow not weighing within 10 pounds of his initial official show weight will become ineligible for any award or the premium sale.
- 11. There will be no clipping of barrows after arrival. No artificial color, paste, powder, oil or other dressing is allowed.
- 12. There will be no washing of feed pans in the wash rack at any time. Do not dump or wash pans inside the barn. Dumpsters will be located just outside the barn for excess feed and trash.
- 13. The Junior Market Barrow Show is a terminal show. All barrows arriving at the show must be sold (included sifted, non-placing and ribbon winning barrows) according to show procedure. In the event that the Stock Show is unable to obtain an adequate packer bid, all animals will remain in the possession of the exhibitor and will be taken home by the exhibitor.
- 14. All barrows remain the property of the exhibitor until they are loaded on the packer truck. Any unethical practice will release the show from liability and remains the responsibility of the exhibitor. In the event the Stock Show is unable to obtain an adequate packer bid, all animals will remain in the possession of the exhibitor and will be taken home by the exhibitor.

- 15. All animals that qualify for the sale must sell in the premium sale and will not receive any additionally premium monies.
- 16. Health Certificates are not required.
- 17. All  $1^{st}$  &  $2^{nd}$  place exhibitors are required to attend the premium sale.  $3^{rd}$  place exhibitors do <u>**NOT**</u> attend the sale but are eligible for add ons.
- 18. Hereford barrows will be allowed to show in the Dark OPB division.
- 19. Show management reserves the right to re-classify any barrow entered.

Note: Decision of the Superintendent shall be final.

### **Premiums**

# Places 1-3 will sell in the Premium Sale.

Place 4 - \$100.00 Place 7 - \$50.00 Place 5 - \$75.00 Place 8 - \$40.00 Place 6 - \$60.00 Place 9 - \$30.00 Place 10 - \$25.00

Premium checks will be mailed to the Agent/Instructor following the show.

### **CLASSES**

Class 1 – Hampshire	Ribbons 1- 10
Class 2 – Hampshire	Ribbons 1- 10
Class 3 – Hampshire	Ribbons 1- 10
Class 4 – Hampshire	
Class 5 – Champion Hampshire	. \$300, Buckle, Banner
Class 6 – Reserve Champion Hampshire	\$200, Buckle, Banner
Class 7 – Light Crossbred	Ribbons 1- 10
Class 8 – Light Crossbred	
Class 9 – Light Crossbred	Ribbons 1- 10
Class 10 – Light Crossbred	Ribbons 1- 10
Class 11 – Light Crossbred	
Class 12 – Champion Light Crossbred	\$300, Buckle, Banner
Class 13 – Reserve Champion Light Crossbred	\$200, Buckle, Banner
Class 14 – Dark Crossbred	
Class 15 – Dark Crossbred	Ribbons 1- 10
Class 16 – Dark Crossbred	Ribbons 1- 10
Class 17 – Dark Crossbred	
Class 18 – Dark Crossbred	Ribbons 1-10
Class 19 – Champion Dark Crossbred	\$300, Buckle, Banner
Class 20 – Reserve Champion Dark Crossbred	\$200, Buckle, Banner





Class 21 – Duroc	Ribbons 1- 10
Class 22 – Duroc	Ribbons 1- 10
Class 23 – Duroc	Ribbons 1- 10
Class 24 – Duroc	Ribbons 1- 10
Class 25 – Champion Duroc	\$300, Buckle, Banner
Class 26 – Reserve Champion Duroc	\$200, Buckle, Banner
Class 27 – Light OPB	
Class 28 – Light OPB	Ribbons 1- 10
Class 29 – Champion Light OPB	\$300, Buckle, Banner
Class 30 – Reserve Champion Light OPB	\$200, Buckle, Banner
	DU 1 10
Class 31 – Dark OPB	
Class 32 – Dark OPB	
Class 33 – Dark OPB	
Class 34 – Champion Dark OPB	
Class 35 – Reserve Champion Dark OPB	\$200, Buckle, Banner
Class 36 – Berkshire	Ribbons 1- 10
Class 37 – Berkshire	
Class 38 – Champion Berkshire	
Class 39 – Reserve Champion Berkshire	
Class 33 — Reserve Champion Berkshire	9200, Buckle, Ballilei
Class 40 – Yorkshire	Ribbons 1- 10
Class 41 – Yorkshire	Ribbons 1- 10
Class 42 – Yorkshire	Ribbons 1- 10
Class 43 – Champion Yorkshire	\$300, Buckle, Banner
Class 44 – Reserve Champion Yorkshire	
Class 45 – Grand Champion Barrow	
Class 46 – Reserve Grand Champion Barrow	Banner

One showmanship buckle will be presented.



#### BARROW SHOW CLASSIFICATION STANDARDS

\*Barrows will **NOT** be classified but must follow these classification standards when declaring breed at check in.\*

#### **BERKSHIRE**

- 1. Black and white with erect ears exhibiting Berkshire character.
- 2. A Berkshire must have white on face and tail (unless tail is docked). Three of the four legs must be white.
- 3. A Berkshire must NOT have a solid white or a solid black face from the ears forward.
- 4. A Berkshire must **NOT** have a solid black nose (rim of nose).
- 5. White is allowed on the ears, but neither ear can be entirely white.
- 6. An occasional splash of white may appear on the body.

# **CHESTER WHITE (LIGHT OPB)**

- 1. Must possess Chester White breed character.
- 2. Must be solid white in color, no color on the skin larger than a silver dollar, no colored hair.
- 3. Ears must be down and medium size.
- 4. Any signs of weighted ear tags or evidence of past existence of such ear tags are determined to be not permissible and are grounds for disqualification

#### **DARK CROSSBRED**

- 1. Barrows with black and/or red pigmentation, (i.e. not sandy, rusty, orange, roan, gray or blue) on any part of the body amounting to 20% **or more** of total body area.
- 2. Barrows may be black or red belted, black or red patched or spotted.
- 3. Barrows with only blue, rusty, sandy, orange, and gray pigmentation are **NOT** considered a Dark Cross.

### **DUROC**

- 1. Must be red in color and possess Duroc breed character. (ears must be down and medium size)
- 2. Must **NOT** have any white hair located on the animal.
- 3. Must **NOT** have any black hair.
- 4. Must **NOT** have more than three black spots on the skin and none of these spots can be larger than two inches in diameter.
- 5. Must **NOT** have any shading or indication of a belt.

#### **HAMPSHIRE**

- 1. Must be black in color with a white belt starting on a front leg. The belt may partially or totally encircle the body.
- 2. Must possess Hampshire Breed character. (ears must be erect and not rounded)
- 3. Must **NOT** have any white hair or indications of streaking on the forehead.
- 4. Must **NOT** have any red hair.

#### LANDRACE (LIGHT OPB)

- 1. Must be white in color and possess Landrace breed character. (ears must be down)
- 2. Must **NOT** allow any color hair other than white.
- 3. Must **NOT** allow more than three spots of skin pigmentation.
- 4. Must **NOT** allow any spot of skin pigmentation larger than one U.S. minted quarter.

#### **LIGHT CROSSBRED**

- 1. Barrows with blue, gray, sandy, rusty, orange or roan pigmentation. (coloration may be belted, patched or spotted.)
- 2. Barrows with predominately white, blue, gray, rusty, orange or roan pigmentation which have small areas of black and/or red pigmentation on any part of the body that amount to <u>less</u> than 20% of total body area.

# **POLAND CHINA (DARK OPB)**

- 1. Must possess Poland China breed character.
- 2. Must be black with a white face and switch (unless tail is docked). Three of the four legs must be white. May have an occasional splash of white on the body.
- 3. Must have ears down.
- 4. Must not have evidence of belt formation.
- 5. Cannot have any red or sandy hair and/or pigment.
- 6. Hogs that have weighted ear tags or evidence of tampering of ears with possible ear tags are ineligible.

### SPOTTED SWINE (DARK OPB)

- 1. Must be black and white.
- 2. Must possess Spotted breed character.
- 3. Ears cannot be erect.
- 4. Any red tinted or brown spots are ineligible.
- 5. No solid black head from ears forward.
- 6. No distinct white belt pattern (hair or skin) encircling and extending down and onto each shoulder.
- 7. Any signs of weighted ear tags or evidence of past existence such ear tags are determined to be not permissible and are grounds for disqualification.

#### **YORKSHIRE**

- 1. Must be white in color and possess Yorkshire breed character. (ears must be erect)
- 2. Must **NOT** have any colored hair other than white.
- 3. Must NOT have colored skin pigmentation larger than one U.S. minted silver dollar.
- 4. Must not have masking above the eyes larger than a silver dollar.

#### JUNIOR MARKET LAMB SHOW

Corey Owens, Superintendent Garry Branham, Assistant Superintendent

Entry Fee: \$28.00 per head – Limit 5 total head - No more than 2 per breed

Entry Deadline: December 1, 2018 Postmark (Double fees Dec. 1- Dec. 15)

Arrival: 12:00 p.m.-5:00 p.m., Friday, February 1, 2019

6:00 a.m.- 1:00 p.m., Saturday, February 2, 2019

In Place: 1:00 p.m., Saturday, February 2, 2019 Cards Due: 4:00 p.m., Saturday, February 2, 2019

Time of Show: 8:00 a.m., Sunday, February 3, 2019 – FW, FWX, Dorper

8:00 a.m., Monday, February 4, 2019 – SD & MW

Judge: Dr. Clay Burson, Lubbock, TX

1. All rules apply to the Junior Market Lamb Show. Please refer to the General Rules and Junior Show Rules.

2. To be eligible to exhibit in the 2019 Junior Market Lamb Show, a lamb must be validated in the Texas 4-H and FFA Lamb Validation Program. Each entry must have been recorded on a 4-H or FFA Sheep Validation Form between October 1 and October 31. Exhibitors must have owned and cared for their animals continuously since October 31, 2018.

Hair follicle samples will be collected from all Breed Champions and all Reserve Champions, and a DNA analysis will be conducted on each of these hair follicle samples. The Lamb Committee may also collect hair follicle samples from any other lamb entry for the purpose of conducting a DNA analysis. Any lamb not having a positive match from the DNA analysis of the hair follicle samples, compared to the DNA analysis of the hair follicle sample taken from it at the time of enrollment in the validation program, will be disqualified. Any lamb without a valid TLBA tag from the breeder of the lamb placed in the ear of the lamb and recorded on Texas Lamb Validation paperwork will be disqualified.

The validation tag will be the show tag. A separate tag will not be issued.

- 3. To be eligible to exhibit in the 2019 Junior Market Lamb Show, a lamb must be bred by a member of the Texas Lamb Breeder's Association, and have an official TLBA tag belonging to the breeder of the lamb in its ear. Tags are to be obtained from the breeder of the lamb. TLBA tags must be present in the ear of the animal at the time of validation through the Texas 4-H and FFA Lamb Validation Program and <u>must be recorded on official validation paperwork.</u> The TLBA tag must be present in the lamb's ear at the show as well.
- 4. Previous exhibitors of the Grand Champion Lamb are ineligible to enter the Market Lamb Show.
- 5. Each exhibitor is entitled to enter five (5) total lambs, with no more than two (2) per breed. ONLY wethers may be shown.
- 6. Lambs will be allowed to arrive from 12:00 p.m. (Noon) until 5:00 p.m., Friday, February 1, 2019. All animals in line by 5:00 p.m., Friday will be allowed to unload Friday evening. Trailers arriving after 5:00 p.m., Friday, February 1, will not be unloading until arrival resumes at 6:00 a.m., Saturday, February 2, 2019. All trailers must be on grounds and in line for unloading by 1:00 p.m., Saturday, February 2.



All Market Lambs will be pre-stalled.

- 7. Lambs will be stalled in the Livestock Barn #2. To enter the grounds for livestock unloading and loading, all trailers will enter the fairgrounds on the North side at Gate 6 off of Lake View Heroes Drive. There will be two lots indicated for trailer staging. At the direction of officials, trailers will be allowed to back up to the West Side of the Livestock Barn for unloading. Once unloaded, vehicles will exit Gate 2, circle back towards Gate 6 to proceed toward the trailer lot.
- 8. Official disposition forms must be picked up in front of the show office at the time of check in. Exhibitors will be required to turn in official disposition cards (Herein after referred to as weight cards) after the completion of the Self-Check-In process at the kiosks located in the Sale Pavilion.

To check in, Exhibitors will scan the independent barcode located on the weight card. Exhibitors will be prompted by the kiosk to enter all information from the weight cards, such as breed, weight, etc. The Self-Check-In process is subject to change. All four weight cards must be filled out in addition to the information entered in the kiosk. The information entered into the kiosk at Self-Check-In must match the weight cards and will prevail in the instance of a discrepancy. All information must be entered into the kiosk and weight cards turn into show personnel by 4:00 pm on the day of check-in.

After completing the Self-Check-In, the kiosk will generate a confirmation receipt. It is the responsibility of the Exhibitor to ensure that all information on the receipt is correct. Exhibitors must submit the weight cards in its entirety to show personnel, who will then give the exhibitor a portion back that will be required for placement on the truck. It is recommended that exhibitors keep confirmation receipts from the kiosk throughout the duration of the show.

Superintendents will break classes immediately following the weight card & Self-Check-In deadline. Classes will be broken into the schedule listed below.

9. Lightweight classes will have preset weight breaks for Finewool, Finewool Cross, Southdown and Medium Wool breeds. Any and all additional classes will be broken by weight after cards are due. All classes for Dorper will be broken by weight after weight cards are due; there are no preset weight breaks for Dorpers.

Finewool, Class 1: 100-110 pounds Finewool Cross, Class 1: 100-120 pounds Southdown, Class 1: 90-110 pounds Medium Wool, Class 1: 100-125 pounds

The five pound weigh back is applicable on light weight classes.

- 10. Finewool, Finewool Cross and Medium Wool lambs weighing less than 100 pounds and Southdown and Dorper lambs weighing less than 90 pounds will be sifted. No Junior Market Lamb may weigh over 170 pounds. There will be a 5 pound weigh back on the top and bottom of the weight submitted.
- 11. Lambs will be designated for re-weighing during judging in the show arena at a time determined by the Market Lamb Show Superintendent. Any lamb weighing more than 5 pounds above or below his initial official show weight will become ineligible for any award or premium sale and may be assessed a \$10.00 cwt. penalty.
- 12. All market lambs must possess no more than their first set of yearling teeth, at the time of classification.

- 13. Three man classifying system will be used. Lambs that are classified out will progress to the appropriate breed division. Finewools classified will advance to Finewool Cross, and Finewool Crosses, Southdowns, and Dorpers classified will advance to the Medium Wool Division. Exhibitors should be familiar with the current Classification Guidelines for market lambs.
- 14. All lambs must be shorn prior to arrival on grounds. The pelt must be uniform in length over entire body at the time of showing. Boots will be optional and no top knots will be allowed.
- 15. No electrical equipment of any kind is allowed. Hay, heat lamps, ice packs or propane heaters will not be allowed in the barns. CLIPPERS, BLOWERS, BLOCKING TABLES, BLOCKING STATIONS, ETC. ARE NOT ALLOWED IN THE BARNS! Head stalls will be permitted if attached to the INSIDE of a pen. NO BASES ALLOWED.
- 16. The only tags lambs may have in their ears are state validation and TLBA tags. All others must be removed.
- 17. Lambs may be washed after arrival.
- 18. The Junior Market Lamb show is a terminal show, thus there will be no "take-home" lambs. All lambs arriving at the show MUST BE SOLD (including sifted, non-placing and ribbon winning lambs) according to the show procedure. In the event that the Stock Show is unable to obtain an adequate packer bid, all animals will remain in the possession of the exhibitor and will be taken home by the exhibitor.
- 19. All animals that qualify for the sale must sell in the Premium Sale and will not receive any additional premiums or floor monies. Animals placing 5<sup>th</sup> through 10<sup>th</sup> will not receive any floor monies in the Finewool, Finewool Cross, Southdown and Medium Wool breeds. Dorper lambs placing 3<sup>rd</sup> through 5<sup>th</sup> place will not receive any additional floor monies.
- 20. All  $1^{st}$  and  $2^{nd}$  place exhibitors are required to attend the premium sale.  $3^{rd}$  and  $4^{th}$  place exhibitors do **NOT** attend the sale, but are eligible for add-on money.
- 21. Health papers are not required.

#### **PREMIUMS**

# Places 1-4 in each class EXCEPT Dorpers will sell in the Premium Sale Places 1-2 in each class of Dorpers will sell in the Premium Sale

# PREMIUM CHECKS WILL BE MAILED TO THE AGENT/INSTRUCTOR FOLLOWING THE SHOW

Place 5	\$1,000.00	Place 8	\$1,000.00
Place 6	\$1,000.00	Place 9	\$1,000.00
Place 7	\$1,000.00	Place 10	\$1,000.00
		Pay-Out Schedule	
Place 3	\$750.00	Place 5	\$400.00
Place 4	\$600.00		

These premiums are sponsored by the TLBA and SASSRA.

# **CLASSES**

	Class 1 – Finewool, Lightweight- 100-110 pounds	Ribbons 1-10
	Class 2 – Finewool	Ribbons 1-10
	Class 3 – Finewool	Ribbons 1-10
	Class 4 – Finewool	Ribbons 1-10
	Class 5 – Champion Finewool	Banner
	Class 6 – Reserve Champion Finewool	Banner
	Class 7 – Finewool Cross, Lightweight- 100-120 pounds	
	Class 8 – Finewool Cross	Ribbons 1-10
	Class 9 – Finewool Cross	Ribbons 1-10
\	Class 10 – Finewool Cross	Ribbons 1-10
NEW	Class 11 – Finewool Cross	
<i>V</i>	Class 12 – Champion Finewool Cross	Banner
	Class 13 – Reserve Champion Finewool Cross	Banner
	Class 14- Dorper- Lightweight	Ribbons 1-10
	Class 15- Dorper- Heavyweight	Ribbons 1-10
	Class 16- Champion Dorper	Banner
	Class 17- Reserve Champion Dorper	Banner
	Class 18 – Southdown – Lightweight- 90-110 pounds	Ribbons 1-10
	Class 19 – Southdown	Ribbons 1-10
	Class 20 – Southdown	Ribbons 1-10
	Class 21 – Champion Southdown	Banner
	Class 22 – Reserve Champion Southdown	Banner
	Class 23 – Medium Wool – Lightweight- 100-125 pounds	
	Class 24 – Medium Wool	Ribbons 1-10
	Class 25 – Medium Wool	Ribbons 1-10
	Class 26 – Medium Wool	Ribbons 1-10
NEW	Class 27 – Medium Wool	Ribbons 1-10
/	Class 28 – Champion Medium Wool	Banner
	Class 29 – Reserve Champion Medium Wool	Banner
	Class 30 – Grand Champion Market Lamb	Buckle & Banner
	Class 31 – Reserve Grand Champion Market Lamb	Ruckle & Banner

TCLA points reported for places 1 - 10.

Two senior showmanship awards will be presented.

#### JUNIOR MARKET GOAT SHOW

Victor Probandt, Superintendent

Jesse Whitlow, Assistant Superintendent

Entry Fee: \$28.00 per head – Limit 2 per exhibitor

Entry Deadline: December 1, 2018 Postmark (Double fees Dec. 1- Dec. 15)

Barn Opens: 12:00 p.m., Friday, February 1, 2019
In Place: 1:00 p.m., Saturday, February 2, 2019
Cards Due: 4:00 p.m., Saturday, February 2, 2019

Time of Show: 8:00 a.m., Sunday, February 3, 2019 – Show All

Judge: Dr. Mark Hoge, Good Hope, IL

This show is sanctioned by the Junior Meat Goat Show Circuit.

- 1. All rules apply to the Junior Market Goat Show. Please refer to the General Rules and Junior Show Rules.
- 2. To be eligible to exhibit in the 2019 Junior Market Goat Show, a goat must be validated in the Texas 4-H and FFA Wether Goat Validation Program. Each entry must have been recorded on a Goat Validation Form between October 1 and October 31. Exhibitors must have owned and cared for the goats continuously since October 31, 2018.

Hair follicle samples will be collected from the first place market goat in each class. Should the Reserve Grand champion market goat come out of the same class as the Grand Champion Market Goat, then the second place class winner will also have hair follicle samples collected. The Market Goat Committee may also collect hair follicle samples from any other market goat entry for the purpose of conducting a DNA analysis. Any market goat not having a positive match from the DNA analysis of this hair follicle sample, compared to the DNA analysis of the hair follicle sample taken from it at the time of enrollment in the validation program, will be disqualified.

Validation tags will be used. A separate tag will not be issued.

- 3. Previous exhibitors of the Grand Champion Market Goat are ineligible to enter the Junior Market Goat Show.
- 4. Each exhibitor is entitled to enter no more than two (2) market goats.
- 5. Goats will be allowed to arrive from 12:00 p.m. (Noon) until 5:00 p.m., Friday, February 1, 2019. All animals in line by 5:00 p.m., Friday will be allowed to unload Friday evening. Trailers arriving after 5:00 p.m., Friday, February 1, will not be unloading until arrival resumes at 6:00 a.m., Saturday, February 2, 2019. All trailers must be on grounds and in line for unloading by 1:00 p.m., Saturday, February 2.



All Market Goats will be pre-stalled.

6. Goats will be stalled in the Livestock Barn #2. To enter the grounds for livestock unloading and loading, all trailers will enter the fairgrounds on the North side at Gate 6 off of Lake View Heroes Drive. There will be two lots indicated for trailer staging. At the direction of officials, trailers will be allowed to back up to the West Side of the Livestock Barn for unloading. Once unloaded, vehicles will exit Gate 2, circle back towards Gate 6 to proceed toward the trailer lot.

7. Official disposition forms must be picked up in front of the show office at the time of check in. Exhibitors will be required to turn in official disposition cards (Herein after referred to as weight cards) after the completion of the Self-Check-In process at the kiosks located in the Sale Pavilion.

To check in, Exhibitors will scan the independent barcode located on the weight card. Exhibitors will be prompted by the kiosk to enter all information from the weight cards, such as breed, weight, etc. The Self-Check-In process is subject to change. All four weight cards must be filled out in addition to the information entered in the kiosk. The information entered into the kiosk at Self-Check-In must match the weight cards and will prevail in the instance of a discrepancy. All information must be entered into the kiosk and weight cards turn into show personnel by 4:00 pm on the day of check-in.

After completing the Self-Check-In, the kiosk will generate a confirmation receipt. It is the responsibility of the Exhibitor to ensure that all information on the receipt is correct. Exhibitors must submit the weight cards in its entirety to show personnel, who will then give the exhibitor a portion back that will be required for placement on the truck. It is recommended that exhibitors keep confirmation receipts from the kiosk throughout the duration of the show.

Superintendents will break classes immediately following the weight card & Self-Check-In deadline.

Classes will be broken into 10 weight classes. There will be no pre-set weight breaks.

- 8. Market goats must weigh a minimum of 60 pounds and maximum of 115 pounds. Only wethers may be shown.
- 9. The Goat Show Superintendent has the right to weigh any entry at any time. Goats will be designated for re-weighting during the judging. Any entry weighing more or less than 4 pounds above or below the initial official show weight will become ineligible for any award or premium sale and may be assessed a \$10 cwt penalty.
- 10 There is no tooth rule.
- 11. Goats must be UNIFORMLY shorn 3/8" or less above the knee and hock joints before arrival on the grounds. NO clipping will be allowed on the grounds. Removal of horns on grounds is not permitted. No sharp points allowed on horns.
- 12. No painting, powdering, or artificial coloring is allowed.
- 13. No electrical equipment of any kind is allowed. Hay, heat lamps, ice packs, or propane heaters will not be allowed in the barns. CLIPPERS, BLOWERS, BLOCKING TABLES, BLOCKING STATIONS, ETC. ARE NOT ALLOWED IN THE BARNS! Head stalls will be permitted if attached to the INSIDE of a pen. NO BASES ALLOWED.
- 14. The only tags goats may have in their ears are state validation tags. All others must be removed.
- 15. Goats may be washed after arrival
- 16. No external parasites will be allowed. If a goat is found to have external parasites, it will be disqualified.

- 17. Exhibitors are responsible for confining and keeping their animals in the assigned pens. The San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo Association will not be held responsible for any animals getting out of the assigned pens. No panels will be available.
- 18. The Junior Market Goat show is a terminal show. All entries arriving at the show must be sold (including sifted, non-placing and ribbon winning market goats). In the event the San Angelo Stock Show is unable to obtain an adequate packer bid, the animals will remain in the possession of the exhibitor and must be removed from the fairgrounds according to the release time established by the show.
- 19. All animals that qualify for the sale must sell in the Premium Sale and will not receive any additional premium monies.
- 20. The following premium schedule has been established and will be provided for places 5-8 in each weight class.
- 21. Health papers are not required.
- 22. All 1<sup>st</sup> and 2<sup>nd</sup> place exhibitors are required to attend the premium sale. 3<sup>rd</sup> and 4<sup>th</sup> place exhibitors do **NOT** attend the sale, but are eligible for add-on money.

#### **PREMIUMS**

Places 1-4 will sell in Premium Sale

Place 5 - \$200.00 Place 6 - \$170.00 Place 7- \$130.00

Place 8 - \$100.00

# PREMIUM CHECKS WILL BE MAILED TO THE AGENT/INSTRUCTOR FOLLOWING THE SHOW

### **CLASSES**

Class 1	Ribbons 1-10
Class 2	
Class 3	
Class 4 – Champion Division I	Banner
Class 5 – Reserve Champion Division I	Banner
Class 6	
Class 7	
Class 8	Ribbons 1-10
Class 9	Ribbons 1-10
Class 10 – Champion Division II	Banner
Class 11 – Reserve Champion Division II	Banner
Class 12	Rihhons 1-10
Class 13	
Class 14	
Class 15 – Champion Division III	
Class 16 – Reserve Champion Division III	
Class 17 – Grand Champion Market Goat	
Class 18 – Reserve Grand Champion Market Goat	
<b>-</b>	

Two showmanship awards donated will be presented.

#### JUNIOR RABBIT SHOW

Marvin Clark, Superintendent

Entry Fee: \$10.00 per pen of 3 in class 1 – No limit on entries

\$5.00 per rabbit in classes 2 - 11 - No limit on entries

Entry Deadline: January 10, 2019 (postmarked on or before)

Check-in: 7:00 a.m., Friday February 15, 2019

Time of Show: 8:00 a.m., Friday February 15, 2019 – 1<sup>st</sup> Community Credit Union Spur Arena

Release following show

Judge: Jennifer Schimpf, Waco, TX & TBD

- 1. All rules apply to the Junior Rabbit Show. Please refer to the General Rules and Junior Show Rules.
- 2. All exhibitors must check in between 7:00 a.m. and 8:00 a.m. Substitutions will be allowed only in the Commercial and Fancy division between 7:00 a.m. and 8:00 a.m. Substitutions may only be made if the animals are within the same breed, sex and class and will not be accepted after the show begins. There will be a \$1.00 charge for substitution. No changes or substitutions will be allowed in the Market Division.
- 3. There will be a designated area for exhibitors, staff, and Superintendents only. Parents may help exhibitors but **MAY NOT PLACE RABBITS ON TABLES.** The superintendents or staff will assist the exhibitors in doing this.
- 4. Each exhibitor will be responsible for furnishing carriers and waterers for their exhibits. Standard size 1, 2 or 3 hole carriers with bottoms (not larger than 24 x 24) are allowed. NO CAGES.
- 5. All rabbits MUST have a legible and permanent tattoo in the left ear and the tattoo MUST be sent with entry form at time of entry or entry will be disqualified. ALL OF THE NUMBERS MUST BE LISTED ON THE ENTRY FORM EXACTLY AS TATOOED IN THE EAR. DO NOT DUPLICATE NUMBERS. Trio Fryer entries MUST have three different numbers and be indicated as a trio entry on the entry form (Example D1, D2, D3). If tattoo is not readable and does not match entry card, entry will be disqualified.
- 6. No tattooing will be allowed on the fairgrounds. Entries will be disqualified- no exceptions.
- 7. Rabbits should be free of all disease symptoms. Rabbits showing signs of disease will not be allowed to show. Rabbits showing signs of sickness may be pulled at any time during the show by the superintendent only and at the superintendent's discretion. Any rabbit with symptoms of disease MUST BE IMMEDIATELY REMOVED from the barn.
- 8. Rabbits will be called to the table 3 times only, and then will be eliminated. Market entries will be weighed in, and then placed on the table.
- 9. There will be two judges for the show. One judge will place meat pens and fancy rabbits, while the other places commercial rabbits. The two judges will be working simultaneously. If an exhibitor has rabbits showing on both tables, a substitute exhibitor will be allowed.
- 10. Showmanship will be judged with each exhibitor asked to handle and present one rabbit for showing. There will be a junior and senior class buckle awarded.

- 11. The Champion, Reserve Champion and 3<sup>rd</sup> Place Market Division Rabbits will receive the following premiums respectively, \$500, \$250, & \$125. Rabbits will **NOT** sell in the Premium Sale.
- 12. Health papers are not required.
- 13. Rabbits will be shown in the 1<sup>st</sup> Community Federal Credit Union Spur Arena. Exhibitors should enter Gate 6 off of Lake View Heroes Drive (formerly 50<sup>th</sup> Street). Exhibitors will be allowed to unload their animals at the Spur Arena, and then park in the lot North of the Horse Barn.

#### MARKET DIVISION

All rabbits will be weighed the day of the show.

Class 1 Trio Fryer: Trios from commercial breeds only must be the same color and weigh between 3 lbs to 5.5 lbs. The whole pen will be disqualified if one rabbit is overweight or diseased. Anything over 5.5 lbs. or 70 days old will be disqualified.

\*ALL COMMERCIAL AND FANCY RABBITS WILL BE SHOWN BY BREED\*

#### **COMMERCIAL DIVISION**

Any ARBA recognized breed may enter. Examples of breeds previously shown:

Californian	English Lop	<b>New Zealand</b>	Satin	French Lop
Class 2 – Junior Buck			6 N	Nonths & Younger
Class 3 – 6-8 Buck			6 M	onths – 8 Months
Class 4 – Senior Buck				Over 8 Months
Class 5 – Junior Doe			6 N	1onths & Younger
Class 6 – 6-8 Doe			6 M	onths – 8 Months
Class 7 – Senior Doe				Over 8 Months

#### **FANCY DIVISION**

Any ARBA recognized breed may enter. Examples of breeds previously shown:

Florida White	Mini Lop	Dutch	Himalayan	<b>Holland Lop</b>	Rex
Class 8 – Junior Buck				6 Months 8	k Younger
Class 9 – Senior Buck				Over	6 Months
Class 10 – Junior Doe				6 Months 8	k Younger
Class 11 – Senior Doe				Over	6 Months
Class 12 – Best in Show					Buckle

Belt buckles will be awarded to the Grand Champion and Reserve Grand Champion rabbits in each division and the Best of Show rabbit. Ribbons will be awarded for 1-10 in each class. Two showmanship awards will be presented; one to a junior exhibitor and one to a senior exhibitor.

#### **GENERAL HEIFER SHOW**

Entry Fee: \$35.00 per head – No limit on entries

Entry Deadline: December 1, 2018 Postmark (Double fees Dec. 1- Dec. 15)

Arrival Schedule: 8:00 a.m. - 8:00 p.m., Thursday, February 7, 2019

8:00 a.m. - 8:00 p.m., Friday, February 8, 2019 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m., Saturday, February 9, 2019

Check Out: 10:00 a.m., Monday, February 11, 2019 (all heifers must leave barn by this time)

Judges: Mark Core & Deb Core, Pleasanton, IA

1. All rules apply to the Junior Heifer Show. Please refer to the General Rules and Junior Show Rules. Additionally, read the specific breed rules for additional information.

2. To be eligible to exhibit in the 2019 Junior Heifer Show, all heifers must be validated in the Texas 4-H and FFA Heifer Validation Program. Each entry must have been recorded on a 4-H or FFA Heifer Validation Form Master List between October 1 and November 14. Additionally, a copy of the original registration paper of each heifer must be uploaded through the Texas 4-H and FFA Validation Program by November 14, 2018. Exhibitors must have owned and cared for their heifers continuously since November 1, 2018.

A hair follicle sample will be collected from all breed champions and all reserve breed champions and DNA analysis will be conducted on each of these hair follicle samples. The Heifer Committee(s) may also collect a hair follicle sample from any other heifer entry from the purpose of conducting a DNA analysis. Any heifer not having a positive match from the DNA analysis of this hair follicle sample, compared to the DNA analysis of the hair follicle sample taken from it at the time of enrollment in the validation program will be disqualified.

All potential substitute heifers must meet the validation requirements.

- 3. All exhibitors must have owned the heifers shown in the name continuously since November 1, 2018, and the official registration certificate must indicate that the exhibitor was the sole owner of the heifer on or before November 1, 2018 and that the registration certificate was processed by the respective breed association on or before November 1, 2018.
- 4. To be eligible to show, all heifers must have been calved after September 1, 2016.
- 5. There is no limit on the number of heifers an exhibitor may show, however, all animals must be registered in the exhibitor's name.
- 6. There is no substitution fee. Substitutions are only allowed within the same breed. A substitute from one breed to another constitutes a division change fee of \$100 per heifer. Substitutions of heifers already entered may be made as long as the substituted heifer conforms to all rules applying to its specific show.
- 7. **THIS IS A NON-FIT SHOW. BLOW & SHOW ONLY!** Usage of paint, glue or other adhesives on your heifers is prohibited.
- 8. No Trim Chutes will be allowed during the Junior Breeding Heifer Show.

- 9. Stalls will not be assigned until heifer(s) arrive on fairgrounds, reservations for stalls or tie outs will not be taken. Tack/bedding arriving before heifer(s) will not be allowed to unload or be set up in barn without heifer(s) present.
  - Dirt tie outs: \$20/each cash onlyAsphalt tie outs: \$15/each cash only
- 10. All exhibitors or their representatives are asked to remain with their heifers during check-in. Heifers not having legible tattoos are ineligible to compete and will not be allowed to show. Tattoos will be verified at check-in and must match the registration papers exactly.
- 11. All exhibitors will be issued a show number for each heifer entered in the show, and no heifer will be allowed in the show ring to be judged unless the exhibitor leading the heifer is wearing the number assigned to the heifer being shown.
- 12. Heifers will be released immediately following the conclusion of their show.
- 13. Exhibitors entering this show are eligible to enter the All Breed Junior Heifer Futurity. However, entry to the Futurity requires separate designation on the entry form, as well as, additional entry fees. Exhibitors are NOT automatically entered into the Futurity.
- 14. An animal that is disqualified for ANY REASON in its respective breed show will be disqualified from the Heifer Futurity, as well. Additionally, the exhibitor will be required to forfeit any premiums, ribbons and/or any other prizes won in the Futurity Show, but in no event shall it affect the order of finish of any of the other animals competing in the Futurity Show.
- 15. The exhibitor of the Grand Champion Angus, ARB, Beefmaster, Brangus, Chianina, Hereford, Limousin, Maine Anjou, ORB, Red Angus, Santa Gertrudis, Shorthorn, and Simmental Heifer will receive a \$500.00 incentive. The exhibitor of the Reserve Champion Angus, ARB, Beefmaster, Brangus, Chianina, Hereford, Limousin, Maine Anjou, ORB, Red Angus, Santa Gertrudis, Shorthorn, and Simmental Heifer will receive a \$250.00 incentive. Incentive recipients may enter future shows and may receive another incentive. Exhibitors must be present and exhibiting their own animal to be awarded the incentive.

#### JUNIOR ANGUS HEIFER SHOW

Mike Salisbury, Co-Superintendent

Chase Runyan, Co-Superintendent

Arrival Schedule: 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., Thursday, February 7, 2019

In Place: 5:00 p.m., Thursday, February 7, 2019
Check Papers: 6:00 p.m., Thursday, February 7, 2019
Time of Show: 8:00 a.m., Friday, February 8, 2019

Check Out: 10:00 a.m., Monday, February 11, 2019 (all heifers must leave barn by this time)

Ring A

Judge: Deb Core, Pleasanton, Iowa

1. All animals to be eligible to show must be recorded in the American Angus Association Record. Exhibitors must file with the Stock Show Office the name and herd book of each animal entered.

2. Only Black Angus are allowed in this show.

- 3. All exhibitors are eligible to compete for a Junior or Senior Showmanship award. Exhibitors 13 years old or younger on January 1, 2019, will be eligible to compete for Jr. Showmanship, and exhibitors 14 years old or older on January 1, 2019 will be eligible to compete for Sr. Showmanship.
- 4. If any classes have an excessive number of entries, they will be divided into two or more classes according to American Angus Association guidelines.

The American Angus Association, 3201 Frederick Avenue, St. Joseph, MO, will participate in premiums offered in individual classes for Junior Angus heifers, as included in its standard show classifications, according to the premium schedule based on the number of head shown. The Association's contributions will be included in the premium checks issued by the show.

A minimum of fifteen (15) head must be shown in the Junior Angus heifer classes to receive American Angus Association premium participation. The show is not required to have all classes to be eligible for premiums. Separate classes for bred and owned heifers may be held if the size of the show merits a separate class.

To be eligible for association premiums, the entries must be recorded in the sole name of the junior exhibitor and the issue date on the registration certificate must conform to the individuals show's requirements regarding ownership. The Association's contribution is included in the total premiums listed in each class. Premiums from the Association are paid only to registered Angus cattle and only if the registration number is a part of the show report provided to the Association. Therefore, all cattle should be registered at the time of entry to make certain they receive the Association's portion of premiums. The Association does not pay a percentage on premiums offered in the championship classes. An animal may only be counted one time toward the total count for premium participation by the Association.

Exhibitors must have the original registration certificate on each animal available for inspection at the show.

Any animal, upon check-in, which does not have a legible permanent identification mark (ear tattoo marks, freeze-branded marks or hot-branded marks) corresponding to the permanent identification mark on the registration certificate, is ineligible to show. Once disqualified due to an incorrect or illegible permanent identification mark, animals cannot be re-tattooed and rechecked at the show.

When any female is shown with a calf at side, the calf must be the cow's most recent natural calf, and the calf must be registered by show date and have the original registration certificate at check in.

Only one person at a time shall lead animals into the show ring.

Any product administered internally or used externally to alter the conformation and/or appearance of an animal for exhibition is prohibited. This includes the covering of white skin, false tail heads (or use of any false hair); use of graphite, powders, hemp or other similar substances exhibition of cattle displaying false hair will not be allowed, with the exception of false tail switches.

For an exhibitor to be eligible at shows for premium monies contributed by the American Angus Association, each exhibitor is subject to Part 3, Section IX of the Association's rules entitled "Eligibility, Conformation, and Structure of Animals Presented for Exhibition." Included in this is Rule 11: "Effective July 1, 2004, at any show for which the American Angus Association appropriates funds toward the payment of premiums, no exhibitors, member owners, or individuals assisting an exhibitors at such show shall be allowed to use any coloring agents on any animal exhibited." The Association may adopt and implement various tests designed to monitor this prohibition, including but not limited to a "white towel" or "white glove" text. No aerosol cans or other pressurized containers will be allowed in designated make up areas.

DNA marker or blood type for parentage verification – Under Association Rules each animal, for which entry application (registration) is received, may be subjected to a DNA marker type or blood type test to verify ACCURACY OF PARENTAGE as covered under Association Rules. Staff of the American Angus Association must supervise the collection of DNA or blood samples. Animals are often sampled at shows, fairs, or events where the American Angus Association contributes premiums or where Association personnel participate.

If a recorded parent is excluded (as a parent) as a result of DNA or blood type, the owner may request, at his own expense, the Association to determine the actual parent. Failure to determine the sire and dam disqualifies the animal's eligibility in the Angus Herd Book and the registration certificate becomes null and void.

#### **PREMIUMS & CLASSES**

Class 1 – Heifer calves, Calved on or after May 1, 2018	\$60 \$50 \$40 \$30 \$20
Class 2 – Heifers calves, Calved April 1-30, 2018	\$60 \$50 \$40 \$30 \$20
Class 3 – Heifers calves, Calved March1-31, 2018	\$60 \$50 \$40 \$30 \$20
Class 4 – Champion Heifer Calf	
Class 5 – Reserve Champion Heifer Calf	Banner
Class 6 – Junior Heifers, Calved February 1-28, 2018	\$60 \$50 \$40 \$30 \$20
Class 7 – Junior Heifers, Calved January 1-31, 2018	\$60 \$50 \$40 \$30 \$20
Class 8 – Junior Heifers, Calved November 1-December 31, 2017	\$60 \$50 \$40 \$30 \$20
Class 9 – Junior Heifers, Calved September 1-October 31, 2017	\$60 \$50 \$40 \$30 \$20
Class 10 – Champion Junior Heifer	Banner
Class 11 – Reserve Champion Junior Heifer	Banner
Class 12 – Senior Heifers, Calved May 1 – August 31, 2017	\$60 \$50 \$40 \$30 \$20
Class 13 – Senior Heifers, Calved March 1 – April 30, 2017	\$60 \$50 \$40 \$30 \$20
Class 14 – Senior Heifers, Calved January 1 – February 28, 2017	\$60 \$50 \$40 \$30 \$20
Class 15 – Senior Heifers, Calved September 1 – December 31, 2016	
Class 16 – Champion Senior Heifer	Banner
Class 17 – Reserve Champion Senior Heifer	
Class 18 –Grand Champion Heifer	Banner
Class 19 – Reserve Champion Heifer	

#### JUNIOR AMERICAN REGISTERED BREEDS HEIFER SHOW

Wade Kirkwood, Superintendent

Arrival Schedule: 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., Thursday, February 7, 2019

In Place: 5:00 p.m., Thursday, February 7, 2019
Check Papers: 6:00 p.m., Thursday, February 7, 2019
Time of Show: 8:00 a.m., Friday, February 8, 2019

Ring B – Following ORB, Chianina and Simmental

Check Out: 10:00 a.m., Monday, February 11, 2019 (all heifers must leave barn by this time)

Judge: Mark Core, Pleasanton, Iowa

- 1. All rules apply to the Junior American Registered Breeds Heifer Show. Please refer to the General Rules, Junior Show Rules and General Heifer Show Rules.
- 2. Open to heifers of *Bos indicus* type that have been registered or issued a certificate of recordation with a recognized breed association. Breeds defined below are recognized in this division, heifers must be at least 3/16 (18.75%) Brahman influence. Heifers with less than 3/16s Brahman influence will show as an ORB. Additional purebreds may be approved at the discretion of show management. Note: Specialty and miniature cattle breeds or percentages of these breeds will not be eligible to show in this division to include, but not limited to, Dexter, Longhorn, Lowline Angus, Miniature Hereford, Miniature Zebu and Wagyu.
  - <u>Beefmaster Advancer</u>- animals of 50% or more Registered Beefmaster breeding and 50% or less of other registered and DNA genotyped non-Beefmaster beef cattle breeding.
  - <u>Braford</u>- Purebred, heifers must be classified as "Braford Cow" on registration paper to be eligible to show.
  - <u>Braford F-1</u>- Untied Braford Breeders registered first generation cross consisting of ½ Brahman— 1/2 Hereford blood. No multiple generation half blood or other near-half blood cattle will be accepted. Heifers must be classified as "First Generation" on registration papers to be eligible.
  - Brahmousin- Purebred
  - <u>Brangus Premium Gold</u>- progeny of Registered Brangus or Red Brangus and any commercial animal.
  - <u>Brangus Optimizer</u>- progeny of Registered Brangus or Red Brangus and any other registered animal except Angus and Red Angus.
  - Charbray- Purebred.
  - Gelbray- Purebred.
  - Golden Certified F-1- a female that is the progeny of two registered parents with one parent being registered Brahman resulting in a F1 cross (50% Brahman x 50% Bos Taurus). Animal must be issued a certification of recordation from ABBA which includes owner's name and ownership date.
  - Percentage Simbrah- must contain any percentage of Brahman.
  - Star 5- must be 50%-75% Santa Gertrudis blood.
  - <u>UltraBlack</u>- progeny of Registered Brangus and an Enrolled Angus.
  - UltraRed- progeny of Registered Red Brangus and an Enrolled Angus/Red Angus
- 3. Each animal's tattoos must match the tattoo recorded for that animal in the Herd Book of their respective breed. Any animal not having a legible tattoo or a tattoo not corresponding with its registration certificate will be barred from showing.

# **Premium Classes**

Class 1 – Heifer calves, Calved on or after May 1, 2018	\$50 \$30 \$20
Class 2 – Heifers calves, Calved April 1-30, 2018	\$50 \$30 \$20
Class 3 – Heifers calves, Calved March1-31, 2018	\$50 \$30 \$20
Class 4 – Champion Heifer Calf	Banner
Class 5 – Reserve Champion Heifer Calf	Banner
Class C. Junion Haifana Calved Falonian 4 20, 2010	¢50 ¢20 ¢20
Class 6 – Junior Heifers, Calved February 1-28, 2018	
Class 7 – Junior Heifers, Calved January 1-31, 2018	
Class 8 – Junior Heifers, Calved November 1-December 31, 2017	
Class 9 – Junior Heifers, Calved September 1-October 31, 2017	
Class 10 – Champion Junior Heifer	Banner
Class 11 – Reserve Champion Junior Heifer	Banner
Class 12 – Senior Heifers, Calved May 1 – August 31, 2017	\$50 \$30 \$20
Class 13 – Senior Heifers, Calved March 1 – April 30, 2017	
Class 14 – Senior Heifers, Calved January 1 – February 28, 2017	
Class 15 – Senior Heifers, Calved September 1 – December 31, 2016	
Class 14 – Champion Senior Heifer Calf	
Class 17 – Reserve Champion Senior Heifer	Banner
Class 18 –Grand Champion Heifer	er & Incentive
Class 19 – Reserve Champion Heifer	

Ribbons will be awarded for  $1^{st} - 5^{th}$  place.

One showmanship award will be presented.

#### JUNIOR BEEFMASTER HEIFER SHOW

Tim Raley, Superintendent

Arrival Schedule: 8:00 a.m. – 8:00 p.m., Thursday, February 7, 2019

8:00 a.m. – 8:00 p.m., Friday, February 8, 2019 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., Saturday, February 9, 2019

Check Papers: 6:00 p.m., Saturday, February 9, 2019
Time of Show: 8:00 a.m., Sunday, February 10, 2019

8:00 a.m., Sunday, February 10, 2019
Ring B: Following Brangus

Check Out: 10:00 a.m., Monday, February 11, 2019 (all heifers must leave barn by this time)

Judge: Mark Core, Pleasanton, Iowa

- 1. All heifers must be registered with Beefmaster Breeders United as a purebred and out of a BBU-Certified Purebred dam, Second Cross dam, or as otherwise stated in the BBU-By-Laws. Original registration certificates will be checked by the Superintendent during designated check-in period. No photocopied or faxed certificates will be accepted.
- 2. Entrants are subject to the Junior Breeders Beefmaster Association and the Beefmaster Breeders United approved heifer show rules.
- 3. Each animal's tattoos must match the tattoo recorded for that animal in the Herd Book of the Beefmaster Breeders United. Any animal not having a legible tattoo or a tattoo not corresponding with its registration certificate will be barred from showing.

# **PREMIUMS & CLASSES**

Class 1 – Heifer calves, Calved on or after May 1, 2018	\$50, \$40, \$30
Class 2 – Heifers calves, Calved April 1-30, 2018	\$50, \$40, \$30
Class 3 – Heifers calves, Calved March1-31, 2018	\$50, \$40, \$30
Class 4 – Champion Heifer Calf	Banner
Class 5 – Reserve Champion Heifer Calf	Banner
Class 6 – Junior Heifers, Calved February 1-28, 2018	
Class 7 – Junior Heifers, Calved January 1-31, 2018	\$50, \$40, \$30
Class 8 – Junior Heifers, Calved November 1-December 31, 2017	\$50, \$40, \$30
Class 9 – Junior Heifers, Calved September 1-October 31, 2017	\$50, \$40, \$30
Class 10 – Champion Junior Heifer	Banner
Class 11 – Reserve Champion Junior Heifer	Banner
Class 12 – Senior Heifers, Calved May 1 – August 31, 2017	\$50. \$40. \$30
Class 13 – Senior Heifers, Calved March 1 – April 30, 2017	
Class 14 – Senior Heifers, Calved January 1 – February 28, 2017	
Class 15 – Senior Heifers, Calved September 1 – December 31, 2016	
Class 16 – Champion Senior Heifer	
Class 17 – Reserve Champion Senior Heifer	
Class 18 – Grand Champion Heifer	Buckle, Banner & Incentive
Class 19 – Reserve Champion Heifer	Buckle, Banner & Incentive
Ribbons will be awarded for $1^{st} - 5^{th}$ place. One showmanship award	will be presented.

#### JUNIOR BRANGUS HEIFER SHOW

Maggie Farrington, Superintendent

Arrival Schedule: 8:00 a.m. - 8:00 p.m., Thursday, February 7, 2019

> 8:00 a.m. – 8:00 p.m., Friday, February 8, 2019 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., Saturday, February 9, 2019

5:00 p.m., Saturday, February 9, 2019

In Place: Check Papers: 6:00 p.m., Saturday, February 9, 2019 Time of Show: 8:00 a.m. Sunday, February 10, 2019

Check Out: 10:00 a.m., Monday, February 11, 2019 (all heifers must leave barn by this time)

Ring B

Judge: Mark Core, Pleasanton, Iowa

1. All animals to be eligible to show must be recorded in the Brangus Association Record. Exhibitors must file with the stock show Office name and herd book of each animal entered.

2. No animal may be shown that has scurs or any indication of scurs.

**RED BRANGUS** WELCOME!

3. No animal may be shown that shows evidence of brindle.

4. Exhibitors will be required to follow the dress code while exhibiting their animal. Exhibitors must show in dark pants that are not torn or have holes and a white button down shirt that must be tucked in.

# PREMIUM CHECKS WILL BE MAILED TO THE AGENT/INSTRUCTOR FOLLOWING THE SHOW.

Class 1 – Heifer Calves, Calved on or after May 1, 2018	
Class 2 – Heifer Calves, Calved March 1 – April 30, 2018	\$50 \$40 \$30
Class 3 – Heifer Calves, Calved January 1 – February 28, 2018	\$50 \$40 \$30
	_
Class 4 – Champion Heifer Calf	
Class 5 – Reserve Champion Heifer Calf	Banner
Class 6 – Junior Heifers, Calved November 1 – December 31, 2017	\$50 \$40 \$30
Class 7 – Junior Heifers, Calved September 1 – October 31, 2017	
Class 8 – Junior Heifers, Calved May 1 – August 31, 2017	
Class 9 – Champion Junior Heifer	
Class 10 – Reserve Champion Junior Heifer	Banner
Class 11 – Senior Heifers, Calved January 1 – April 30, 2017	\$50 \$40 \$30
Class 12 – Senior Heifers, Calved September 1 – December 31, 2016	\$50 \$40 \$30
Class 13 – Champion Senior Heifer	
Class 14 – Reserve Champion Senior Heifer	
,	
Class 15 – Champion Brangus HeiferBuckle, Banner,	, Incentive and \$175
Class 16 – Reserve Champion Brangus HeiferBuckle, Banner,	
	,

\$100 of these total premiums will be paid by the Texas Brangus Breeders Association. Hill country Brangus Association will provide added money. Herdsman Award – Cash Prize. Ribbons will be awarded for 1st – 5th place. One showmanship award will be presented.

#### **JUNIOR CHIANINA HEIFER SHOW**

Bryan Benson, Superintendent

Arrival Schedule: 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., Thursday, February 7, 2019

In Place: 5:00 p.m., Thursday, February 7, 2019
Check Papers: 6:00 p.m. Thursday, February 7, 2019
Time of Show: 8:00 a.m. Friday, February 8, 2019

Ring B - Following ORB

Check Out: 10:00 a.m., Monday, February 11, 2019 (all heifers must leave barn by this time)

Judge: Mark Core, Pleasanton, Iowa

- 1. All heifers must be recorded in the Herd Book of the American Chianina Association to be eligible to show. Original Registration Certificates will be checked by the Superintendent during the designated check-in period. No photocopied or faxed certificated will be accepted.
- 2. Exhibitors must be a current, active member of the Texas Junior Chianina Association. Membership may be paid upon check-in at the show.
- 3. Chianina heifers must be **6.25% or greater** Chianina as indicated on the American Chianina Association registration certificates.

#### **PREMIUMS & CLASSES**

Class 1 – Heifer calves, Calved on or after May 1, 2018	\$50 \$30 \$20
Class 2 – Heifers calves, Calved April 1-30, 2018	\$50 \$30 \$20
Class 3 – Heifers calves, Calved March 1-31, 2018	
Class 4 – Champion Heifer Calf	
Class 5 – Reserve Champion Heifer Calf	Banner
Class 6 – Junior Heifers, Calved February 1-28, 2018	\$50 \$30 \$20
Class 7 – Junior Heifers, Calved January 1-31, 2018	
Class 8 – Junior Heifers, Calved November 1-December 31, 2017	
Class 9 – Junior Heifers, Calved September 1-October 31, 2017	
Class 10 – Champion Junior Heifer	
Class 11 – Reserve Champion Junior Heifer	
Class 12 – Senior Heifers, Calved May 1 – August 31, 2017	\$50 \$30 \$20
Class 13 – Senior Heifers, Calved March 1 – April 30, 2017	
Class 14 – Senior Heifers, Calved January 1 – February 28, 2017	
Class 15 – Senior Heifers, Calved September 1 – December 31, 2016	
Class 16 – Champion Senior Heifer	
Class 17 – Reserve Champion Senior Heifer	
Class 18 –Grand Champion Heifer\$200, B	uckle, Banner & Incentive
Class 19 – Reserve Champion Heifer\$100, B	

Ribbons will be awarded for 1<sup>st</sup> – 5<sup>th</sup> place. One showmanship award will be presented.

#### JUNIOR HEREFORD HEIFER SHOW

Reed Stewart, Superintendent

Arrival Schedule: 8:00 a.m. - 8:00 p.m., Thursday, February 7, 2019

8:00 a.m. - 8:00 p.m., Friday, February 8, 2019 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m., Saturday, February 9, 2019

5:00 p.m., Saturday, February 9, 2019

Check Papers: 6:00 p.m., Saturday February 9, 2019
Time of Show: 8:00 a.m., Sunday, February 10, 2019

Ring A

Check Out: 10:00 a.m., Monday, February 11, 2019 (all heifers must leave barn by this time)

Judge: Deb Core, Pleasanton, Iowa

In Place:

1. All Hereford Heifers to be eligible for this show must be recorded in the registry of the American Hereford Association. An official AHA registry number at entry time will be required.

2. This is a combined horned and polled show.

#### **PREMIUMS & CLASSES**

Class 1 – Heifer calves, Calved on or after May 1, 2018	\$85 \$65 \$50 \$35 \$25 \$25
Class 2 – Heifers calves, Calved April 1-30, 2018	\$85 \$65 \$50 \$35 \$25 \$25
Class 3 – Heifers calves, Calved March1-31, 2018	
Class 4 – Champion Heifer Calf	
Class 5 – Reserve Champion Heifer Calf	
·	
Class 6 – Junior Heifers, Calved February 1-28, 2018	\$85 \$65 \$50 \$35 \$25 \$25
Class 7 – Junior Heifers, Calved January 1-31, 2018	\$85 \$65 \$50 \$35 \$25 \$25
Class 8 – Junior Heifers, Calved November 1-December 31, 2017	
Class 9 – Junior Heifers, Calved September 1-October 31, 2017	
Class 10 – Champion Junior Heifer	
Class 11 – Reserve Champion Junior Heifer	
•	
Class 12 – Senior Heifers, Calved May 1 – August 31, 2017	\$85 \$65 \$50 \$35 \$25 \$25
Class 13 – Senior Heifers, Calved March 1 – April 30, 2017	\$85 \$65 \$50 \$35 \$25 \$25
Class 14 – Senior Heifers, Calved January 1 – February 28, 2017	\$85 \$65 \$50 \$35 \$25 \$25
Class 15 – Senior Heifers, Calved September 1 – December 31, 2016	
Class 16 – Champion Senior Heifer	
Class 17 – Reserve Champion Senior Heifer	
F 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	
Class 18 –Grand Champion Heifer\$300, Rene Stewart Memorial E	Buckle, Banner & Incentive
Class 19 – Reserve Champion Heifer	
Class 20 – 3 <sup>rd</sup> Best Hereford Heifer\$100, Dawson Coleman	
, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	, -

Ribbons will be awarded for 1st – 5th place. One showmanship award will be presented.

GKB Cattle Company, Gary & Kathy Buchholz of Bardwell, Texas will present an award to the exhibitors of the Division Champion and Reserve Division Champion Hereford Heifers.

#### JUNIOR LIMOUSIN HEIFER SHOW

Bruce Lawrence, Superintendent

Arrival Schedule: 8:00 a.m. - 8:00 p.m., Thursday, February 7, 2019

In Place: 5:00 p.m. Thursday, February 7, 2019 Check Papers: 6:00 p.m. Thursday, February 7, 2019 Time of Show: 8:00 a.m. Friday, February 8, 2019

Ring A - Following Angus, Shorthorn and Maine-Anjou

Check Out: 10:00 a.m., Monday, February 11, 2019 (all heifers must leave barn by this time)

Judge: Deb Core, Pleasnton, Iowa

- 1. All heifers to must be recorded in the herd Book of the North American Limousin Foundation to be eligible to show. Original Registration Certificates will be checked by the Superintendent during the designated check-in period. No photocopied or faxed certificated will be accepted.
- 2. All orange papered Limousin heifers must be 75% or greater Limousin blood as indicated on the registration certificate issued by the North American Limousin Foundation. All purple paper Lim-Flex heifers must be at least 50% or greater Limousin blood as indicated on the registration certificate issued by the North American Limousin Foundation. NALF percentages, not actual percentages, shall be used to determine eligibility.

#### **PREMIUMS & CLASSES**

Class 1 – Heifer calves, Calved on or after May 1, 2018	\$25 \$15 \$10
Class 2 – Heifers calves, Calved April 1-30, 2018	\$25 \$15 \$10
Class 3 – Heifers calves, Calved March1-31, 2018	
Class 4 – Champion Heifer Calf	Banner
Class 5 – Reserve Champion Heifer Calf	Banner
Class 6 – Junior Heifers, Calved February 1-28, 2018	\$25 \$15 \$10
Class 7 – Junior Heifers, Calved January 1-31, 2018	\$25 \$15 \$10
Class 8 – Junior Heifers, Calved November 1-December 31, 2017	\$25 \$15 \$10
Class 9 – Junior Heifers, Calved September 1-October 31, 2017	\$25 \$15 \$10
Class 10 – Champion Junior Heifer	Banner
Class 11 – Reserve Champion Junior Heifer	Banner
Class 12 – Senior Heifers, Calved May 1 – August 31, 2017	\$25 \$15 \$10
Class 13 – Senior Heifers, Calved March 1 – April 30, 2017	\$25 \$15 \$10
Class 14 – Senior Heifers, Calved January 1 – February 28, 2017	
Class 15 – Senior Heifers, Calved September 1 – December 31, 2016	
Class 16 – Champion Senior Heifer	Banner
Class 17 – Reserve Champion Senior Heifer	Banner
·	
Class 18 – Grand Champion Heifer	Buckle, Banner & Incentive
Class 19 – Reserve Grand Champion Heifer	
·	•

Ribbons will be awarded for  $1^{st} - 5^{th}$  place. One showmanship award will be presented.

#### JUNIOR MAIN ANJOU HEIFER SHOW

Vicki Housley & Jessica Chesshire, Co-Superintendents

Arrival Schedule: 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m., Thursday, February 7, 2019

In Place: 5:00 p.m., Thursday, February 7, 2019
Check Papers: 6:00 p.m., Thursday, February 7, 2019
Time of Show: 8:00 a.m. Friday, February 8, 2019

Ring A – Following Angus and Shorthorn

Check Out: 10:00 a.m., Monday, February 11, 2019 (all heifers must leave barn by this time)

Judge: Deb Core, Pleasanton, Iowa

1. All heifers to must be registered in the American Maine-Anjou Association Record Book and be at least 75% Maine-Anjou.

# **PREMIUMS & CLASSES**

Class 1 – Heifer Calves, Calved on or after May 1, 2018	\$50 \$30 \$20 \$50 \$30 \$20 Banner
Class 6 – Junior Heifers, Calved November 1 – December 31, 2017	\$50 \$30 \$20 \$50 \$30 \$20 Banner
Class 11 – Senior Heifers, Calved January 1 – April 30, 2017	\$50 \$30 \$20BannerBannerBanckle

Ribbons will be awarded for  $1^{st} - 5^{th}$  place.

Two Showmanship awards will be presented

#### JUNIOR OTHER REGISTERED BREEDS HEIFER SHOW

Dr. Justin Yancey, Superintendent

Arrival Schedule: 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m., Thursday, February 7, 2019

In Place: 5:00 p.m., Thursday, February 7, 2019
Check Papers: 6:00 p.m. Thursday, February 7, 2019
Time of Show: 8:00 a.m. Friday, February 8, 2019

Ring B

Check Out: 10:00 a.m., Monday, February 11, 2019 (all heifers must leave barn by this time)

Judge: Mark Core, Pleasanton, Iowa

- 1. Open to heifers of *Bos taurus* type that have been registered or issued a certificate of recordation with a recognized breed association. Breeds defined below are recognized in this division. Additional purebreds may be approved at the discretion of show management. Note: Specialty and miniature cattle breeds or percentages of these breeds will not be eligible to show in this division to include, but not limited to, Dexter, Longhorn, Lowline Angus, Miniature Hereford, Miniature Zebu and Wagyu.
  - <u>Braunvieh</u>- Purebred, 7/8 or greater Braunvieh blood.
  - <u>Braunvieh Beef Builder</u>- Must meet the Braunvieh Assocation rules for registrations as a Braunvieh Beef Builder. Eligible animals are at least a ¼ Braunvieh blood and less than purebred Braunvieh.
  - <u>Charolais</u> Must meet the American International Charolais Association rules for registration as a purebred Charloais
  - Gelbvieh- Purebred, 75% or greater Gelbvieh blood.
  - <u>Gelbvieh Balancer</u>- Must meet the American Gelbvieh Association rules for registration as a Balancer hybrid, 25% to 75% Gelbvieh with the balance Angus and Red Angus.
  - <u>Lim-Flex-</u> Must be purple papered with less than 50% Limousin blood. Heifers with 50% or greater Limousin blood will show in the Limousin breed division.
  - MaineTainer- Must be 25% to 62.5% Maine-Anjou.
  - Percentage Charolais- Must have certificate of recordation with AICA.
  - <u>Percentage Chianina</u>- Heifers with less than 6.25% Chianina influence that are not eligible to show in another breed division.
  - Percentage Simmental- Heifers must be less than purebred.
  - <u>Pinzgauer</u>- must be purebred (minimum of 87.5%) or Fullblood (100%)
  - Red Angus (Category 1B) Must have certificate of recordation with RAAA.
  - Red Angus (Category II) Must have certificate of recordation with RAAA.
  - Red Angus (Category III) Must have certificate of recordation with RAAA.
  - Shorthorn Plus- Must be registered as Shorthorn Plus.

# **PREMIUMS & CLASSES**

Class 1 – Heifer calves, Calved on or after May 1, 2018  Class 2 – Heifers calves, Calved April 1-30, 2018  Class 3 – Heifers calves, Calved March1-31, 2018  Class 4 – Champion Heifer Calf	\$50 \$30 \$20 \$50 \$30 \$20
Class 5 – Reserve Champion Heifer Calf	Banner
Class 6 – Junior Heifers, Calved February 1-28, 2018	\$50 \$30 \$20 \$50 \$30 \$20 \$50 \$30 \$20 Banner
Class 12 – Senior Heifers, Calved May 1 – August 31, 2017	
Class 13 – Senior Heifers, Calved March 1 – April 30, 2017	
Class 14 – Senior Heifers, Calved January 1 – February 28, 2017	
Class 15 – Senior Heifers, Calved September 1 – December 31, 2016	Banner
Class 18 – Grand Champion Heifer	
Ribbons will be awarded for 1 <sup>st</sup> – 5 <sup>th</sup> place.	

One showmanship award will be presented.

#### JUNIOR RED ANGUS HEIFER SHOW

Cody Halfmann, Superintendent

Glen Halfmann, Assistant Superintendent

Chad Halfmann, Assistant Superintendent

Arrival Schedule: 8:00 a.m. - 8:00 p.m., Thursday, February 7, 2019

8:00 a.m. - 8:00 p.m., Friday, February 8, 2019

8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m., Saturday, February 9, 2019

In Place: 5:00 p.m., Saturday, February 9, 2019 Check Papers: 6:00 p.m., Saturday, February 9, 2019 Time of Show: 8:00 a.m. Sunday, February 10, 2019

Ring A: Following Hereford

Check Out: 10:00 a.m., Monday, February 11, 2019 (all heifers must leave barn by this time)

Judge: Deb Core, Pleasanton, Iowa

1. All heifers to must be recorded in the herd Book of the American Red Angus Association to be eligible to show. Original Registration Certificates will be checked by the Superintendent during the designated check-in period.

# **Special Rules**

- 1. Only registered Red Angus of Category IA may be entered in the show.
- 2. Heifers entered in the show, as well as, being registered as a Category IA must exhibit only English characteristics and features.
- 3. No white forward of the naval, above the underline, or on legs.
- 4. No combination of black on nose, eyes or anus together.
- 5. Smooth poll only, showing no evidence of scurs or "buttons" removed.
- 6. Heifers may be subject to DNA testing and blood typing to prove parentage and Red Angus/A status by the Texas Red Angus Association.

#### **PREMIUMS & CLASSES**

Class 1 – Heifer calves, Calved on or after May 1, 2018	\$50 \$40 \$30
Class 2 – Heifers calves, Calved April 1-30, 2018	\$50 \$40 \$30
Class 3 – Heifers calves, Calved March1-31, 2018	\$50 \$40 \$30
Class 4 – Champion Heifer Calf	Banner, Bag
Class 5 – Reserve Champion Heifer Calf	Banner, Chair
Class 6 – Junior Heifers, Calved February 1-28, 2018	\$50 \$40 \$30
Class 7 – Junior Heifers, Calved January 1-31, 2018	\$50 \$40 \$30
Class 8 – Junior Heifers, Calved November 1-December 31, 2017	\$50 \$40 \$30
Class 9 – Junior Heifers, Calved September 1-October 31, 2017	\$50 \$40 \$30
Class 10 – Champion Junior Heifer	Banner, Bag
Class 11 – Reserve Champion Junior Heifer	Banner, Chair
Class 12 – Senior Heifers, Calved May 1 – August 31, 2017	\$50 \$40 \$30
Class 13 – Senior Heifers, Calved March 1 – April 30, 2017	\$50 \$40 \$30
Class 14 – Senior Heifers, Calved January 1 – February 28, 2017	\$50 \$40 \$30
Class 15 – Senior Heifers, Calved September 1 – December 31, 2016	\$50 \$40 \$30
Class 16 – Champion Senior Heifer	Banner, Bag
Class 17 – Reserve Champion Senior Heifer	Banner, Chair

Class 18 – Grand Champion Heifer	\$200, Buckle, Banner & Incentive
Class 19 – Reserve Grand Champion Heifer	\$100, Buckle, Banner & Incentive
Ribbons will be awarded for 1 <sup>st</sup> – 5 <sup>th</sup> place. One showmanship award will be presented.	

#### JUNIOR SANTA GERTRUDIS BREEDING SHOW

Tim Raley, Superintendent

Arrival Schedule: 8:00 a.m. - 8:00 p.m., Thursday, February 7, 2019

8:00 a.m. - 8:00 p.m., Friday, February 8, 2019 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m., Saturday, February 9, 2019

In Place: 5:00 p.m., Saturday, February 9, 2019 Check Papers: 6:00 p.m. Saturday, February 9, 2019 Time of Show: 8:00 a.m. Sunday, February 10, 2019

Ring B – Following Brangus and Beefmaster

Check Out: 10:00 a.m., Monday, February 11, 2019 (all heifers must leave barn by this time)

Judge: Mark Core, Pleasanton, Iowa

- 1. All exhibits of Santa Gertrudis breeding cattle must meet the requirements for registration as outlined in the Santa Gertrudis Standard of Excellence and shall be governed by the last revised version of the Rules and Regulations for Approved Santa Gertrudis Open & Junior Shows as approved by the board of Santa Gertrudis Breeders International.
- 2. Exhibitor must be a member in good standing with Santa Gertrudis Breeders International.

#### **PREMIUMS & CLASSES**

Class 1 – Heifer calves, Calved on or after May 1, 2018	\$50 \$40 \$30
Class 2 – Heifers calves, Calved April 1-30, 2018	\$50 \$40 \$30
Class 3 – Heifers calves, Calved March1-31, 2018	\$50 \$40 \$30
Class 4 – Champion Heifer Calf	Banner
Class 5 – Reserve Champion Heifer Calf	Banner
Class 6 – Junior Heifers, Calved February 1-28, 2018	\$50 \$40 \$30
Class 7 – Junior Heifers, Calved January 1-31, 2018	\$50 \$40 \$30
Class 8 – Junior Heifers, Calved November 1-December 31, 2017	\$50 \$40 \$30
Class 9 – Junior Heifers, Calved September 1-October 31, 2017	\$50 \$40 \$30
Class 10 – Champion Junior Heifer	Banner
Class 11 – Reserve Champion Junior Heifer	Banner
Class 12 – Senior Heifers, Calved May 1 – August 31, 2017	\$50 \$40 \$30
Class 13 – Senior Heifers, Calved March 1 – April 30, 2017	\$50 \$40 \$30
Class 14 – Senior Heifers, Calved January 1 – February 28, 2017	\$50 \$40 \$30
Class 15 – Senior Heifers, Calved September 1 – December 31, 2016	\$50 \$40 \$30
Class 16 – Champion Senior Heifer	Banner
Class 17 – Reserve Champion Senior Heifer	Banner
Class 18 – Grand Champion Heifer	Buckle, Banner & Incentive
Class 19 – Reserve Grand Champion Heifer	Buckle, Banner & Incentive

Ribbons will be awarded for 1<sup>st</sup> – 5<sup>th</sup> place. One showmanship award will be presented.

#### JUNIOR SHORTHORN HEIFER SHOW

George Ahlschwede, Superintendent

Arrival Schedule: 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m., Thursday, February 7, 2019

In Place: 5:00 p.m., Thursday, February 7, 2019 Check Papers: 6:00 p.m., Thursday, February 7, 2019 Time of Show: 8:00 a.m. Friday, February 8, 2019

Ring A

Check Out: 10:00 a.m., Monday, February 11, 2019 (all heifers must leave barn by this time)

Judge: Deb Core, Pleasanton, Iowa

- 1. All heifers to must be recorded in the herd Book of the American Shorthorn Association to be eligible to show. All heifers must be full blood Shorthorn
- 2. The number of designated classes to receive prize monies will NOT EXCEED a total of 8 classes. Order of the classes will be from youngest to oldest. Championship classes will be the  $1^{st}$  and  $2^{nd}$  place winners within the classes.

PREMIUM CHECKS WILL BE MAILED TO THE AGENT/INSTRUCTOR FOLLOWING THE SHOW

#### **PREMIUMS & CLASSES**

Class 1 – Heifer Calves, Calved on or after May 1, 2018	\$50 \$35 \$25 \$20 \$10
Class 2 – Heifer Calves, Calved March 1 – April 30, 2018	\$50 \$35 \$25 \$20 \$10
Class 3 – Heifer Calves, Calved January 1 – February 28, 2018	\$50 \$35 \$25 \$20 \$10
Class 4 – Champion Heifer Calf	Banner
Class 5 – Reserve Champion Heifer Calf	Banner
Class 6 – Junior Heifers, Calved November 1 – December 31, 2017	
Class 7 – Junior Heifers, Calved September 1 – October 31, 2017	\$50 \$35 \$25 \$20 \$10
Class 8 – Junior Heifers, Calved May 1 – August 31, 2017	
Class 9 – Champion Junior Heifer	Banner
Class 10 – Reserve Champion Junior Heifer	Banner
Class 11 – Senior Heifers, Calved January 1 – April 30, 2017	\$50 \$35 \$25 \$20 \$10
Class 12 – Senior Heifers, Calved September 1 – December 31, 2016	\$50 \$35 \$25 \$20 \$10
Class 13 – Champion Senior Heifer	Banner
Class 14 – Reserve Champion Senior Heifer	
Class 15 – Champion Heifer	Buckle, Banner & Incentive
Class 16 – Reserve Champion Heifer	Buckle, Banner & Incentive

Two Showmanship awards will be given:

Senior – 13 and over; Junior – under 13. Jr. Showmanship

The Texas Shorthorn Association will furnish 30% of premium money paid out.

#### JUNIOR SIMMENTAL HEIFER SHOW

Brandon Green, Superintendent

Barn Schedule: 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m., Thursday, February 7, 2019

In Place: 5:00 p.m., Thursday, February 7, 2019
Check Papers: 6:00 p.m. Thursday, February 7, 2019
Time of Show: 8:00 a.m., Friday, February 8, 2019

**Ring B- Following ORB and Chianina** 

Check Out: 10:00 a.m., Monday, February 11, 2019 (all heifers must leave barn by this time)

Judge: Mark Core, Pleasanton, Iowa

1. All heifers must be registered in the exhibitor's name with the American Simmental Association registry and meet the pure-bred or Simm-Angus requirements to be eligible for the Simmental Show.

# PREMIUM CHECKS WILL BE MAILED TO THE AGENT/INSTRUCTOR FOLLOWING THE SHOW PREMIUMS & CLASSES

Class 1 – Heifer Calves, Calved on or after May 1, 2018	\$50 \$40 \$30 \$25 \$50 \$40 \$30 \$25 Banner
Class 6 – Junior Heifers, Calved November 1 – December 31, 2017  Class 7 – Junior Heifers, Calved September 1 – October 31, 2017  Class 8 – Junior Heifers, Calved May 1 – August 31, 2017  Class 9 – Champion Junior Heifer  Class 10 – Reserve Champion Junior Heifer	\$50 \$40 \$30 \$25 \$50 \$40 \$30 \$25 \$50 \$40 \$30 \$25 Banner
Class 11 – Senior Heifers, Calved January 1 – April 30, 2017	\$50 \$40 \$30 \$25 Banner Banner Buckle, Banner & Incentive

Ribbons will be awarded for  $1^{st} - 5^{th}$  place.

Two Showmanship awards will be presented.

#### JUNIOR ALL BREED HEIFER FUTURITY

Maegan Schwartz, Superintendent

Entry Fee: \$15.00 per head – Limit 1 per exhibitor

\$30.00 per head – Late fee- Cash only at show

Heifer must be entered in the Angus, ARB, Brangus, Beefmaster, Chianina,

Hereford, Limousin, Maine-Anjou, ORB, Red Angus, Santa Gertrudis, Shorthorn, or

Simmental Shows

Entry Deadline: December 1, 2018 Postmark (Double fees Dec. 1- Show Check In)

Barn Opens: 8:00 a.m., Thursday, February 7, 2019

In Place-Check-In 9:00-10:00 a.m., Saturday, February 9, 2019 in Cattle Office

Time of Show: 1:00 p.m., Saturday, February 9, 2019 in Spur Arena

1. All rules apply to the Heifer Futurity. Please refer to the General Rules and Junior Show Rules.

- 2. Judging will be done by recognized livestock judges and breeders.
- 3. Each exhibitor may enter only one heifer in the futurity. Each contestant must show the animals they enter, as well as own the animal they exhibit. Heifer must be entered and shown in its respective breed at San Angelo.
- 4. The top four winners in each division will receive the following premiums respectively: \$250, \$175, \$125, & \$75. Premium amounts are subject to change based on the number of total entries. PREMIUM CHECKS WILL BE MAILED TO THE AGENT/INSTRUCTOR FOLLOWING THE SHOW

Junior: $3^{rd}$  Grade- $5^{th}$  GradeIntermediate: $6^{th}$  Grade  $-8^{th}$  GradeSenior: $9^{th}$  Grade  $-12^{th}$  Grade

- 5. If tie scores occur, tie will be broken by using reasons score first, then showmanship, judging and sales talk.
- 6. The Heifer Futurity point system is as follows:

A. Showmanship
 B. Judging of two heifer classes
 C. Reasons for judging class
 D. Sales talk by the exhibitors
 50 points possible
 50 points possible
 50 points possible

- 7. All entries must conform to the rules and regulations of their respective breed and the San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo Association. The Heifer Futurity section of the Junior Heifer Entry Form must be filled out listing the breed.
- 8. Showmanship will be judged as a special class and points will be awarded to each contestant. Primary considerations will be presentation of the animal and show it to best advantage. Two classes of heifers will be judged and oral reasons given on one class. Judging contest will follow the 4-H & FFA contest rules. The sales talk is judged on the ability of contestants to "sell" their heifer to the judge. The judge is given the registration certificate for information and will interact with contestant. Heifer may be held by another person while contestant is giving his presentation. The sales talk should take about 5 minutes.
- 9. An animal that is disqualified for ANY REASON, in its respective breed show will be disqualified from the Heifer Futurity, as well. Additionally, the exhibitor will be required to forfeit any premiums, ribbons and/or any other prizes won in the Futurity Show, but in no event shall it affect the order of finish of the other animals competing in the Futurity Show.

#### JUNIOR BREEDING GILT SHOW

Dale Wilde, Superintendent

Blaise Wilde, Assistant Superintendent



Entry Fee: \$25.00 per head – No Limit on Entries

Entry Deadline: December 1, 2018 Postmark (Double fees Dec. 1- Dec. 15)

Arrival Time: 10:00 a.m.-8:00 p.m., Friday, February 8, 2019

6:00 a.m.- 9:00 a.m., Saturday, February 9, 2019

In Place: 10:00 a.m., Saturday, February 9, 2019 Check-In: 11:00 a.m., Saturday, February 9, 2019 Time of Show: 8:00 a.m., Sunday, February 10, 2019

Release following show

Show Order: Berkshire, DOPB, Duroc, Hampshire, LOPB, Spot, Yorkshire

Judge: Nate Schmidgall, Rutland, IL

- 1. All rules apply to the Junior Breeding Gilt Show. Please refer to the General Rules and Junior Show Rules.
- 2. All gilts entered in the Junior Breeding Gilt Show must be validated in the Texas 4-H and FFA Swine Validation Program. Gilts must be listed on an official Swine Validation Form between November 1 and November 30. Exhibitors must have owned and cared for their animals continuously since November 30, 2018. Show management will make the final decision regarding any potential disqualification.
- 3. Animals must be registered in the herd book of their association in the name of the junior owner on or before December 1<sup>st</sup>, the year preceding the show. Superintendents will check original registration certificates at check-in. Berkshire, Duroc, Hampshire, Spot, & Yorkshire breeds will all have their own breed division. The Dark OPB will contain Poland China & Hereford Gilts, while the Light OPB will consist of Landrace and Chester White gilts.
- 4. Health papers along with other testing will be required, as some of these animals have potential to be leaving the state. Please check Animal Health Regulations for the 2019 Stock Show for complete requirements for all gilts exhibited in the 2019 Show. Health papers must be submitted to show officials at check-in when papers are checked or weights are turned in, whichever is applicable.

## **2019 ANIMAL HEALTH REGULATIONS**

**BREEDING GILTS** 

- 1. All certificates must be issued on or after January 15, 2019, with the following information:
  - A. Leptospirosis vaccination is required on breeding swine within 30 days prior to date of the sale (on or after January 15, 2019) with vaccine containing the following strains: Canicola,

- Hardjo, Icterohaemorrhagiae, Grippotyphosa, and Pomona. Vaccination date must appear on the health certificate.
- B. A statement must appear that says the animal has not been fed garbage, has not been exposed to hog cholera or pseudorabies, does not originate from a quarantined herd, nor has the herd of origin had PRV within the last six months, nor have the entries themselves been vaccinated for PRV.
- C. Gilt identification must be included on health certificate in form of validation number and ear notches.

- 5. Gilts must have been farrowed between July 1st and September 20th, 2018.
- 6. Classes will be broken by age following check-in. Classes will be divided as equally as possible. The number of classes per breed will be determined by the number of head that check-in the day of the show as follows:

Less Than 30 Head 2 Classes 30-59 Head 3 Classes 60 or More Head 4 Classes

7. **Premiums:** The following premium schedule has been established and will be provided for places 1-5 in each class. Checks will be mailed to the Agent/Instructor following the show.

1<sup>st</sup>- \$25.00 2<sup>nd</sup>- \$22.00 3<sup>rd</sup>- \$20.00 4<sup>th</sup>- \$18.00 5<sup>th</sup>- \$15.00

8. Cash Incentives: Cash incentives will be awarded on the following schedule:

Breed Champion......\$500 Supreme Champion......\$500 Reserve Breed Champion......\$250 Reserve Supreme Champion.....\$250

- 9. Breed Champion exhibitors may enter future shows and may receive additional incentives. Supreme Champion exhibitors may return to future shows.
- 10. Gilts will be stalled in the Livestock Barn #2. To enter the grounds for livestock unloading and loading, all trailers will enter the fairgrounds on the North side at Gate 6 off of Lake View Heroes Drive. There will be two lots indicated for trailer staging. At the direction of officials, trailers will be allowed to back up to the West Side of the Livestock Barn for unloading. Once unloaded, vehicles will exit Gate 2, circle back towards Gate 6 to proceed toward the trailer lot.
- 11. **Division Transfers:** Exhibitors will be charged a \$100 fee for any division transfers made after the time of entry up to the time of check in.

Note: Decision of the Superintendent shall be final.

Ribbons will be awarded for 1<sup>st</sup> – 5<sup>th</sup> place. One Showmanship award will be presented.

<sup>\*</sup>All health certificates left in possession of show management at the conclusion of all Gilt Shows will be disposed of. Exhibitors must pick up health certificate in Livestock Office before leaving the fairgrounds.\*

<sup>\*</sup>For Classes over 70 show management will break into additionally classes as deemed appropriate\*

#### JUNIOR STARS GILT SHOW

David Kempen, Superintendent Kyle Stephens, Assistant Superintendent



Entry Fee: \$28.00 per head – No Limit on Entries

Entry Deadline: December 1, 2018 Postmark (Double fees Dec. 1- Dec. 15)

Arrival Time: 10:00 a.m. - 8:00 p.m., Friday, February 8, 2019

6:00 a.m. - 9:00 a.m., Saturday, February 9, 2019

In Place: 9:00 a.m., Saturday, February 9, 2019 Check In: 10:00 a.m., Saturday, February 9, 2019

Time of Show: Pedigreed- 12:00 p.m. (Noon), Saturday, February 9, 2019

Non-Pedigreed- 8:00 a.m., Sunday, February 10, 2019

Release Time: Non-Sale gilts must be out of barns 1 hour after Show

Sale: 6:00 p.m., Tuesday, February 12, 2019

Judge: Justin Rodibaugh, Rensslear, IN & Seth Sweson, Newark, IL

- 1. All rules apply to the Junior Stars Junior Gilt Show. Please refer to the General Rules and Junior Show Rules.
- 2. PUREBRED GILTS- exhibitors with Pedigreed gilts will be required to present **original registration certificates**. Animals must be registered in the herd book of their association **in the name of the junior owner** on or before December 1<sup>st</sup>, the year preceding the show. PHOTOCOPIES WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED. Show officials will review original registration certificates at check-in. **The exhibitor will be required to furnish original copy of the registration certificate in the show ring when exhibiting their gilt.** All Purebred gilts must be eligible for exhibition as per guidelines established by their respective breed associations. A committee of three appointed by the show will determine the eligibility of those gilts that exhibit questionable breed character as established by the breed association for exhibition. All purebred gilts are subject to DNA Testing to determine stress, color gene, and parentage.
- 3. All gilts entered in the Junior Stars Junior Gilt Show must be validated in the Texas 4-H and FFA Swine Validation Program. Gilts must be listed on an official Swine Validation Form between November 1 and November 30. Exhibitors must have owned and cared for their animals continuously since November 30, 2018. Show management will make the final decision regarding any potential disqualification.
- 4. There is no limit on the number of entries each exhibitor may enter, as long as each entry meets all requirements.

5. Health papers along with other testing will be required, as some of these animals have potential to be leaving the state. Please check Animal Health Regulations for the 2019 Stock Show for complete requirements for all gilts exhibited in the 2019 Show. Health papers will be inspected and collected at the arrival gate. Please use <u>validation number</u> for identification along with ear notches. All health certificates left in the possession of show management at the conclusion of the show will be disposed of.

#### **2019 ANIMAL HEALTH REGULATIONS**

**BREEDING GILTS** 

- 1. All certificates must be issued on or after January 15, 2019, with the following information:
  - A. Leptospirosis vaccination is required on breeding swine within 30 days prior to date of the sale (on or after January 15, 2019) with vaccine containing the following strains: Canicola, Hardjo, Icterohaemorrhagiae, Grippotyphosa, and Pomona. Vaccination date must appear on the health certificate.
  - B. A statement must appear that says the animal has not been fed garbage, has not been exposed to hog cholera or pseudorabies, does not originate from a quarantined herd, nor has the herd of origin had PRV within the last six months, nor have the entries themselves been vaccinated for PRV.
  - C. Gilt identification must be included on health certificate in form of validation number and ear notches.
- \*All health certificates left in possession of show management at the conclusion of all Gilt Shows will be disposed of. Exhibitors must pick up health certificate in Livestock Office before leaving the fairgrounds.\*
- 6. **Pedigreed Division:** Purebred classes will be broken by age following check-in. Gilts must have been farrowed between July 1<sup>st</sup> and September 20<sup>th</sup>, 2018. Classes will be divided equally, with not more than three classes per breed. If 30 head or more arrive, the breed will be divided into three classes. If less than 30 head arrive, the breed will be broken into two classes. Purebreds will follow an 8 breed format, with these breeds being eligible: Duroc, Hampshire, Yorkshire, Spots, Poland China, Berkshire, Landrace, and Chester Whites. *Any breed that has 10 or more pedigreed animals entered will be judged as a separate breed. Breeds with less than 10 pedigreed animals entered will be judged in the OPB class.* The number of divisions/classes of the OPB's will be determined by the superintendent. In the event two breeds must be combined into an OPB class, they will follow the last purebred breed division with 15 head. Depending on the number of pedigreed gilts, show management reserves the right to establish additional classes within these breed divisions.
- \*Hereford gilts are eligible to show in the Non-pedigreed division. Registration papers are not required.\*
- 7. **Non-Pedigreed Division:** Classes will be broken by weight following the weight card deadline. Classes will be divided as evenly as possible, with no less than 15 head per any class. Gilts will be divided into three major divisions by weight: Light, Medium and Heavy. Depending on the number of crossbred gilts, show management reserves the right to establish additional classes within these major divisions.

Non-pedigreed gilts must weigh a minimum of 230 pounds and there is no maximum weight. Weight cards must be turned in by 10:00 a.m., February 9, 2019 and all non-pedigreed gilts eligible for placing will be subject to re-weigh. There will be a 10 pound weigh-back on both the top and bottom. If a gilt does not weigh within 10 pounds of turned in weight, it will be disqualified.

- 8. **Champion Drives:** All pedigreed breed champions and reserve breed champions will compete for Grand Champion and Reserve Grand Champion Pedigreed Gilt. All three major weight division champions in the Non-Pedigreed Division will compete for Grand Champion and Reserve Grand Champion Non-Pedigreed Gilt. The Grand Champion and Reserve Grand Champion Pedigreed Gilt and the Grand Champion and Reserve Grand Champion Non-Pedigreed Gilt will compete for Supreme Champion and Reserve Supreme Champion.
- 9. Sale: Approximately 60 gilts will be eligible to sell in the Junior Stars Gilt Sale. All gilts selected to the sale must sell- no exceptions. Sale order will be determined by the sale committee and judge(s). There is no limit to the number of head an exhibitor may sell. All gilts will sell as is, the show management makes no guarantees. A 15% commission will be collected on each gilt in the sale to assist in marketing expenses for the event. Please review the Select Gilt Sale rules page.
- 10. **Non-Sale Gilts:** Gilts that are not selected for the Junior Stars Select Gilt Sale will be released and considered "take-home." All non-sale gilts must leave the facility one hour after the selection of Supreme and Reserve Supreme Champion Gilt. Stock Show releases will be required and may be obtained from the show superintendents or designated personnel.
- 11. **Incentives:** Each breed champion in the Pedigreed Division and each of the three (3) major division winners in the Non-Pedigreed Division will receive a \$500 incentive. Each reserve breed champion in the Pedigreed Division and each of the three (3) major division reserve champions in the Non-Pedigreed Division will receive a \$250 incentive.
- 12. Exhibitors are eligible to receive multiple incentives. Exhibitors must be present and exhibiting their animal to receive the incentives.
- 13. Exhibitors of non-pedigreed animals will be required to complete a pedigree form listing the sire and sire of dam at time of check-in.
- 14. Pens will be assigned at the staging lot. In order to pen together you must arrive together. Please haul with your club or chapter.
- 15. Gilts will be stalled in the Swine, Sheep & Goat Livestock barn. To enter the grounds for livestock unloading and loading, all trailers will enter the fairgrounds on the North side at Gate 6 off of Lake View Heroes Drive. There will be two lots indicated for trailer staging. At the direction of officials, trailers will be allowed to back up to the West Side of the Swine, Sheep & Goat Livestock Barn for unloading. Once unloaded, vehicles will exit Gate 2, circle back towards Gate 6 to proceed toward the trailer lot.
- 16. **Division Transfers:** Exhibitors will be charged a \$100 fee for any division transfers made after the time of entry up to the time of check in.
- \*\*\*Please be familiar with Rule #5 in the Texas 4-H/FFA Livestock Program Ethics Policy: "Animals validated for major shows may also be exhibited at other shows. Be advised, however, that if any validated animal is exhibited and SOLD at any other show, the animal will be ineligible to show at any subsequent major show. If ownership changes, regardless of method or length of time, that chain of animal ownership is considered broken."

It is suggested that all junior exhibitors subscribe to the National Swine Registry Code of Fair Practices. These may be found on the NSR website, nationalswine.com, in the Policies Section.

Note: Decision of the Superintendent & Show Management shall be final.

One Showmanship award will be presented.

#### **JUNIOR STARS GILT SALE**

Kyle Stephens, Superintendent David Kempen, Assistant Superintendent



# 6:00 p.m., Tuesday, February 12, 2019

San Angelo Stock Show Sale Pavilion

Entry Fee: \$28.00 per head – No Limit on Entries

Entry Deadline: December 1, 2018 Postmark (Double fees Dec. 1- Dec. 15)

Arrival Time: 8:00 a.m. - 8:00 p.m., Friday, February 8, 2019

6:00 a.m. - 9:00 a.m., Saturday, February 9, 2019

In Place: 9:00 a.m., Saturday, February 9, 2019
Check In: 10:00 a.m., Saturday, February 9, 2019

Time of Show: Pedigreed- 12:00 p.m., Saturday, February 9, 2019

Non-Pedigreed-8:00 a.m., Sunday, February 10, 2019

Release Time: Non-Sale gilts must be out of barns 1 hour after Show

Sale Preview: 4:30 p.m., Tuesday, February 12, 2019 Sale: 6:00 p.m., Tuesday, February 12, 2019

Judge: Justin Rodibaugh, Rensslear, IN & Seth Swenson, Newark, IL

- 1. Approximately 60 top animals selected from 2019 Junior Stars Gilt Show will be sold. An exhibitor will not be limited to the number of gilts that may enter the show or qualify for the sale.
- 2. All pedigreed animals will be required to have their original registration certificates from the appropriate breed registry. Animals must be registered in the herd book of their association in the name of the junior owner on or before December 1, the year preceding the show.
- 3. Please review Animal Health Regulations for the 2019 Stock Show for complete requirements for all gilts exhibited in the 2019 Show. These requirements should cover all main health regulations of a gilt purchased and taken to another state, however, it is the purchaser's responsibility to understand all requirements for entrance to their state and meet any additional requirements that may not be covered.

#### **2019 ANIMAL HEALTH REGULATIONS**

**BREEDING GILTS** 

- 1. All certificates must be issued on or after January 15, 2019, with the following information:
  - A. Leptospirosis vaccination is required on breeding swine within 30 days prior to date of the sale (on or after January 15, 2019) with vaccine containing the following strains: Canicola,

- Hardjo, Icterohaemorrhagiae, Grippotyphosa, and Pomona. Vaccination date must appear on the health certificate.
- B. A statement must appear that says the animal has not been fed garbage, has not been exposed to hog cholera or pseudorabies, does not originate from a quarantined herd, nor has the herd of origin had PRV within the last six months, nor have the entries themselves been vaccinated for PRV.
- C. Gilt identification must be included on health certificate in form of validation number and ear notches.

\*All health certificates left in possession of show management at the conclusion of all Gilt Shows will be disposed of. Exhibitors must pick up health certificate in Livestock Office before leaving the fairgrounds.\*

- 4. The Junior Stars Gilt Sale is open to all buyers and buyer registration will begin at 5:00 p.m. in the Sale Pavilion. All animals must be paid for in full before released to the buyer. There will be a \$50.00 service charge on all returned checks. Payment may be made by cash, check or credit card.
- 5. The San Angelo Stock Show & Rodeo Association will charge a 15% sales. Animals may be bought back in the sale by the exhibitor or the exhibitor's family; however, the 15% sales commission will still be applied to the sale price.
- 6. The seller will be responsible for expenses incurred to change ownership of registered gilts. Fees associated with ownership changes will be deducted from the seller's check after commission is taken out.
- 7. The sale will begin with the Supreme Champion Gilt, followed by the Reserve Supreme Champion Gilt, followed by the remaining of the top five overall gilts, then the sale order will be determined the by the sale committee chairmen and judge(s).
- 8. Sale order will be selected immediately following the selection of the Supreme and Reserve Supreme Champion Gilt.
- 9. Sale checks will not be awarded to exhibitors until all DNA results are verified. In the event that the results prove that the animal does not meet the DNA requirements for purebred gilts the buyer will be notified as to the pedigree status and will be offered the option of refusal. If the buyer refuses the gilt, the Show will promptly refund the purchase price minus the commission. The exhibitor will be notified and must make arrangements to secure the gilt, it will be the responsibility of the exhibitor to refund the commission cost to the buyer.
- 10. There must be someone present to care for the animal as well as walk the animal through the show ring.

It is suggested that all junior exhibitors subscribe to the National Swine Registry Code of Fair Practices. These may be found on the NSR website, nationalswine.com, in the Policies Section.

\*\*\*Please be familiar with Rule #5 in the Texas 4-H/FFA Livestock Program Ethics Policy:

"Animals validated for major shows may also be exhibited at other shows. Be advised, however, that if any validated animal is exhibited and SOLD at any other show, the animal will be ineligible to show at any subsequent major show. If ownership changes, regardless of method or length of time, that chain of animal ownership is considered broken."

#### JUNIOR EWE LAMB FUTURITY SHOW

Russell Kott, Superintendent

Entry Fee: \$30.00 per pair of Ewe Lambs – Limit 1 pair per exhibitor Entry Deadline: December 1, 2018 Postmark (Double fees Dec. 1- Dec. 15)

Barn Opens: 10:00 a.m. Thursday, February 14, 2019 In Place: 3:00 p.m. Friday, February 15, 2019 Weigh-in & Clip Samples: 5:00 p.m., Friday, February 15, 2019 Time of Show: 2:00 p.m., Saturday, February 16, 2019

## Judges:

- 1. All rules apply to the Junior Ewe Lamb Futurity. Please refer to the General Rules and Junior Show Rules.
- 2. An exhibitor may initially start with as many as four registered or commercial Finewool ewe lambs, but is allowed to show only one pair of ewe lambs. Ewe lambs must be in possession of, fed, and cared for by the exhibitor. Ewe lambs must be halter broke. Health papers are required; please check Animal Health Regulations for complete details.
- 3. Ewe lambs must be sheared and validated on or after October 20, 2018. Each ewe lamb must be identified with a numbered tag.
- 4. Fall or spring born ewe lambs may be shown.
- 5. For purposes of records and record form, October 20, 2018 will be considered the beginning date of the Ewe Lamb Futurity project.
- 6. Each ewe lamb must be weighed at the beginning (October 20, 2018 shorn weight) and end (February 16, 2019 unshorn weight) of the project and must gain at least 30 pounds during this period. One point for every pound under 30 pounds will be deducted from the score sheets.
- 7. To enter the grounds for livestock unloading and loading, all trailers will enter the fairgrounds on the North side at Gate 6 off of Lake View Heroes Drive. There will be two lots indicated for trailer staging. At the direction of officials, trailers will be allowed to back up to the West Side of the South Livestock Barn for unloading. Once unloaded, vehicles will exit Gate 2, circle back towards Gate 6 to proceed toward the trailer lot.
- 8. Exhibitors must weigh their lambs at 5:00 p.m., February 15, and turn in their record forms. At 2:00 p.m., February 16 exhibitors must tie their lambs in the arena for judging. Three judges will evaluate ewes in full fleeces, after which time they will be shorn. Judges will then evaluate fleeces and shorn ewe lambs.
- 9. Exhibitors will be required to keep records for the duration of the project. They will also be required to take a test and judge a class of Finewool ewes and a class of wool fleeces at 1:00 p.m. on Saturday, February 16, to determine their knowledge of general sheep production. Record forms, and a study guide and study questions should be picked up at your County Extension office or the Stock Show office by the initiation date of October 20<sup>th</sup>.

10. The Ewe Lamb Futurity will be evaluated:

Live Evaluation 40%	Wool Evaluation 20%

In-wool visual appraisal	20%	Fleece wt. of both ewe lambs	10%
(Uniformity of pair, wool blindness, bell	ly wool, hair britch,	Average fiber diameter	5%
fleece character, breed character)		(subjective measure)	
Out of wool visual appraisal	20%	Average staple length	5%

(size, structural correctness, muscle, conformation)

Placing and Evaluation 20%	Written Portion 20%
----------------------------	---------------------

Finewool Ewes – Placing & Questions	10%	Record form	10%
Wool Fleeces – Placing & Questions	10%	Written test	10%

11. Ribbons will be awarded for the winner in each of the four categories (Live Evaluation, Wool Evaluation, Placing and Evaluation, and Written Portion). Rosettes will be awarded to the top 15 highest total scores. Belt Buckles and banner will be awarded to the exhibitors with the two highest total points (1<sup>st</sup> & 2<sup>nd</sup>). Premiums will be paid on total scores as follows:

## PREMIUM CHECKS WILL BE MAILED TO THE AGENT/INSTRUCTOR FOLLOWING THE SHOW

1 <sup>st</sup>	\$500.00	5 <sup>th</sup>	\$350.00	9 <sup>th</sup>	\$250.00	13 <sup>th</sup>	\$150.00
2 <sup>nd</sup>	\$450.00	6 <sup>th</sup>	\$325.00	10 <sup>th</sup>	\$225.00	14 <sup>th</sup>	\$125.00
3 <sup>rd</sup>	\$400.00	7 <sup>th</sup>	\$300.00	11 <sup>th</sup>	\$200.00	15 <sup>th</sup>	\$100.00
4 <sup>th</sup>	\$375.00	8 <sup>th</sup>	\$275.00	12 <sup>th</sup>	\$175.00		

12. The exhibitor of the Grand Champion will receive a \$500.00 incentive. The exhibitor of the Reserve grand will receive a \$250.00 incentive. Incentive recipients may enter future shows and are eligible for future awards. Exhibitors must be present to be awarded the incentive.

#### JUNIOR BREEDING SHEEP SHOW

Melvin Bohnert, Superintendent

Entry Fee: \$25.00 per head – Limit 8 per breed per exhibitor

Entry Deadline: December 1, 2018 Postmark (Double fees Dec. 1- Dec. 15)

Barn Opens: 10:00 a.m. Thursday, February 14, 2019 In Place: 3:00 p.m., Friday, February 15, 2019

Time of Show: 8:00 a.m. Saturday, February 16, 2019, Dorpers

8:00 a.m. Sunday, February 17, 2019, All other breeds

Judge: Vance Christie, Tolar, TX

- 1. All rules apply to the Junior Breeding Sheep Show. Please refer to the General Rules and Junior Show Rules.
- 2. Each entry form must show the full name, address, and social security number of the exhibitor, the name of the breed and number of head entered. It will not be necessary to give the name of the animal, registry number or name of sire and dam until the certificate of registry is presented to the superintendent. Certificates of registry must be furnished to the superintendent before the animals enter the ring. Affidavits in lieu of registration certificates will not be accepted.
- 3. All breeding sheep must be registered in the exhibitor's name in the Flock Books of their respective breeds, and bear such identification as that association requires, by October 1, 2018.

All Junior Breeding Sheep must have a flock tag in the ear that matches the flock tag number listed on the registration paper in addition to an official USDA Scrapie tag along with any ear tags required by the Texas Sheep Validation Program. Any sheep not having a flock tag matching the flock number on the registration paper will be disqualified and barred from showing.

- 4. To be eligible to exhibit in the 2019 Junior Breeding Sheep Show, all sheep must be validated in the Texas 4-H and FFA Breeding Sheep Validation Program. Hair follicle samples will be collected from all Breed Champions and all Reserve Champions, and a DNA analysis will be conducted on each of these hair follicle samples. The Junior Breeding Sheep Show committee may also collect hair follicle samples from any other entry for the purpose of conducting a DNA analysis. Any sheep not having a positive match from the DNA analysis of the hair follicle samples, compared to the DNA analysis of the hair follicle sample taken from it at the time of enrollment in the validation program, will be disqualified. Nose prints will also be taken on all sheep at validation and those prints may be verified at the show. All breeding sheep will be validated in individual exhibitor names and not by families. No partnerships allowed.
- 5. The breeder of an animal is the owner of the dam at the time of service. If a boy or girl showing sheep in the registered class is such a breeder, his or her lamb must be registered in the boy's or girl's name by October 1, of the year preceding the show.
- 6. If a boy or a girl is showing a sheep in the registered classes that is a gift from some breeder, the transfer certificate must be dated on Association records on or before October 1, of the year preceding the show.
- 7. Classes are provided for lambs, two-tooth, and four-to-six tooth sheep. Sheep in the Lamb Classes must retain all lamb teeth and be at least 6 months of age. Sheep which have dropped one or more milk teeth,

or show one or both teeth of the permanent pair of incisors, are eligible only in the Two-Tooth Classes. Sheep showing the first two pair or three pair of permanent incisors are eligible to show in the four to sixtooth classes only. In order to be able to move an entry up, you must fill the lamb class first.

- 8. Entries in the Other Wool and Medium Wool Breed Division may include any registered wool or medium wool sheep from a recognized breed registry. Other registered hair breeds will not be eligible to show in this division.
- 9. Each junior exhibitor is entitled to enter two animals per single class and only one group in each group class.
- 10. The judge making awards must have the clerk record the ear tag number of each animal awarded a prize.
- 11. Only first place winners shall compete for champion animal. The second place winner in the class from which the champion animal was selected will compete for reserve champion animal.
- 12. Pen assignments will be made by the pen stewards at time of arrival. One pen will be assigned per two entries.
- 13. The same sheep MAY compete in both Junior and Open Shows.
- 14. Livestock exhibitors will be allowed to display signs over exhibits advertising their own herds. This is only allowed in livestock barns.
- 15. All sheep entered in the Junior Rambouillet Show must be shorn on or after October 20<sup>th</sup> of the year preceding the show. No boots. Fleece length must be uniform over body.
- 16. In the Other Wool and Medium Wool Breed division, sheep may be shorn as desired by the exhibitor, or per breed registry requirements. Other stock shows may have different requirements, so if you are planning to attend and show at any other shows to know their specific rules for your breed.
- 17. Dorpers and White Dorpers should be slick shorn within seven days prior to the show.
- 18. Dorpers and White Dorpers will show separately.
- 19. The exhibitor of the Grand Champion Rambouillet Ewe, Delaine Ewe, Dorper Ewe, White Dorper Ewe, and Other Wool & Medium Wool Breeds Ewe will receive a \$500.00 incentive. The exhibitor of the Reserve Grand Champion Rambouillet Ewe, Delaine Ewe, Dorper Ewe, White Dorper Ewe, and Other Medium Wool Breed Ewe will receive a \$250.00 incentive. Incentive recipients may enter future shows and may receive another incentive. Exhibitors must be present to be awarded the incentive.
- 20. One showmanship award will be presented in each breed division.
- 21. To enter the grounds for livestock unloading and loading, all trailers will enter the fairgrounds on the North side at Gate 6 off of Lake View Heroes Drive. There will be two lots indicated for trailer staging. At the direction of officials, trailers will be allowed to back up to the West Side of the South Livestock Barn for

unloading. Once unloaded, vehicles will exit Gate 2, circle back towards Gate 6 to proceed toward the trailer lot.

## 22. Pay-Out. Checks will be mailed to the agent/instructor following the show.

# In Class	1st	2nd	3rd	4th	5th	6th	7th	8th	9th	10th	11th	12th	13th	14th	15th
1	\$30														
2 to 4	\$30	\$25													
5 to 8	\$35	\$30	\$25	\$15											
9 to 12	\$40	\$35	\$30	\$25	\$20	\$15									
13 to 15	\$45	\$40	\$35	\$30	\$25	\$20	\$15	\$15							
16 to 18	\$50	\$45	\$40	\$35	\$30	\$25	\$20	\$20	\$15	\$15					
19 to 22	\$55	\$50	\$45	\$40	\$35	\$30	\$25	\$20	\$20	\$15	\$15				
23 to 26	\$60	\$55	\$50	\$45	\$40	\$35	\$30	\$25	\$20	\$20	\$15	\$15			
27 to 29	\$65	\$60	\$55	\$50	\$45	\$40	\$35	\$30	\$25	\$20	\$20	\$15	\$15		
30+	\$70	\$65	\$60	\$55	\$50	\$45	\$40	\$35	\$30	\$25	\$20	\$20	\$20	\$15	\$15

#### **CLASSES**

# Rambouillet Class 1 – Ram Lamb ....... Ribbons 1-12

The Texas Rambouillet Sheep Breeders Association will sponsor a revolving trophy, in the memory of Ross Appleton, for the Champion Ram.

## Delaine

Class 14 – Ram Lamb	Ribbons 1-12
Class 15 – Two-Tooth Rams	Ribbons 1-12
Class 16 – Four to Six Tooth Rams	Ribbons 1-12
Class 17 – Champion Ram	Banner
Class 18 – Reserve Champion Ram	Banner
Class 19 – Pair of Rams	Ribbons 1-6
Class 20 – Ewe Lamb	Ribbons 1- 12
Class 21 – Two-Tooth Ewes	Ribbons 1-12
Class 22 – Fourth to Six Tooth Ewes	Ribbons 1- 12
Class 23 – Champion Ewe	Banner
Class 24 – Reserve Champion Ewe	Banner
Class 25 – Pair of Ewes	Ribbons 1- 6

Class 26 – Pair of Sheep, both sexes represented	
The Texas Delaine Association will present an award to the Premier Junior Exhibitor to	to be called Francis Kott
Memorial Trophy. Texas Delaine Association- Showmanship trophy.	
Other Wool & Medium Wool Breeds	
Class 27 – Ram Lamb	Ribbons 1-12
Class 28 – Two-Tooth Rams	Ribbons 1-12
Class 29 – Four to Six Tooth Rams	Ribbons 1-12
Class 30 – Champion Ram	Banner
Class 31 – Reserve Champion Ram	
Class 32 – Pair of Rams	
Class 33 – Ewe LambF	
Class 34 – Two-Tooth Ewes	
Class 35 – Four to Six Tooth Ewes	
Class 36 – Champion Ewe	
Class 37 – Reserve Champion Ewe	
Class 38 – Pair of Ewes	
Class 39 – Pair of Sheep, both sexes represented	
Class 35 Tull of Sheep, both sexes represented	.111000113 1 0
White Dorper	
Class 40 – Ram Lamb	Ribbons 1-12
Class 41 – Two-Tooth Rams	
Class 42 – Four to Six Tooth Rams	
Class 43 – Champion Ram	
Class 44 – Reserve Champion Ram	
Class 45 – Pair of Rams	
Class 46 – Ewe Lamb	
Class 47 – Two-Tooth Ewes	
Class 48 – Four to Six Tooth Ewes	
Class 49 – Champion Ewe	
Class 50 – Reserve Champion Ewe	
Class 51 – Pair of Ewe Lambs	
Class 52 – Pair of Sheep, both sexes represented	
Class 32 Tall of Sheep, both sexes represented	. INDDONS I O
Dorper	
Class 53 – Ram Lamb	Ribbons 1-12
Class 54 – Two-Tooth Rams	
Class 55 – Four to Six Tooth Rams	
Class 56 – Champion Ram	
Class 57 – Reserve Champion Ram	
Class 58 – Pair of Rams	
Class 59 – Ewe Lamb	
Class 60 – Two-Tooth Ewes	
Class 61 – Four to Six Tooth Ewes	
Class 62 – Champion Ewe	
Class 62 – Champion Ewe	
Class 64 – Pair of Ewes	
Class 65 – Pair of Sheen, both sexes represented	

#### JUNIOR TEXAS STARS WETHER DAM SHOW

Craig Barton, Superintendent

Entry Fee: \$28.00 per head

Entry Deadline: December 1, 2018 Postmark (Double fees Dec. 1- Dec. 15)

Arrival Time: 12:00 p.m., Friday, February 1, 2019
In Place: 5:00 p.m., Friday, February 1, 2019
Weigh In & Classify: 3:00-5:00 p.m., Friday, February 1, 2019
Time of Show: 8:00 a.m. Saturday, February 2, 2019

Release Time: Non-Sale dams must be out of barns by 5:00 p.m., Saturday, February 2, 2019

Sale Preview: 5:30 p.m., Saturday, February 2, 2019

Sale: Saturday, February 2, 2019

30 Minutes following the Texas Stars Wether Doe Sale

Judge: Jason Simpson, Ault, Colorado

- 1. All rules apply to the Junior Texas Stars Wether Dam Show. Please refer to the General Rules and Junior Show Rules.
- 2. The Junior Texas Stars Wether Dam Show will consist of: Finewool, Southdown, Dorper and Medium Wool Breeds. Animals exhibited will show by weight, and all premiums are sponsored by the Texas Lamb Breeder's Association. These animals do not require a certificate from a breed registry.
- 3. To be eligible to exhibit in the 2019 Texas Stars Wether Dam Show, all entries must be validated in the Texas 4-H and FFA Breeding Sheep Validation Program.

All entries must be validated through the Texas Sheep and Goat Validation Program. Ewes validated for Junior Wether Dam shows must be validated using a state RFID wether dam validation tag, nose print, and a hair sample for DNA analysis. The ownership date for ewes validated as a Junior Wether Dam is October 31, same as market lambs. Ewes must be re-validated each year. Wether dams must have a ewe lamb TLBA tag in their ear and recorded on the breeding sheep form in order to show.

- 4. Hair follicle samples will be collected from all Breed Champions and all Reserve Champions, and a DNA analysis will be conducted on each of these hair follicle samples. The Committee reserves the right collect hair follicle samples from any other entry for the purpose of conducting a DNA analysis. Any animal not having a positive match from the DNA analysis of the hair follicle samples, compared to the DNA analysis of the hair follicle sample taken from it at the time of enrollment in the validation program, will be disqualified. Any animal without a valid wether dam tag from the breeder of the animal placed in the ear of the animal and recorded on Texas Lamb Validation paperwork will be disqualified.
- 5. The validation tag will be the show tag. A separate tag will not be issued.
- 6. To be eligible to exhibit in the 2019 Texas Stars Wether Dam Show, an animal must be bred by a member of the Texas Lamb Breeder's Association, and have an official wether dam tag belonging to the breeder of the animal in its ear. Tags are to be obtained from the breeder of the animal. Wether dam tags must be present in the ear of the animal at the time of validation through the Texas 4-H and FFA Lamb Validation Program and must be recorded on official validation paperwork. The wether dam tag must be present in the animals' ear at the show as well. The only tags dams may have in their ears are

- state validation, TLBA & scrapie tags. All others must be removed i.e. breeder tags, with the exception of the tag used for validation purposes on registered animals.
- 7. Each exhibitor is entitled to enter five (5) total animals, with no more than two (2) per breed. **ONLY** wether dams may be shown.
- 8. Health papers along with other testing will be required. Please check Animal Health Regulations for the 2019 Stock Show for complete requirements for all dams exhibited in the 2019 Show. Health papers must be submitted to show officials at check-in when papers are checked or weights are turned in, whichever is applicable.

#### 9. Animal Health Regulations for Dams

- 1. All certificates must be issued on or after January 8, 2019 with the following information:
  - A. Sexually intact animals must have official USDA Scrapie Eradication Program Identification.
- 10. Animals will be stalled in the Livestock Barn #2. Enter Gate 2 and unload on the West side of the building. Pens will be assigned upon arrival. To pen with someone, you must arrive together no holding of pens will be allowed.
- 11. All animals must be shorn prior to arrival on grounds. Animals may be washed after arrival. The pelt must be slick shorn and uniform in length over entire body at the time of showing. Boots will be optional and no top knots will be allowed.
- 12. No electrical equipment of any kind is allowed. The following items are strictly prohibited: {Hay, heat lamps, ice packs, propane CLIPPERS, BLOWERS, BLOCKING TABLES, BLOCKING STATIONS, ETC.}
- 13. All dams must be taken to the official scales for official weigh in & classifying between 3:00 and 5:00 p.m. on the day of arrival. No weight cards will be turned in.
- 14. At the time of show, dams must not have more than their first set of yearling teeth.
- 15. The judge will select preliminary sale candidates from each breed. Any dams selected as preliminary candidates must remain at the show and will be called back to determine sale order. A preliminary selection is no guarantee the animal will make the sale.
- 16. The judge will select animals to sale and any and all animals selected must be sold. There is no limit to the number of entries an exhibitor may sell.
- 17. Scholarships will be awarding pending results of all DNA and Drug Testing results. To be awarded the scholarship, DNA tests must confirm a positive match and Drug tests must confirm negative for any and all residues.
- 18. Exhibitors must be present and exhibiting their animal to receive the scholarship. All other rules of the San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo Breeding Livestock Show Scholarships are applicable to contestants in this show.
- 19. All classes will be broken within the divisions by the following breeds, and additional classes as deemed appropriate by show management:

Finewool, Southdown, Dorper, Medium Wool

- 20. All ewes sold in the sale will have their validation voided as a result of change of ownership, regardless if the exhibitor buys the animal back or not.
- \*\*\*Please be familiar with Rule #5 in the Texas 4-H/FFA Livestock Program Ethics Policy:
- "Animals validated for major shows may also be exhibited at other shows. Be advised, however, that if any validated animal is exhibited and SOLD at any other show, the animal will be ineligible to show at any subsequent major show. If ownership changes, regardless of method or length of time, that chain of animal ownership is considered broken."

Ribbons will be provided for 1<sup>st</sup> – 5<sup>th</sup> place

One showmanship award will be given

#### JUNIOR TEXAS STARS WETHER DAM SALE

Craig Barton, Superintendent

## Saturday, February 2, 2019

30 Minutes following the Texas Stars Wether Doe Sale

Arrival Time: 12:00 p.m., Friday, February 1, 2019
In Place: 5:00 p.m., Friday, February 1, 2019
Weigh In & Classify: 3:00-5:00 p.m., Friday, February 1, 2019
Time of Show: 8:00 a.m. Saturday, February 2, 2019

Release Time: Non-Sale dams must be out of barns by 5:00 p.m., Saturday, February 2, 2019

Sale Preview: 5:30 p.m., Saturday, February 2, 2019

Judge of Show: Jason Simpson, Ault, Colorado

- 1. Top animals will be selected from 2019 Junior Texas Stars Wether Dam Show will be sold. An exhibitor will be limited to five animals, two per breed, that they may enter in the show or but not limited to the number that qualify for the sale. The following breeds will be available in the sale: Fine Wool, Medium Wool, Southdown, Dorper.
- 2. Please review Animal Health Regulations for the 2019 Stock Show for complete requirements for all ewes exhibited in the 2019 Show. These requirements should cover all main health regulations of a doe purchased and taken to another state, however, it is the purchaser's responsibility to understand all requirements for entrance to their state and meet any additional requirements that may not be covered.

## **Animal Health Regulations for Dams**

- All certificates must be issued on or after January 8, 2019 with the following information:

   A. Sexually intact animals must have official USDA Scrapie Eradication Program Identification.
- 3. The Texas Stars Wether Dam Sale is open to all buyers and buyer registration will begin at 5:00 p.m. in the Sale Pavilion. All animals must be paid for in full before released to the buyer. There will be a \$50.00 service charge on all returned checks. Payment may be made by cash, check or credit card.
- 4. The San Angelo Stock Show & Rodeo Association will charge a 15% sales commission on all dams.
- 5. The sale will begin with the Grand Champion Dam, followed by the Reserve Grand Champion Dam. The remaining sale order will be determined the by the judge.
- 6. Sale order will be selected immediately following the selection of the Grand and Reserve Grand Champion Dams.
- 7. All animals selected to the sale, must sell.
- 8. There must be someone present to care for the animal as well as walk the animal through the show ring.
- 9. All ewes sold in the sale will have their validation voided as a result of change of ownership, regardless if the exhibitor buys the animal back or not.
- \*\*\*Please be familiar with Rule #5 in the Texas 4-H/FFA Livestock Program Ethics Policy:
- "Animals validated for major shows may also be exhibited at other shows. Be advised, however, that if any validated animal is exhibited and SOLD at any other show, the animal will be ineligible to show at any subsequent major show. If ownership changes, regardless of method or length of time, that chain of animal ownership is considered broken."

#### JUNIOR ANGORA WETHER GOAT FUTURITY

Zane Willard, Superintendent

Entry Fee: \$25.00 per head – Limit 4 per exhibitor

Entry Deadline: December 1, 2018 Postmark (Double fees Dec. 1- Dec. 15)

Barn Opens: 8:00 a.m., Thursday, February 7, 2019
In Place: 5:00 p.m., Thursday, February 7, 2019
Weigh-in: 5:00 p.m., Thursday, February 7, 2019
Time of Show: 8:00 a.m., Friday, February 8, 2019

Judge: TBD

Prize Money: Grand Champion- \$1,500.00

Reserve Grand Champion- \$1,000.00

\$500.00 Prize Money Distribution to Classes & Ribbons 1st-10th

\$50.00 Highest Value Fleece

- 1. The objective is to exhibit an animal that can place high in both body and fleece. The combined score will determine the overall winner of each class.
- 2. The exhibitors' CEA/AST must validate the goats were shorn on or after August 1, 2018, and the animal must be owned by the exhibitor on or before October 1, 2018.
- 3. Health Certificates are required; please check the 2019 Animal Health Regulations for more information.
- 4. All goats entered must be wethers.
- 5. The show will consist of three separate weight classes that will be broken after weigh-in.
- 6. All animals exhibited will be micron tested. Samples for micron testing will be taken during weigh-in. Results will be posted prior to beginning of show.
- 7. Each class will be shown with the animal in full fleece. The judge will select the ten overall animals. These animals will be shorn and then re-judged. Each animal will then be placed accordingly. Designated shearers will be provided to shear each animal.
- 8. The fleeces will be weighed, micron tested, and analyzed objectively with scientific instruments to determine the characteristics and value of each entire fleece.
- 9. The animals will be judged both in the fleece and out of the fleece.
  - a. 1/3 of the total score will be calculated from "in fleece" judging
  - b. 1/3 of the total score will be calculated from "fleece" judging
  - c. 1/3 of the total score will be calculated from the "out of fleece" judging
- 10. The mohair fleeces will be placed based upon overall value. There will be price valuations given to each fleece based upon micron. The micron categories will break as follows:

28 micron or less

28 – 30 micron

30 - 32 micron

32 or greater

Based on actual marked prices each fleece will be given a value and placing based upon real market prices on the day of the show for each micron category.

- 11. A formula will be used to calculate class placings. The collective score from the three classes will determine the placing of each animal.
- 12. Payout Schedule to each of three classes:

$$1^{st}$$
 - \$50.00  $2^{nd}$  - \$40.00  $3^{rd}$  - \$30.00  $4^{th}$  - \$20.00  $5^{th}$  - \$10.00

13. To enter the grounds for livestock unloading and loading, all trailers will enter the fairgrounds on the North side at Gate 6 off of Lake View Heroes Drive. There will be two lots indicated for trailer staging. At the direction of officials, trailers will be allowed to back up to the West Side of the South Livestock Barn for unloading. Once unloaded, vehicles will exit Gate 2, circle back towards Gate 6 to proceed toward the trailer lot.

#### JUNIOR ANGORA GOAT SHOW

John Allen, Superintendent

Entry Fee: \$25.00 per head – Limit 12 per exhibitor

Entry Deadline: December 1, 2018 Postmark (Double fees Dec. 1- Dec. 15)

Barn Opens: 8:00 a.m., Friday, February 8, 2019
In Place: 5:00 p.m., Friday, February 8, 2019
Time of Show: 1:00 p.m., Saturday, February 9, 2019

Judge: TBD

- 1. All rules apply to the Junior Angora Goat Show. Please refer to the General Rules and Junior Show Rules.
- 2. Each entry form must show the full name, address and social security number of the exhibitor, the number of head entered. It is not necessary to identify the animals until the registration certificates are presented to show officials at validation time. Only the junior exhibitor's name is allowed on the registration certificate. Health papers are required; please check Animal Health Regulations for complete details.
- 3. All breeding goats must be registered in the Flock Books of the American Angora Goat Breeders Association, and bear such identification as that association requires, before entering the ring. Goats not carrying recognized identification at time of showing will be barred from competition.
- 4. The breeder of an animal is the owner of the doe at the time of service. If a boy or girl showing goats in the registered classes is such a breeder, his or her kid must be registered in the boy's or girl's name by opening day of show.
- 5. If a boy or girl is showing a goat in the registered classes that is a gift from some breeder, or if the goat has been purchased from some breeder, the Transfer Certificate must be made on or before December 1 of the year preceding the show. If the goat is recorded direct to the boy or girl, the certificate of Registry must be dated before December 1 of the year preceding the show.
- 6. All goats will show by the birth date on American Goat Breeders Association Registration papers.
- 7. Each exhibitor may show only two (2) Bucks or two (2) Does in each single class. Certificates of Registry must be furnished to the Superintendent before animals enter the ring.
- 8. The judge making awards must have the clerk record ear number, ear tag, or tattoo of all animals awarded prizes.
- 9. All Angora Goats must be machine shorn to the skin on or after August 1 of the calendar year preceding the show.
- 10. Only first place animals shall compete for the champion animal. The second place winner in the class from which the champion animal was selected will compete for reserve champion.
- 11. The exhibitor of the Champion Angora Doe exhibitor is eligible to receive a \$500.00 incentive. The exhibitor of the Reserve Champion Angora Doe exhibitor is eligible to receive a \$250.00 incentive.

Incentive recipients may enter future shows and may receive another scholarship. Exhibitors must be present to be awarded the incentive. Please refer to the Breed Incentive Program eligibility requirements.

12. To enter the grounds for livestock unloading and loading, all trailers will enter the fairgrounds on the North side at Gate 6 off of Lake View Heroes Drive. There will be two lots indicated for trailer staging. At the direction of officials, trailers will be allowed to back up to the West Side of the South Livestock Barn for unloading. Once unloaded, vehicles will exit Gate 2, circle back towards Gate 6 to proceed toward the trailer lot.

#### **PREMIUMS**

Premiums will be paid on the following schedule. Checks will be mailed to the Agent/Instructor following the show.

# In Class	1st	2nd	3rd	4th	5th	6th	7th	8th	9th	10th	11th	12th	13th	14th	15th
1	\$30														
2 to 4	\$30	\$25													
5 to 8	\$35	\$30	\$25	\$15											
9 to 12	\$40	\$35	\$30	\$25	\$20	\$15									
13 to 15	\$45	\$40	\$35	\$30	\$25	\$20	\$15	\$15							
16 to 18	\$50	\$45	\$40	\$35	\$30	\$25	\$20	\$20	\$15	\$15					
19 to 22	\$55	\$50	\$45	\$40	\$35	\$30	\$25	\$20	\$20	\$15	\$15				
23 to 26	\$60	\$55	\$50	\$45	\$40	\$35	\$30	\$25	\$20	\$20	\$15	\$15			
27 to 29	\$65	\$60	\$55	\$50	\$45	\$40	\$35	\$30	\$25	\$20	\$20	\$15	\$15		
30+	\$70	\$65	\$60	\$55	\$50	\$45	\$40	\$35	\$30	\$25	\$20	\$20	\$20	\$15	\$15

#### **CLASSES**

Class 1 – Buck Kid	Ribbons 1-15
Class 2 – Buck Yearling	Ribbons 1-15
Class 3 – Aged Buck	Ribbons 1-15
Class 4 – Champion Buck	Banner & \$15
Class 5 – Reserve Champion Buck	Banner & \$10
Class 6 – Doe Kid	
Class 7 – Doe Yearling	Ribbons 1-15
Class 8 – Aged Doe	Ribbons 1-15
Class 9 – Champion Doe	Banner & Incentive
Class 10 – Reserve Champion Doe	Banner & Incentive

Two Showmanship buckles will be awarded. A Senior Showmanship buckle in memory of Mac Gilliat and a Junior Showmanship Dr. Frank Craddock buckle.

The American Angora Goat Breeder's Association, Box 195, Rocksprings, TX 78880 will present silver goblets to the Champion Doe and Champion Buck of the show. At least four breeders must compete before the goblets will be given.

#### JUNIOR TEXAS STARS WETHER DOE SHOW

Kenny Strube, Superintendent

Presented by:



Entry Fee: \$28.00 per head – Limit 3 head per Exhibitor

Entry Deadline: December 1, 2018 Postmark (Double fees Dec. 1- Dec. 15)

Arrival Time: 12:00 p.m., Friday, February 1, 2019
In Place: 5:00 p.m., Friday, February 1, 2019
Official Weigh In: 3:00-5:00 p.m., Friday, February 1, 2019
Time of Show: 8:00 a.m. Saturday, February 2, 2019

Release Time: Non-Sale does must be out of barns by 5:00 p.m., Saturday, February 2, 2019

Sale Preview: 5:30 p.m., Saturday, February 2, 2019 Sale: 6:30 p.m., Saturday, February 2, 2019

Judge: Jason Simpson, Ault, Colorado

- 1. All rules apply to the Junior Texas Stars Wether Doe Show. Please refer to the General Rules and Junior Show Rules.
- 2. To be eligible to exhibit in the 2019 Junior Texas Stars Wether Doe Show, does must be validated in the Texas 4-H and FFA Wether Dam Validation Program. Hair follicle samples will be collected from the first place doe in each class. The Junior Texas Stars Wether Doe Show Committee and Show Management may also collect hair follicle samples from any other doe entry for the purpose of conducting a DNA analysis. Any doe not having a positive match from the DNA analysis of this hair follicle sample, compared to the DNA analysis of the hair follicle sample taken from it at the time of enrollment in the validation program, will be disqualified.
- 3. All entries must be owned and the bona fide project of a boy or girl, regularly enrolled in a Texas 4-H Club or FFA Chapter, by October 31, of the year preceding the show, and must have been personally fed and cared for under the supervision of a County Agent or Teacher of Vocational Agriculture.
- 4. Health papers along with other testing will be required. Please check Animal Health Regulations for the 2019 Stock Show for complete requirements for all does exhibited in the 2019 Show. Health papers must be submitted to show officials at check-in when papers are checked or weights are turned in, whichever is applicable.

## Animal Health Regulations for Does

1. All certificates must be issued on or after January 8, 2019 with the following information:

A. Sexually intact animals must have official USDA Scrapie Eradication Program Identification.

- 5. There is a limit of three entries per exhibitor.
- 6. To enter the grounds for livestock unloading and loading, all trailers will enter the fairgrounds on the North side at Gate 6 off of Lake View Heroes Drive. There will be two lots indicated for trailer staging. At the direction of officials, trailers will be allowed to back up to the West Side of the Livestock Barn for unloading. Once unloaded, vehicles will exit Gate 2, circle back towards Gate 6 to proceed toward the trailer lot.
- 7. All does must be taken to the official scales for official weigh in between 3:00 and 5:00 p.m. on the day of arrival. No weight cards will be turned in.
- 8. Superintendents will break classes immediately following the weigh-in. Classes will be broken into no more than 9 weight classes in three divisions. **The number of classes is up to the discretion of the committee and show officials based on the number of entries.** There will be no pre-set weight breaks.
- 9. The only tags does may have in their ears are state validation & scrapie tags. All others must be removed i.e. breeder tags.
- 10. Does must weigh a minimum of 50 pounds and there is no maximum. Only does may be shown.
- 11. At the time of show, does must not possess more than their first set of yearling teeth.
- 12. Dehorning of the goats is not suggested, however, horns should be tipped and rounded. Goats with horns sharper than deemed safe by the show superintendent or Show Management will be required to be tipped or rounded or the animal will be isolated and not shown. Removal of horns on grounds is not permitted.
- 13. Hair may not exceed 1 ¼ inches above the hocks and knees. The hair will be measured at weigh in with a ruler. There will be one person measuring the every goat at check in, and Kenny as Superintendent will be there to verify. The exhibitor will not be allowed to make any changes to the animal, as the rules already state there are no clippers on grounds.
- 14. Blow & Show ONLY! No painting, adhesives, powdering, or artificial coloring is allowed.
- 15. No electrical equipment of any kind is allowed (excluding blowers). HAY, HEAT LAMPS, ICE PACKS, OR PROPANE HEATERS WILL NOT BE ALLOWED IN THE BARNS!!
- 16. GOATS MAY BE WASHED AFTER ARRIVAL.
- 17. No external parasites will be allowed. If a goat is found to have external parasites, it will be disqualified.
- 18. All division champions and reserve champions and all Top 5 scholarship does will be subject to DNA and Substance testing. The Show specifically reserves the right to have ultrasound, D.N.A., tissue, blood and/or urine laboratory analysis made on any animal entered for competition. The exhibitor, including his or her parent or guardian or AST or CEA for Junior exhibitors, must be present during the collection for testing and must witness, seal and sign the sample; thus verifying the sample to be properly collected and prepared for analysis.

- 19. All division champions and reserve champions will be automatically eligible for the sale. However, a division champion or reserve is NOT guaranteed a top 5 Scholarship.
- 20. The judge will select 15 preliminary sale candidates from each division. Any does selected as preliminary candidates must remain at the show and will be called back to determine sale order. A preliminary selection is no guarantee the animal will make the sale.
- 21. The judge will select 25 animals to sale and any and all animals selected must be sold. There is no limit to the number of entries an exhibitor may sell.
- 22. Scholarships will be awarding pending results of all DNA and Drug Testing results. To be awarded the scholarship, DNA tests must confirm a positive match and Drug tests must confirm negative for any and all residues.
- 23. Exhibitors must be present and exhibiting their animal to receive the scholarship. All other rules of the San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo Breeding Livestock Show Scholarships are applicable to contestants in this show.
- 24. A scholarship cap of \$12,500 will be enforced per exhibitor for cumulative scholarship earnings in the Texas Stars Wether Dam Show beginning with the 2015 show. Exhibitors may continue to exhibit and participate in the sale once the scholarship cap is met, but will no longer be eligible for additional scholarships in this show.

## **CLASSES**

#### Division I:

Class 1

Class 2

Class 3

**Division II:** 

Class 4

Class 5

Class 6

**Division III:** 

Class 7

Class 8

Class 9

#### **AWARDS**

Grand Champion	Banner & \$7,000 Scholarship*
Reserve Grand Champion	Banner & \$5,000 Scholarship*
Third Overall	Banner & \$3,500 Scholarship*
Fourth Overall	Banner & \$3,000 Scholarship*
Fifth Overall	Banner & \$2,000 Scholarship*

<sup>\*</sup>Please review scholarship rules for regulations regarding recipients.

One Showmanship buckle will be presented.

<sup>\*\*\*</sup>Show Management reserves the right to make adjustment to the number of classes as deemed necessary based off the number of entries in the division.

#### **TEXAS STARS WETHER DOE SALE**

Kenny Strube, Superintendent

Presented by:



# 6:00 p.m., Saturday, February 2, 2019

San Angelo Stock Show Sale Pavilion

Arrival Time (Show): 12:00 p.m., Friday, February 1, 2019
In Place (Show): 5:00 p.m., Friday, February 1, 2019
Official Weigh In (Show): 3:00-5:00 p.m., Friday, February 1, 2019
Time of Show: 8:00 a.m., Saturday, February 2, 2019
Sale Preview: 5:30 p.m., Saturday, February 2, 2019

Judge of Show: Jason Simpson, Ault, Colorado

- 1. 20 top animals selected from 2019 Junior Texas Stars Wether Doe Show will be sold. An exhibitor will be limited to three does that they may enter in the show or but not limited to the number that qualify for the sale.
- 2. Please review Animal Health Regulations for the 2019 Stock Show for complete requirements for all does exhibited in the 2019 Show. These requirements should cover all main health regulations of a doe purchased and taken to another state, however, it is the purchaser's responsibility to understand all requirements for entrance to their state and meet any additional requirements that may not be covered.

#### Animal Health Regulations for Does

- All certificates must be issued on or after January 8, 2019 with the following information:
   A. Sexually intact animals must have official USDA Scrapie Eradication Program Identification.
- 3. The Texas Stars Wether Doe Sale is open to all buyers and buyer registration will begin at 5:00 p.m. in the Sale Pavilion. All animals must be paid for in full before released to the buyer. There will be a \$50.00 service charge on all returned checks. Payment may be made by cash, check or credit card.
- 4. The San Angelo Stock Show & Rodeo Association will charge a 15% sales commission on all does.

- 5. The sale will begin with the Grand Champion Doe, followed by the Reserve Grand Champion Doe, then the Third, Fourth and Fifth Place Overall Does. The sixth doe sold will be a Scholarship Foundation Doe, followed by lots 6-25 from the show. The sale order will be determined the by the judge.
- 6. Sale order will be selected immediately following the selection of the Grand and Reserve Grand Champion Does.
- 7. All animals selected to the sale, must sell.
- 8. There must be someone present to care for the animal as well as walk the animal through the show ring.
- \*\*\*Please be familiar with Rule #5 in the Texas 4-H/FFA Livestock Program Ethics Policy:
- "Animals validated for major shows may also be exhibited at other shows. Be advised, however, that if any validated animal is exhibited and SOLD at any other show, the animal will be ineligible to show at any subsequent major show. If ownership changes, regardless of method or length of time, that chain of animal ownership is considered broken."

#### JUNIOR BOER GOAT SHOW

Warren Cude, Superintendent

Entry Fee: \$25.00 per head –Limit 2 Entries per Class

Entry Deadline: December 1, 2018 Postmark (Double fees Dec. 2- Dec. 15)

Arrival Time: 8:00 a.m., Monday, February 4, 2019 In Place: 5:00 p.m., Monday, February 4, 2019

Time of Show: 1:00 p.m., Tuesday, February 5, 2019 (HEB Community Center)

Judge: Kurt Henry, Rainbow, TX

- 1. All rules apply to the Junior Boer Goat Show. Please refer to the General Rules and Junior Show Rules. **Exhibitors must meet all Junior Show age requirements.**
- 2. To be eligible to exhibit in the 2019 Junior Boer Goat Show, all goats must be validated in the Texas 4-H and FFA Boer Breeding Goat Validation Program. Hair follicle samples will be collected from all Division Champions and all Reserve Champions, and a DNA analysis will be conducted on each of these hair follicle samples. The Junior Boer Goat Show committee may also collect hair follicle samples from any other entry for the purpose of conducting a DNA analysis. Any boer goat not having a positive match from the DNA analysis of the hair follicle samples, compared to the DNA analysis of the hair follicle sample taken from it at the time of enrollment in the validation program, will be disqualified. All boer goats will be validated in individual exhibitor names and not by families. No partnerships allowed.
- 3. All goats must be registered in the exhibitors name with the respective flock book of the respective recognized Boer Goat Association on or before **October 1**<sup>st</sup> of the year preceding the show, as well as purchase, delivery and possession. The official ownership or transfer date must be considered as the date recorded (issued). In the event that the date of transfer and ownership date are not consistent on the Original Registration Certificate, the most recent date will be interpreted as the official date of ownership for the exhibitor. Please refer to the Texas 4-H and FFA Boer Breeding Goat Validation Guidelines for more information.
- 4. The entry must reflect the owner's name indicated on the registration paper. **Goats entered in the Junior Show must be registered in the junior exhibitor's name.** Partnerships or farm/ranch name will NOT be allowed. Health papers are required; please check Animal Health Regulations for complete details.
- 5. All goats must be registered in the respective flock books of the recognized Boer Goat Associations and bear such identification as that breed association requires at check-in. Goats not carrying such identification at validation shall be disqualified from competition.
- 6. All youth exhibitors must hold a current junior membership in a Boer Goat association.
- 7. Percentage females, full blood males and full blood female goats will be classed by birth date on certificate of registration. If birth date falls on date of show, goat will be moved to next upper age class.
- 8. Exhibitors are not allowed to enter more than two head per class in any division and may only receive premiums on two per class in any division.
- 9. The judge making awards must have the clerk record ear number, ear tag or tattoo of all animals awarded prizes.

- 10. Heelers will be allowed in the class. Heelers must meet all junior show requirements (please refer to the Junior Show Rules).
- 11. The fitting of hair of all animals will be left up to the discretion of the exhibitor: with the exception of artificial color and the use of drugs and/or chemicals that are not approved by the FDA or USDA. If an exhibitor's animal is found to have been dyed, the said animal will be disqualified from the show and the said exhibitor will be barred from future shows.
- 12. Goats may be clipped after arrival.
- 13. To enter the grounds for livestock unloading and loading, all trailers will enter the fairgrounds on the North side at Gate 6 off of Lake View Heroes Drive. There will be two lots indicated for trailer staging. At the direction of officials, trailers will be allowed to back up to the West Side of the South Livestock Barn for unloading. Once unloaded, vehicles will exit Gate 2, circle back towards Gate 6 to proceed toward the trailer lot.
- 14. The same goats may compete in the Junior Show and the Open Show.
- 15. All goats must be removed from the barn after the show unless retained for exhibit.
- 16. The exhibitor of the Grand Champion Fullblood Female and Percentage Female will receive a \$500.00 incentive. The exhibitor of the Reserve Grand Champion Fullblood and Percentage Female will receive a \$250.00 incentive. Incentive recipients may enter future shows and may receive another incentive. Exhibitors must be present to be awarded the incentive.
- 17. Rosettes will be awarded to the first place in each class. Two showmanship awards will be presented.

Premiums

Premium checks will be mailed to the Agent/Instructor following the show.

# In Class	1st	2nd	3rd	4th	5th	6th	7th	8th	9th	10th	11th	12th	13th	14th	15th
1	\$30														
2 to 4	\$30	\$25													
5 to 8	\$35	\$30	\$25	\$15											
9 to 12	\$40	\$35	\$30	\$25	\$20	\$15									
13 to 15	\$45	\$40	\$35	\$30	\$25	\$20	\$15	\$15							
16 to 18	\$50	\$45	\$40	\$35	\$30	\$25	\$20	\$20	\$15	\$15					
19 to 22	\$55	\$50	\$45	\$40	\$35	\$30	\$25	\$20	\$20	\$15	\$15				
23 to 26	\$60	\$55	\$50	\$45	\$40	\$35	\$30	\$25	\$20	\$20	\$15	\$15			
27 to 29	\$65	\$60	\$55	\$50	\$45	\$40	\$35	\$30	\$25	\$20	\$20	\$15	\$15		
30+	\$70	\$65	\$60	\$55	\$50	\$45	\$40	\$35	\$30	\$25	\$20	\$20	\$20	\$15	\$15

#### **CLASSES**

## **Percentage Females**

Class 1 – Doe Kids, Under 6 Months	Ribbons 2- 6
Class 2– Doe Kids, 6-9 Months	Ribbons 2- 6
Class 3 – Does, 9-12 Months	Ribbons 2- 6
Class 4- Does, 12-18 Months	Ribbons 2-6
Class 5 – Does, 18- 24 Months	Ribbons 2- 6
Class 6 – Does, 2 Year Olds, 24-36 Months	Ribbons 2- 6

Class 7 – Aged Does, Over 36 Months	Ribbons 2- 6
Class 8 – Grand Champion Percentage Doe	Banner & Incentive
Class 9 – Reserve Grand Champion Percentage Doe	Banner & Incentive
Full Blood & American Pur	rebred Females
Class 10 – Doe Kids, Under 6 Months	
Class 11 – Doe Kids, 6-9 Months	Ribbons 2- 6
Class 12 – Doe Kids, 9-12 Months	Ribbons 2-6
Class 13 – Does, 12-18 Months	Ribbons 2- 6
Class 14 – Does, 18-24 Months	Ribbons 2- 6
Class 15 – Does, 2 Year Olds, 24-36 Months	Ribbons 2- 6
Class 16 – Aged Does, Over 36 Months	Ribbons 2- 6
Class 17 – Champion Doe	Banner & Incentive
Class 18 – Reserve Champion Doe	Banner & Incentive
Full Blood & American Pu	urebred Males
Class 19 – Buck Kids, Under 6 Months	Ribbons 2- 6
Class 20 – Buck Kids, 6-9 Months	Ribbons 2- 6
Class 21 – Buck Kids, 9-12 Months	Ribbons 2-6
Class 22 – Bucks, 12-18 Months	Ribbons 2- 6
Class 23 – Bucks, 18-24 Months	Ribbons 2- 6
Class 24 – Bucks, 2 Year Olds, 24-36 Months	Ribbons 2- 6
Class 25 – Aged Bucks, Over 36 Months	Ribbons 2- 6
Class 26 – Champion Buck	Banner
Class 27 – Reserve Champion Buck	Banner

#### JUNIOR WOOL & MOHAIR FLEECE SHOW

Faron Pfeiffer, Superintendent

Entry Fee: \$10.00 per fleece – Limit 4 Fleece per Class Entry Deadline: 10:00 a.m., Sunday, February 17, 2019

Time of Show: 11:00 a.m., Sunday, February 17, 2019

Release: All fleeces <u>must</u> be picked up immediately following show

- 1. All rules apply to the Wool & Mohair Fleece Show. Please refer to the General Rules and Junior Show Rules (for the Junior Division).
- 2. The Show Committee reserves the right to interpret these rules and regulations and arbitrarily settle and determine all matters connected with the show. The Committee further reserves the right to amend or add to the rules set forth in this catalog.
- 3. All fleeces must be in place by 10:00 a.m. on Sunday, February 17, 2019 at the New Livestock Barn on the South end of the fairgrounds. However, exhibitors may send their entries to the Stock Show Office as long as the fleeces arrive by Saturday, February 16, 2019. Exhibitors shall be solely responsible for their entries.
- 4. Loading and unloading is strictly prohibited on the front midway area. Please follow directional signs at location for unloading instructions.
- 5. Entries shall be judged on the following basis:

Length of Staple Character
Uniformity of fiber diameter Weight of Fleece
Yield Preparation
Color or Luster Strength

- 6. Judges shall not award a prize to an unworthy exhibit. The judges shall determine the method and points for scoring the fleeces.
- 7. **TWELVE MONTHS WOOL** Fleeces from aged ewes shall not have over 13 months of growth. Fleece from yearling ewes shall not have over 16 months growth. Removal of bellies in fleeces is optional. Fleeces must be tied with paper twine.
- 8. MOHAIR- Fleeces shall not be over 8 inches in length. Micron Requirements:

Kid Class Fleeces- 30 Microns or Finer Yearling Class Fleeces- 30-34 Microns Adult Class Fleeces- 35 Microns or Coarser

All mohair fleeces must be spring shorn in the spring of 2018 or 2019. **FLEECES MUST BE ENTERED IN CLEAR PLASTIC BAGS.** 

- 9. All wool and mohair fleeces must be produced by one animal and must be identified as fleeces of one animal. This rule will be strictly adhered to.
- 10. Exhibitors shall be disqualified for any of the following reasons: fleeces show an excessive amount of burrs, vegetable matter, discoloration by moisture, weakness of breaks, lack of due care in preparation and fleeces tied with anything other than paper twine.

11. It shall be the exhibitor's responsibility to enter the fleece in the proper class. Fleeces not meeting requirements for length and grade in the classes entered shall be disqualified from the show.

## **JUNIOR SHOW**

Each exhibitor may enter four (4) fleeces per class, however, the exhibitor will be eligible to receive only two money placing's per class. Premium checks will be mailed following the show.

## **Wool Division**

Class 1 – Yearling Ewe  Class 2 – Aged Ewe  Class 3 – Yearling Ram  Class 4 – Aged Ram  Class 5 – Champion Wool Fleece  Class 6 – Reserve Champion Wool Fleece	Ribbons 1- 8 Ribbons 1- 8 Ribbons 1-8 Rosette
Mohair Division	
Class 7 – Adult (35 microns or coarser)	Ribbons 1- 8
Class 8 – Yearling (30-34 micron)	Ribbons 1- 8
Class 9 – Kid (30 microns or finer)	Ribbons 1- 8
Class 10 – Champion Mohair Fleece	Rosette
Class 11 – Reserve Champion Mohair Fleece	Rosette

Junior Show Pay-Out									
1 <sup>st</sup>	2 <sup>nd</sup>	3 <sup>rd</sup>	4 <sup>th</sup>	5 <sup>th</sup>	6 <sup>th</sup>	7 <sup>th</sup>	8th		
\$50	\$45	\$40	\$35	\$30	\$20	\$10	\$10		

The Decision of the Judge(s) Shall be Final

#### AGRICULTURAL MECHANICS PROJECT SHOW

Michael Kissire, Superintendent Parks Tucker, Assistant Superintendent Loree Branham, Assistant Superintendent Marlin Brown, Assistant Superintendent Ben Brooks, Assistant Superintendent James Coffey, Assistant Superintendent Justin Harlin, Assistant Superintendent

Entry Fee: \$30.00 per project

Entry Deadline: December 1, 2018 Postmark (Double fees Dec. 1- Dec. 15)

Arrival & Classifying: 9:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., Sunday, February 3, 2019

In Place:6:00 p.m., Sunday, February 3, 2019Judging:9:00 a.m., Monday, February 4, 2019Awards:9:00 a.m., Tuesday, February 5, 2019Begin Release:10:00 a.m., Tuesday, February 5, 2019

Must Be Out By: 12:00 p.m. (Noon), Tuesday, February 5, 2019

1. **Entry fee:** Entries must be made on an official Ag Mechanics Entry form and signed by the AST/CEA overseeing the project. Exhibitors and projects must be listed on entry form at time of entry.

- 2. **Eligible Entries:** Entries must be the work of eligible exhibitors limited to Texas FFA and 4-H members. Please refer to the General Rules and Junior Show Rules. There is no limit to the total number of projects a 4-H club or FFA Chapter may enter. The San Angelo Stock Show & Rodeo reserves the right to refuse any exhibit.
- 3. **Substitutions:** A \$100 project substitution fee will be charged to entries that are moved from one division to another at check in. This fee does NOT include reclassification by show officials or changes within the division of original entry. Project substitutions should be made at check in.

Exhibitor substitution- exhibitors may be added and/or removed from projects during check in for no penalty.

- 4. **Projects:** must be constructed by FFA & 4-H members. FFA projects must be constructed as a part of their agriculture mechanic instruction in agriculture science or as part of their supervised work experience program. 4-H projects must be constructed under the supervision of their County Extension Agent.
- 5. **Club/Chapter Entries:** Group entries must be made in the name of the FFA Chapter or 4-H club. All group entries must include all the names of the exhibitors who participated in planning and construction of the project.
- 6. Individual/Group: Projects may be either individually or group constructed and owned.
- 7. **Exhibit Space:** Projects will be displayed in the Spur Arena and Housley Communications Cattle Barn by divisions and classes. Placement of projects will be at the discretion of stock show officials. Once project is placed in barn it is not allowed to be moved by anyone but a show official. Display space under shelter is not guaranteed. **Projects may be displayed at an alternate site if sufficient space is not available at the Spur Arena.**

- 8. **Construction Date:** A project may be exhibited only one time at the San Angelo Stock Show & Rodeo and construction must have been started within one calendar year of the conclusion of the previous Stock Show.
- 9. **Types of Projects:** Any project that does not fit into one of the stated classes will be disqualified. Projects may be subject to reclassification upon arrival. Projects **MUST** be classified in one of the following division and classes:

#### Division: BUMPER PULL TRAILERS

100. Small bumper pull utility trailer – 10 ft. & under	103. Bumper pull stock trailers
101. Medium bumper pull utility trailer – Over 10 ft. to 16 ft.	104. Towable BBQ pits

102. Large bumper pull utility trailer- Over 16 ft. 105. Other Bumper Pull Trailers

# Division: GOOSENECK TRAILERS

200. Gooseneck stock trailers

201. Gooseneck Utility Trailers- Floats (deck above tires)

202. Gooseneck Utility Trailers- Lowboys (deck below tires)

203. Other Gooseneck Trailers

#### Division: AGRICULTURE MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT

301. Spraying equipment305. All other shop equipment306. Pickup & truck accessories

303. Hydraulic equipment

#### Division: LIVESTOCK & WILDLIFE EQUIPMENT

400. Gates & cattle guards – 14 ft. & under
401. Gates & cattle guards – Over 14 ft.
402. Squeeze chutes, livestock panels, restraining equip.
403. Trim chutes, blocking stands, livestock crates
404. Creep and self-feeders
405. Bits, Spurs, Knives, Etc.
406. All other livestock equipment
407. All other wildlife equipment

#### Division: HOME CONVENIENCE

500. Small Indoor Furniture/Furnishings (Less than 16 cubic ft., measured at widest point)

501. Individual Large Indoor Furniture (More than 16 cubic ft., measured at widest point)

502. Multi Piece Large Indoor Furniture (More than 16 cubic ft., measured at widest point)

503. Outdoor Metal Furniture.

504. Outdoor Wood Furniture

505. Other Yard & Garden Equipment (including ornamental/non-cooking fire pits, no gates)

#### Division: OUTDOOR COOKING

600. Traditional Enclosed Pits

601. Cooking Fire Pits & Grills

602. Other (Woks, Fish Fryers, Etc.)

#### Division: TRACTOR RESTORATION

700. Models from 1960 and earlier

701. Models from 1961-1992

10. Classes with less than four entries are subject to being combined.

- 11. Vehicles: No trucks, non-entered tractors or trailers are allowed in the exhibition area.
- 12. **Projects Requiring Offloading Assistance:** Projects that need to be lifted from the topside area to be fitted with lifting eyes at balance points that accommodate 1" shackles. Projects that cannot be safely unloaded will be shown at an alternate site. Additionally, projects may be mounted on a pallet for ease of loading and unloading.
- 13. Safety: All safety procedures must be adhered to when displaying projects but not limited to:
  - A. Appropriate and safe display stands provided for gates, panels and other projects needing support.
  - B. Sharp edges and points (as on feeder roofs, bale movers, etc.) must be padded or covered to prevent injury.
  - C. All trailers, **BBQ pits**, and other equipment that is operated on or transported on public roads must be equipped with safety equipment as stated in the latest DOT publication. All three-point hitch and P.T.O. operated equipment is to meet ASAE standards and specifications.
  - D. NO PAINT APPLICATION ON GROUNDS
- 14. Project completeness: All projects should be complete including finish. Projects are to be clean, free of dust and debris, and in a presentable condition even though they may have been used. Any item, necessary for use of the project must be a part of it (example: hinges and latches on gates and panels, etc.). Trailers and all other equipment are to be displayed in transport position. Ramps, extensions and operation of specific features may be demonstrated as directed by the official judges and as space allows. The project display area (including the floor under and around the project) should be neat. Floor covering will be limited to the area under the project.
- 15. Welds: No structural welds are to be ground without penalty. Grinding is to be limited to welds that should be ground for functional reasons and/or welds that would normally be ground for cosmetic purposes. Examples: top rails on trailers, fender body outside tops, side latches, etc. may be ground, but frames, cross-members, tongues, filler pipe, etc. are not to be ground.
- 16. Any equipment to travel on public highways must meet Federal DOT Standards. Current **Federal DOT** inspection stickers will be honored. Anything that does not have a current Federal DOT inspection sticker will be subject to inspection by a TXDOT inspector.
- 17. Projects that require license plate to be DOT compliant must show in the trailer division. Trailers that are designed for off road or slow speed highway use must be equipped with slow speed tires and a SMV (Slow Moving Vehicle) triangle.
- 18. Exhibitor Presentation: Exhibitors should be dressed appropriately and be with their project when it is judged. Exhibitors should be courteous and helpful to those viewing their project including the public, show officials, and judges. Exhibitors should not interfere with or shield those exhibitors next to them. Exhibitors will be allowed cleaning or preparation supplies, limited to quantities that will fit in a common 5 gallon bucket, in the exhibition area.
- 19. Exhibitors must be present to present projects. Absence must be approved by committee.

- 20. Signs: All projects are to be identified. Information should include Exhibitor(s) Name, Club/Chapter, and Project Description. Additional signs, banners, etc. must meet the approval of the committee members and cannot extend beyond the project's display space. **NO FOR SALE SIGNS.**
- 21. Cleaning of projects will be limited to the use of spray bottles and towels.
- 22. Loss or Damage: Every precaution will be taken to protect the projects entered; however, neither the San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo nor the officials of this contest will be responsible for fire, theft, vandalism or destruction to the projects.
- 23. Judging System for first five divisions:

	Category:	Points Available:
a.	Workmanship	25 points
b.	Students' Knowledge of project	25 points
c.	Design and Materials	15 points
d.	Degree of Difficulty	15 points
e.	Finish	10 points
	Plans, Bill of Materials, Photographs,	·
	and if applicable, DOT standard for the project	10 points
		TOTAL: 100 POINTS

**Plans, Bill of Materials, Photographs:** Exhibitors should provide an original, exhibitor drawn plan, photographs showing stages of production, and a complete bill of materials.

**Student Knowledge:** Exhibitor(s) may be asked questions concerning, but not limited to project construction, design, use, operation, etc. Exhibitors may also be asked to demonstrate all or parts of the project's operation.

24. Judging System for Tractor Division:

	<u>Category:</u>	<u>Points Available:</u>
a.	Mechanical	50 points
b.	Aesthetics	20 points
c.	Originality	10 points
d.	Safety Equipment	10 points
	Documentation	
		TOTAL: 100 POINTS

**Mechanical** will include the restoration of engine, transmission, final drive, fuel system, cooling system, cranking or starting system, charging system, hydraulic system, steering system, etc. **Aesthetics** will include the overall appearance of the tractor. This includes workmanship and finish. Items to be considered include, but are not limited to: metal preparation, completeness of sheet metal, paint and finish, detail and completeness of components such as wheels, tires, steering wheels, seats, decals, instrument panels, wiring harness, etc.

**Originality** will include paint color, fasteners, electrical systems, fuel systems, exhaust systems, mechanical systems, original unaltered serial places, etc.

**Safety** equipment will include all equipment that was original to the tractor. It also includes the provision of drip pans containing floor absorbent to collect any liquids that may drip from the tractor during display. Fuel shutoff valves under all fuel tanks must be functional and tractors are to be

exhibited with the valves closed. An ABC fire extinguisher with a minimum 2.5 pounds capacity must be provided with each tractor. Extra fuel may not be stored in the arena. Tractor engines are to be started and run only at the request of judges or show officials.

**Documentation** must be typed or computer generated and is to include a one page description of the overall restoration project, and expense report identifying all costs of restoration, photos showing before, during and after restoration that shows safe working environment, and a complete description of all mechanical work performed. All documentation is to be displayed in a three-ring binder, divided, and sequenced with a table of contents and page numbers. The National FFA Tractor Restoration Competition format and forms may be used.

25. **Showmanship:** Awards will be presented to schools/clubs and individuals selected as having presented the best public image by an independent judge. Judging will begin at unloading and continue until awards are given. There will be two categories: group and individual. Champion and Reserve Champion will be given in each category.

Considerations will be, but not limited to:

- a. Appropriate display and presentation of project
- b. Appropriate display of project plans, bill of materials and photographs
- c. Housekeeping around project
- d. Appropriate dress
- e. Conduct, attitude, and participation of students
- 26. **Sweepstakes:** Awarded to the FFA Chapter or 4-H Club that accumulates the most points based on number of entries placing 1<sup>st</sup>, 2<sup>nd</sup>, and 3<sup>rd</sup>.
- 27. **Awards:** Blue, Red & White ribbons will be given for quality, Ribbons for 1<sup>st</sup>, 2<sup>nd</sup> and 3<sup>rd</sup> will also be given for each class from the BLUE RIBBON projects ONLY. 1<sup>st</sup> place winners will receive \$75.00; 2<sup>nd</sup> place \$50.00; 3<sup>rd</sup> \$25.00.

# PREMIUM CHECKS WILL BE MAILED FOLLOWING THE SHOW

28. The San Angelo Stock Show & Rodeo reserves the right to interpret the rules pertaining to the Agriculture Mechanics Projects Show.

#### AGRICULTURAL PUBLIC SPEAKING CONTEST

Maggie Farrington, Superintendent

Entry Fee: \$25 per individual – NO LIMIT ON INDIVIDUALS

Entry Deadline: January 10, 2019 – through www.angelo.fairwire.com

Late Fees - \$225.00 cash only

Date of Contest: Friday, February 1, 2019

Registration: 8:00 a.m. – Lake View Bible Church

Time of Contest: 9:00 a.m. – Lake View Bible Church

Final Round: Immediately following Preliminary Round

Awards: Immediately following Final Round

- 1. All rules apply to the Agricultural Public Speaking Contest. Please refer to the General Rules and Junior Show Rules.
- 2. Age Divisions will be broken down into a senior division, exhibitors grades  $9^{th}$ - $12^{th}$ , and a junior division, grades  $3^{rd} 8^{th}$ .
- 3. Contestants in each division will be divided into groups depending on category. Categories must be indicated upon entry by <u>January 10, 2019</u>; category changes after entry deadline will not be permitted.
- 4. Manuscripts, bibliographies and statement of originalities all must be submitted at time of entry. There will be no exceptions. **Incomplete entries will not be accepted.**
- 5. The top two in each category will advance to the finals.
- 6. Business attire or official 4-H/FFA attire is recommended.
- 7. Contestants are required to upload the following items at the time of entry to Livestock Docs:
  - (a) Manuscript: One typed copy of the speech manuscript formatted for on  $8\% \times 11$ " paper. The manuscript must be the result of the student's own effort and follow the MLA style.
  - **(b)** Bibliography: A complete and accurate bibliography or works cited used in writing the speech must be attached to the manuscript and also follow the MLA style.
  - **(c)** A statement of originality signed by the contestant, parents, and AST/CEA must be attached to each copy of the speech. This is found on the website at www.sanangelorodeo.com
  - (d) If a contestant chooses to not follow the documentation guidelines outlined, point deductions will be taken at the discretion of the Superintendent, Show Management and Judges.
  - (e) If a contestant does not submit a copy of their speech, they will not be allowed to compete. They will be disqualified and forfeit their entry fee.
- 8. The use of props of any kind is prohibited. Violation will result in disqualification.
- 9. Each speech shall be a minimum of six (6) minutes in length and a maximum of eight (8) minutes. Time point deductions will be as follows:

Under six minutes – one point per ten seconds

Over eight minutes – one point per ten seconds

- 10. A maximum five (5) minute question/answer period will follow each speech. At the end of five minutes, all questions will end. If time is called during the student's answer to the last question, the contestant may complete his or her answer.
- 11. Each contestant will enter their speech in one of nine divisions. A contestant may enter in one division only. There are subject matters which may be appropriate in more than one division. Final determination of all speeches will be at the discretion of the Superintendent and Show Management. The division the student wishes to enter must be submitted with original entry form.
- 12. Contestants will <u>not</u> be allowed to enter and present a speech that has been previously entered and presented in the San Angelo Stock Show & Rodeo Public Speaking Contest. Entering a speech that has previously been entered and presented will result in disqualification.

#### Divisions:

<u>Agribusiness:</u> Any current and future subject that deals with topics such as cooperatives, sales, service, communications, entrepreneurship, marketing, finance, commodities, hedging, advertising, etc.

<u>Agricultural Communications:</u> Any current or future subject that deals with the process or act of communicating agricultural related information to the public.

<u>Agricultural Policy:</u> Any current or future subject that deals with topics such as domestic farm issues, international trade, international competition, rural economic development, legal issues, animal rights, subsidies, price supports, etc.

Agriscience/Agricultural Technology: Any current or future subject that deals with topics such as biotechnology, biogenetics, bioengineering, mechanical engineering, new agri-technology applications, global positioning and other satellite technology, computer applications, etc.

Animal Science: Any current or future subject that deals with any aspect of the dairy, equine,

<u>Animal Science:</u> Any current or future subject that deals with any aspect of the dairy, equine, poultry, sheep, goat, swine, beef or specialty animal industries.

<u>Agronomy:</u> Any current or future subject that deals with any aspect of the horticulture and/or agronomy industries including floriculture, fruit and/or vegetable production, nursery operations, turf and landscape management, crop production, or specialty crop production

<u>Natural Resources:</u> Any current or future subject that deals with topics such as soil, water, air, water quality, wildlife, forestry, aquaculture, conservation, recreation, recycling, energy environmental issues, etc.

<u>Livestock Show Ethics:</u> Any current or future subject that addresses any aspect of the ethics practiced in the livestock show industry.

<u>Western Heritage:</u> Any current or future subject that deals with topics such as Western history, culture or heritage.

Buckles will be awarded for 1<sup>st</sup> in each division 2<sup>rd</sup> – 5<sup>th</sup> will be awarded plaques in each division

#### JUNIOR ROBOTICS ARENA COMPETITION

Laura Howard, Superintendent

Leonard Christo, Assistant Superintendent

Traci Terrill, Assistant Superintendent

Entry Fee: \$40.00 per **team** 

Entry Deadline: January 10, 2019 – www.sanangelorodeo.com

Date of Contest:Friday, February 1, 2019 – Livestock BarnRegistration:9:00-10:00 a.m., Friday, February 1, 2019Time of Contest:10:00 a.m., Friday, February 1, 2019

Results at approximately 2:00 p.m., or immediately following the completion of the contest.

- 1. All rules apply to the Junior Robotics Arena Competition. Please refer to the General Rules and Junior Show Rules. The only exception being for students entering in the school division will be exempt from 4-H and/or FFA membership requirements.
- 2. **FORMAT:** This is an arena contest with a prescribed problem. Teams will receive a set of challenge rules and specifications designed from a theme that will vary from year to year. Robots must be constructed, programmed, and tested before the contest. The official scenario will be released in early September and is available at <a href="www.tcea.org/robotics">www.tcea.org/robotics</a>. Practice game mats and pieces are available through the same website.

Teams will have **TWO** attempts at this competition. Computers will be allowed and power sources will be available, though may be limited. Time permitting, teams will be allowed to make adjustments prior to and between matches, but must report for competition when called.

- 3. Each club, chapter, or school may enter as many teams as desired.
- 4. The contest will be divided into three divisions:
  - -Intermediate- Grades 3rd -5th
  - -Advanced- Grades 6th -8th
  - -Advanced- Grades 9th -12th

4-H and FFA teams may have 3<sup>rd</sup> graders compete. Teams are subject to reclassification by show management.

- 5. **Competing teams-** All teams must have one team sponsor (adult). Students are not allowed to compete on more than one team. Students will not be allowed to compete on both a 4-H and/or FFA team and a school team. All students must be from the same school, or club/chapter.
- 6. All teams (4-H, FFA, & School) will consist of a <u>maximum of 4 members</u> within the same age division plus 1 team sponsor (Adult)
- 7. Each team will submit a team name, which must be appropriate and meet common school standards.
- 8. Lego EV3 and NXT are acceptable systems for robots to be constructed.
- 9. Only registered students are allowed to touch the robot and the computer used to program it. The only exception is when technical problems with the computer occur. Live student problem solving is the spirit of the competition.

- 10. Only one robot per team will be allowed in the tournament. Backup robots will NOT be allowed. Teams found in violation will not be allowed to compete in the tournament.
- 11. Matches are 2 minutes in length. The match will begin with a 3, 2, 1 countdown, blow of whistle or some other sound. The match will end with a three second countdown, blow of a whistle or other sound. Each team will have one minute to set-up and one minute to take down.
- 12. No rematches will be awarded unless it is deemed that there is a failure of provided field materials.
- 13. No time-outs will be allowed for any reason.
- 14. All score disputing must be settled before the team leaves the field.
- 15. Lasers are not permitted.
- 16. During the competition, students may not communicate with anyone except other registered students and competition staff; all forms of communication are prohibited, including, but not limited to, live and electronic communication (talking, texting, videos, etc.). Students should request assistance from competition staff if any communication with parents or sponsors is necessary.
- 17. If students communicate with parents or sponsors in violation of this rule, or if they are caught using any communications devices, the team may be disqualified and asked to leave the competition.

Scenario Release Date: September 1, 2018 Available at: <a href="http://www.tcea.org/robotics">http://www.tcea.org/robotics</a>

Entry Form and more information will be available at <a href="http://www.sanangelorodeo.com/events/2019/robotics">http://www.sanangelorodeo.com/events/2019/robotics</a>

Awards will be given to the top three places. The first place teams in each division will receive a belt buckle for each contestant and sponsor. Buckles will be presented the day of the contest. Second through third place team members will receive medals, and sponsors will receive a plaque.

#### JUNIOR ROBOTICS INVENTIONS COMPETITION

Traci Terrill, Superintendent

Leonard Christo, Assistant Superintendent

Angela Gau, Assistant Superintendent

Entry Fee: \$40.00 per **team** 

Entry Deadline: January 10, 2019 – www.sanangelorodeo.com

Date of Contest:Friday, February 1, 2019 –Livestock BarnRegistration:9:00-10:00 a.m., Friday, February 1, 2019Time of Contest:10:00 a.m., Friday, February 1, 2019

Results immediately following the completion of the contest.

- 1. All rules apply to the Junior Robotics Invention Competition. Please refer to the General Rules and Junior Show Rules. The only exception being for students entering in the school division will be exempt from 4-H and/or FFA membership requirements.
- 2. **FORMAT:** This is an inventions contest, teams will create and develop a unique invention that will solve a problem. Student teams will need to approach their problem, working together like a real team of engineers, to solve a common challenge using the Engineering Design Process. The Engineering Design Process is a particular course of action and sequence of operations intended to achieve a result or produce an outcome.
  - Research
  - Plan
  - Prototype
  - Document and Test
  - Commercialize

All teams will be responsible for keeping a logbook where they record notes each time the team meets. The logbook should describe each step of the Engineering Design Process during the creation of their robotic invention. Judging criteria will be based on student teams presenting their step by step process, as well as documentation in their logbook. Students should use the Inventions Scoring Rubric as a guide for planning their project and presentation and for providing talking points for their presentation to the judges

- 3. Entries are limited to 20 entries per division, first received. Each club, chapter, or school may enter as many teams as desired.
- 4. The contest will be divided into two divisions:
  - Junior/Intermediate- Grades 3<sup>rd</sup> 8<sup>th</sup>
  - Senior- Grades 9<sup>th</sup> 12<sup>th</sup>

4-H and FFA teams may have 3<sup>rd</sup> graders compete. Teams are subject to reclassification by show management.

5. **Competing teams**- All teams must have one team sponsor (adult). Students are not allowed to compete on more than one team. Students will not be allowed to compete on both a 4-H and/or FFA team and a school team. All students must be from the same school, or club/chapter.

- 6. All teams (4-H, FFA, & School) will consist of a <u>maximum of 3 members</u> within the same age division plus 1 team sponsor (Adult)
- 7. Each team will submit a team name, which must be appropriate and meet common school standards.
- 8. Only registered students are allowed to touch the robot and the computer used to program it. The only exception is when technical problems with the computer occur. Live student problem solving is the spirit of the competition.
- 9. Only one robot per team will be allowed in the tournament. Backup robots will NOT be allowed. Teams found in violation will not be allowed to compete in the tournament.
- 10. Each team will have a 6 ft. table to conduct their presentation on and will be limited to a 10 ft. by 10 ft. area, which will included the table. Teams are not required to use the table. If the presentation goes outside of the designated area during the presentation, the final score will not receive 20 additional points for the "Compliance of Rules".
- 11. Presentation time is limited to 6 minutes. Teams will be notified as they approach the 5 minute mark as well as the 6 minute mark. If presentation goes over 6 minutes, the final score will not receive 20 additional points for the "Compliance of Rules".
- 12. Bluetooth is acceptable to control the Inventions category only.
- 13. The following robotic platforms are accepted for the Inventions category: EV3 and NXT.
- 14. No time-outs will be allowed for any reason.
- 15. All score disputing must be settled before the team leaves the field.
- 16. Lasers are not permitted.
- 17. During the competition, students may not communicate with anyone except other registered students and competition staff; all forms of communication are prohibited, including, but not limited to, live and electronic communication (talking, texting, videos, etc.). Students should request assistance from competition staff if any communication with parents or sponsors is necessary.
- 18. If students communicate with parents or sponsors in violation of this rule, or if they are caught using any communications devices, the team may be disqualified and asked to leave the competition.

Entry Form and more information will be available at http://www.sanangelorodeo.com/events/2019/robotics

Awards will be given to the top three places. The first place teams in each division will receive a belt buckle for each contestant and sponsor. Buckles will be presented the day of the contest. Second through third place team members will receive medals, and sponsors will receive a plaque.

#### JUNIOR FOOD CHALLENGE

Courtney Redman, Superintendent Kandice Everitt, Assistant Superintendent

Entry Fee: \$40.00 per team – NO LIMIT ON TEAMS
Entry Deadline: January 10, 2019 www.judgingcard.com

Date of Contest: Wednesday, January 23, 2019 – Pavilion

Registration: Team check in times will be assigned based upon heats

Time of Contest: 8:30 a.m., Wednesday, January 23, 2019

- 1. All rules apply to the Junior Food Challenge. Please refer to the General Rules and Junior Show Rules.
- 2. Age divisions are determined by a participant's age as of August 31 of the current 4-H year.

Junior Division:  $3^{rd} - 5^{th}$ Intermediate Division:  $6^{th} - 8^{th}$ Senior Division: Grades  $9^{th} - 12^{th}$ 

- 3. Each team will consist of three to four members. Teams may not consist of individuals from various age divisions with the exception that junior members may compete on intermediate teams.
- 4. There will be four food categories in each age division: Main Dish, Fruits and Vegetables, Bread and Cereal, and Nutritious Snacks. Teams will be randomly assigned to a category, but assignments will not be announced until check-in the day of the contest.
- 5. Resource materials will be provided for each team at the contest. These include My Plate Mini Poster, Fight Bac Fight Foodborne Bacteria Brochure, Know Your Nutrients, Food Challenge Worksheet, and copies of grocery receipts. No other resource materials will be allowed. Teams may not use their personal copies of the resources during the contest.
- 6. Each team must supply their own equipment for the challenge. Teams may bring only the supplies listed in the supply box section. Supply boxes will be checked by contest officials as teams check in for the contest. Any extra equipment will be confiscated and the team may be disqualified.
- 7. Each team will have 40 minutes to prepare the dish, plan a presentation, and clean up the preparation area.
- 8. Teams that may experience any equipment malfunction(s) may not replace the equipment with supplies from another team, leaders, volunteers, county Extension agents or contest officials. Instead, team members must work together and be creative in completing preparation without the malfunctioning equipment.
- 9. Preparation: Each team will be provided with a set of ingredients reflective of the assigned category, and will create a single dish using them. A list of ingredients and amounts may also be provided.
- a. The ingredients provided to each team are based upon a recipe; however, teams are challenged with being creative and developing their own recipe with the ingredients provided.
- b. Teams must incorporate each ingredient into the dish. However, teams may determine the exact amount of each ingredient to use.

- c. Teams will have access to a "pantry" of additional ingredients that may be incorporated into their recipe. The number of additional ingredients a team may get will be determined by contest officials and announced during participant orientation.
- d. The ingredients provided to each team may also be used to garnish the dish. Additional garnishing items will not be provided.
- e. Note cards and the Food Challenge Worksheet may be used to write down the recipe that the team creates, along with notes related to nutrition, food safety, and cost analysis. Teams should be exact on ingredients used, preparation steps, cooking time, temperature, etc.
- f. Teams are also judged during preparation phase of the contest. This judging is based upon observation only with judges taking into consideration teamwork, safety concerns and practices, preparation and management when scoring each team.
- 10. Each station will have food safety resources. Teams should follow the steps listed to ensure proper food safety and be prepared to discuss food safety practices used in the team presentation to the judges.
- 11. Each station will have a variety of nutrition resources/references. Each team should name key nutrients in their dish and their functions.
- 12. Prices will be available for each ingredient provided to teams. Teams will need to find the ingredients on the list and calculate the price of the dish along with the price per serving. Teams will also need to determine the number of servings per recipe. Cost of pantry items should not be included in cost analysis calculation.
- 13. Presentation: When time is called, each team will present their dish, according to the criteria on the score card, to a panel of at least two judges.
  - a. All team members must participate in the presentation.
- b. Judging time will include: 5 minutes for the presentation 3 minutes for judges' questions 4 minutes between team presentations for judges to score and write comments
- c. Teams are allowed the use of note cards during the presentation but should not read from them, as this minimizes the effectiveness of their communication.
- d. Judges may ask teams questions that are not directly related to the dish prepared. Instead, some questions may address the general knowledge gained through the 4-H members' food and nutrition project learning experiences.
- e. No talking and no writing is allowed among any team members while waiting to give the team presentation. Team members caught talking and/or writing will receive a warning. The second time, the team will be disqualified and asked to leave the contest facility. Team members should not have pens or pencils in their possession while waiting to give their presentation.
- 14. Teams must clean up their preparation areas. Clean-up time is included in the 40-minute preparation allotment. Teams should plan to not have access to a kitchen facility; therefore, dirty dishes should be placed in a plastic container, bag or box to be cleaned at home. Left-over food should be disposed of properly.
- 15. Judges are not allowed to taste the foods prepared. No left-over food should be shared with any participant or the audience.

16. The high point overall senior team will receive a \$1,200.00 incentive divided amongst each team member and the second high point overall senior team will receive a \$750.00 incentive divided amongst each team member. Checks will be mailed to the 4-H or FFA Club through which they entered.

# **Supply Box**

Each team will bring an equipment box containing **only one** each of the following items, unless a different quantity is noted:

Beverage Glass

**Bowls** 

Dip size (1) Mixing (2) Serving (1)

Calculator
Can Opener
Colander
Cookie Sheet
Cutting Boards (2)

Disposable tasting spoons (no limit)

Dry measuring cups (1 set)

Electric skillet Extension cord

(Teams should be certain the extension Cord is compatible (2 or 3 prong) with Plugs on their electrical supplies)

First Aid Kit

Food thermometer

Fork Gloves Grater

Hand Sanitizer

Hot pads (up to 5)

Kitchen shears (1 pair)

Kitchen timer

Knives (2)

Liquid measuring cup (2 cup size)

Measuring spoon (1 set) Non-stick cooking spray

Note cards (no larger than 5x7) (1 set)

Paper towels (1 roll)
Pancake turner
Pencils (no limit)

Plastic box and trash bag for dirty equip.

Pot with lid Potato masher Potato peeler

Sanitizing wipes (1 container)

Serving platter Serving utensil Skewer s (1 set) Skillet with lid Spatula (2) Stirring spoon Storage bags (1 box)

**Tongs** 

Two single-burner hot plates **OR** One double burner plate (electric only!)

Whisk

#### LIVESTOCK JUDGING CONTEST

Audrey Zoeller, Superintendent Dr. Chase Runyan, Assistant Superintendent Dr. Will Dickison, Assistant Superintendent Dr. Cody Scott, Assistant Superintendent

Entry Fee: \$12.00 per **individual** – NO LIMIT ON INDIVIDUALS
Entry Deadline: February 10, 2019 (Double fees Feb. 10- February 16)

Day of contest – fees double (CASH ONLY)

Date of Contest: Saturday, February 16, 2019 – 1<sup>st</sup> Community Credit Union Spur Arena

Registration: 7:00-8:00 a.m., Saturday, February 16, 2019
Time of Contest: 8:30 a.m., Saturday, February 16, 2019

- 1. Any FFA Chapter or County 4-H Club in Texas may enter as many individuals as they wish. Any individual eligible for competition in the state contests are eligible to judge in this contest. Students that comprise each team are to be members of that 4-H County or FFA Chapter. Entries must be submitted for the San Angelo Stock Show judging events through www.judgingcard.com.
- 2. Number of teams must be submitted by the coaches to show officials before 8:00 a.m. the morning of the contest.
- 3. Contest will be divided into two (2) divisions: Junior (Grades 3<sup>rd</sup> -8<sup>th</sup>) and Senior (Grades 9<sup>th</sup>-12<sup>th</sup>).
- 4. Competing teams will consist of four members and the scores of the three high scoring team members will count as the team's score with the low scoring member automatically becoming the alternate. The alternate's score can be counted for individual awards.
- 5. Ten placing classes for both divisions will be judged. These classes will represent each species (cattle, sheep, swine and goats). Both the senior and junior division will answer 3 sets of questions.
- 6. Scan sheets will be provided by the San Angelo Stock Show & Rodeo Association.
- 7. Contestants will be allowed 12 minutes on each class to make their observations, record their placings, and take notes for questions when applicable. Handling of animals will be left up to the discretion of contest committee. Contestants will be notified two minutes before the placing class time is up.
- 8. Ties will be broken by awarding the higher place to the individual or team scoring the highest in Beef total, Sheep total, Swine total and Goat total placings giving priority in the order listed.
- 9. A plaque will be awarded to the top three teams. The first through third place high individuals will receive plaques. All plaques will be mailed to the CEA/AST of the winning teams and/or individuals in mid-March.
- 10. The high point individual will receive a \$1,500.00 incentive made payable to the individual to be mailed by the end of April, and the second high point individual will receive a \$1,000.00 incentive, and the third high point individual will receive a \$500.00 incentive. Checks will be mailed to the 4-H or FFA Club through which they entered. Individuals are eligible for multiple incentives.
- \*There will be no awards programs. Scores and results will be uploaded to judgingcard.com. Plaques and other awards will be mailed to the club or chapter of winners at a later date.

#### **WOOL JUDGING CONTEST**

Mike Salisbury, Superintendent

Entry Fee: \$12.00 per **individual** – NO LIMIT ON **INDIVIDUALS**Entry Deadline: February 10, 2019 (Double fees Feb. 10- day of contest)

Day of contest – fees double (CASH ONLY)

Date of Contest: Saturday, February 16, 2019 – North Foyer of Spur Arena

Registration: 8:00-8:45 a.m., Saturday, February 16, 2019

Time of Contest: 9:00 a.m., Saturday, February 16, 2019

- 1. Any FFA Chapter or County 4-H Club in Texas may enter as many individuals as they wish. Students that comprise each team are to be members of that 4-H County or FFA Chapter. Entries must be submitted for the San Angelo Stock Show judging events through <a href="https://www.judgingcard.com">www.judgingcard.com</a>.
- 2. Names of contestants and number of teams must be submitted by the coaches to show officials before 8:00 a.m. the morning of the contest.
- 3. Competing teams will consist of 4 members and the scores of the three high scoring team members will count as the team's score with the low scoring member automatically becoming the alternate. The alternate's score can be counted for individual awards.
- 4. **CLASSES:** The classes in the contest will consist of four wool classes. There will be 20 wool grading fleeces. The contest will be graded and scores will be totaled by persons using hand calculators. Judges for the contest will be comprised of the members of the committee.
- 5. Contestants will be allowed fifteen (15) minutes on each class of fleeces to make their observations and to make their placing and reasons. Contestants will be given 30 minutes on each of the grading division of wool.
- 6. Ties will be broken by awarding the higher place to the individual or team scoring the highest in wool grading.
- 7. A plaque will be awarded to the top three teams and the top three placing individuals. All plaques will be mailed to the CEA/AST of the winning teams and/or individuals in mid-March.
- 8. The high point individual will receive a \$1,000.00 incentive made payable to the individual to be mailed by the end of April, and the second high point individual will receive a \$500.00 incentive. Checks will be mailed to the 4-H or FFA Club through which they entered in mid-April. Individuals are eligible for multiple incentives.

<sup>\*</sup>There will be no awards programs. Scores and results will be uploaded to judgingcard.com. Plaques and other awards will be mailed to the club or chapter of winners at a later date.

#### WILDLIFE JUDGING CONTEST

Dr. Cody Scott, Superintendent

Corey Owens, Assistant Superintendent

Entry Fee: \$12.00 per **individual** – **NO LIMIT ON INDIVIDUALS**Entry Deadline: February 10, 2019 (Double fees Feb. 10- day of contest)

Day of contest – fees double (CASH ONLY)

Date of Contest: Saturday, February 16, 2019 – ASU MIR Center, Hwy 87 N.

Angelo State University Ranch, San Angelo, TX 325-942-2388

Registration: 8:00-8:40 a.m., Saturday, February 16, 2019
Time of Contest: 8:45 a.m., Saturday, February 16, 2019

- 1. Any FFA Chapter or County 4-H Club in Texas may enter as many individuals as they wish. Students that comprise each team are to be members of that 4-H County or FFA Chapter. Entries must be submitted for the San Angelo Stock Show judging events through www.judgingcard.com.
- 2. Names of contestants and number of teams must be submitted by their coaches to show officials before 9:00 a.m. the morning of the contest.
- 3. Competing teams will consist of 3 or 4 members with the lowest scoring member automatically becoming an alternate.
- 4. The contest format, including questions will originate from the "Wildlife and Recreation Management Study Guide: A Guide for Agricultural Science Teachers and 4-H Leaders State List." The guide is available from Instructional Materials Service, Department of Agriculture Education, College of Agriculture and Life Sciences, Texas A&M University, College Station, TX. Coaches should contact Instructional Materials Service prior to the contest for updates or changes to the contest guidelines.
- 5. Scansheets will be provided by the San Angelo Stock Show & Rodeo Association.
- 6. Fifteen minutes will be allocated to complete each station in the contest with five minutes reserved to move between stations.
- 7. Ties will be broken by awarding the higher place to the individual or team scoring the highest in techniques portion. If still tied, the highest score in plant identification followed by the highest score on plant preference wins. In all cases, the committee's decision is final.
- 8. A plaque will be awarded to the top three teams. The first through third place high individuals will receive plaques. All plaques will be mailed to the CEA/AST of the winning teams and/or individuals in mid-March.
- 9. The high point individual will receive a \$1,000.00 incentive made payable to the individual to be mailed by the end of April, and the second high point individual will receive a \$500.00 incentive. Checks will be mailed to the 4-H or FFA Club through which they entered. Individuals are eligible for multiple incentives.

<sup>\*</sup>There will be no awards programs. Scores and results will be uploaded to judgingcard.com. Plaques and other awards will be mailed to the club or chapter of winners at a later date.

#### **MEAT JUDGING CONTEST**

Robert Cope, Superintendent Loree Branham, Asst. Superintendent Eddie Behrends, Asst. Superintendent John Kellermeier, Asst. Superintendent

\$12.00 per individual - NO LIMIT ON INDIVIDUALS Entry Fee:

Entry Deadline: February 10, 2019 (Double fees after February 10 to contest) Date of Contest: Saturday, February 16, 2019 – ASU Meat Lab, Hwy 87 N.

Angelo State University Ranch, San Angelo, TX 325-942-2515

7:00 a.m., Saturday, February 16, 2019 Registration: Time of Contest: 8:00 a.m., Saturday, February 16, 2019

- 1. Any FFA Chapter or County 4-H Club in Texas may enter as many individuals as they wish. Any individual eligible for competition in the state contests are eligible to judge in this contest. There will be only one division with the 4-H and FFA competing all together. Students that comprise each team are to be members of that 4-H County or FFA Chapter. Entries must be submitted for the San Angelo Stock Show judging events through www.judgingcard.com.
- 2. Number of teams must be submitted by the coaches to show officials before 8 the morning of contest.
- 3. Competing teams will consist of 4 members and the scores of the three high scoring team members will count as the team's score with the low scoring member automatically becoming the alternate.
- 4. CLASSES: The following classes will be judged: Six (6) beef grading carcasses 3/class, forty (40) retail cut identifications, six (6) placing classes, two (2) sets of questions, and a written exam. The written exam will consist of twenty-five (25), two (2) point questions. Questions will ONLY come from:
- a. "Meat Science & Food Safety" PowerPoint (CEV)
- b. The same chapters will be used at Nationals with the corresponding year: 2018, 2020: Meat Storage and Handling, Meat Cookery, Processed Meats, and Food Safety. 2017, 2019, 2021: Legislation and History, Animal Care and Handling, Meat Nutrition, and Purchasing Meat.
- 5. Scan sheets will be provided by the San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo Association.
- 6. Contestants will be allowed ten (10) minutes for each judging class. Contestants will be notified one (1) minute before the time is up. When contest concludes, the contestants will hand their scan sheets to the group leader immediately.
- 7. CONTESTANTS MUST BRING THEIR OWN WHITE FROCKS, HARD HATS, PROPER FOOT WEAR AND HAIR NETS TO WEAR DURING THE CONTEST.
- 8. A plaque will be awarded to the top three teams. The first through third place high individuals will receive plaques. All plaques will be mailed to the CEA/AST of the winning teams and/or individuals in mid-March.
- 9. The high point individual will receive a \$1,000.00 incentive made payable to the individual to be mailed by the end of April, and the second high point individual will receive a \$500.00 incentive. Checks will be mailed to the 4-H or FFA Club through which they entered. Individuals are eligible for multiple incentives.

#### **CONSUMER DECISION MAKING CONTEST**

Garry Branham, Superintendent

Entry Fee: \$10.00 per individual – NO LIMIT ON INDIVIDUALS Entry Deadline: February 10, 2018 (Double fees Feb. 11- Feb. 14)

Day of contest – fees double (CASH ONLY)

Date of Contest: Friday, February 15, 2019

Registration: 9:30 a.m. 1<sup>st</sup> Community Credit Union Spur Arena

Time of Contest: 10:30 a.m. - 1<sup>st</sup> Community Credit Union Spur Arena

Awards: Approximately 1:00 p.m. - 1st Community Credit Union Spur Arena

(Following tabulation)

- 1. All rules apply to the Consumer Decision Making Contest. Please refer to the General Rules and Junior Show Rules.
- 2. The contest and teams will be divided into three (3) divisions:

Junior	3 <sup>rd</sup> Grade – 5 <sup>th</sup> Grade
Intermediate	6 <sup>th</sup> Grade – 8 <sup>th</sup> Grade
Senior	9 <sup>th</sup> Grade – 12 <sup>th</sup> Grade

Age as of August 31, 2018. Teams will compete based on the age of the oldest member. Entries must be submitted for the San Angelo Stock Show judging events through <a href="https://www.judgingcard.com">www.judgingcard.com</a>.

- 3. Contestants will judge six (6) classes selected from consumer products. Example: blue jeans, snack foods, sunscreens, shampoo, checking account, etc. Contestants will be allowed eight (8) minutes for judging each class.
- 4. Scan sheets will be provided by the San Angelo Stock Show and Rodeo Association.
- 5. Junior teams and individuals are not required to give reasons. One (1) class of reasons will be required for Intermediates and two (2) classes of reasons for Seniors.
- 6. Scores will be based on placing only for Junior teams and individuals. Scores are based on placing plus one (1) reasons class for Intermediates and two (2) reasons classes for Seniors. All ties among any placing team or individual will be broken via designated tie-breakers day of contest.
- 8. All study materials for this contest are located at: <a href="http://texas4-h.tamu.edu/projects/consumer-education/">http://texas4-h.tamu.edu/projects/consumer-education/</a> Study Guides will be available after December 1, of the year preceding the show at each County Extension Office and on the website listed. Calculators will be allowed during contest.

For more information, please see: http://d74-h.tamu.edu/district-events/

- 9. Plaques will be awarded to the overall Top 3 placing individuals and the overall Top 3 teams in each age category.
- 10. The Senior High Point Individual will be awarded a \$1,000.00 incentive and the second high point senior individual will be awarded a \$500.00 incentive made payable to the individual to be mailed by the end of April. Checks will be mailed to the 4-H or FFA Club through which they entered. Individuals are eligible for multiple incentives.

#### YOUTH MINIATURE HEREFORD SHOW

Dolores Jenkins - Superintendent

Entry Fee: \$35.00 per head-No limit on entries

Entry Deadline: January 10, 2019 Postmark (Double fees Jan. 10-show)

Arrival Begins: 9:00 a.m., Thursday, January 31, 2019

In Place: 12:00 p.m. (Noon), Thursday, January 13, 2019

Check Papers: 2:00 p.m., Thursday January 31, 2019 Weigh/Measure: 2:00 p.m., Thursday, January 31, 2019

Time of Show: 10:00 a.m., Friday, February 1, 2019 (Showmanship, then Youth Show)

Judge:

1. All rules apply to the Youth Miniature Hereford Show. Please refer to the General Rules.



- 2. Exhibitors must have reached their 3<sup>rd</sup> birthday on show day but not reached their 22<sup>nd</sup> birthday on show day.
- 3. All animals entered in this division must be owned and shown by their exhibitor. All steers and heifers must be registered in the AHA and meet height restrictions in order to participate. All entries will be measured for height and weight prior to showing at a time and place designated by the MHBA show representative. The MHBA show representative or a designee will conduct all height and weight measurements. Exhibitors shall not intervene or otherwise interfere with any representative or designee during the height and weight measuring process.

Steers and heifers will be allowed ½ inch over the hip-height chart accepted for use by the MHBA until the animal reaches fourteen months of age. At that point, they must be within the chart range.

4. Exhibitors must be current active members of the Miniature Hereford Breeders Association. Siblings may share family membership.



- 5. Exhibitor name must be listed on the registration certificate as owner or co-owner on or before the ownership date. The ownership for prospect steers is January 31, 2019. The ownership deadline for market steers is November 1, 2018. The ownership deadline for heifers is January 31, 2019.
- 6. Animals entered must be in the possession of the exhibitor no later than the ownership deadline. The exhibitor is responsible for the general custody, care and feeding of their animal when possible or to help when it is not possible to care for the animal unassisted. Family members and fellow participants may help with these tasks. All animals in this division MUST be completely broke to lead for the safety of the exhibitor and others in the show ring. Animals not deemed fit will be removed from the show ring and disqualified from the competition.
- 7. All animals will be fitted and presented in a proper condition for a cattle show. Exhibitors are encouraged to help in any way that is safe and possible for them to do so, but not endanger themselves, their animals or other in the process.
- 8. The height and weight recorded at the time of weigh-in will be the official weight and height of the animal. Market Steers may not exceed the maximum of 48 inches at the hip at time of check-in. Steers over 48 inches will not be eligible to show.

- 9. Participants in this division are required to show their animal. Participants under the age of five (5) will be required to have a parent, sibling or other participant accompany them in the show ring. All participants are allowed to have a parent, sibling or other participant present in the show ring to assist. Participants are to handle the majority of the showing, and the use of the show stick, and assistants may help in the control of the animal.
- 10. Showmanship classes are open to participants that can show unassisted. Animals exhibited in the showmanship class must be owned and entered in the show by the exhibitor.
- 11. Safety is the most important factor in this event. Please be sure both the exhibitors and animals are prepared to participate in the show.
- 12. Any steer that is 16 months or younger on show day will show as a prospect steer. Any steer over 16 months on show day will show in the market steer division. Classes will be further broken by show weight.



13. This is a non-fit show. Blow & show only! Usage of paint, glue or other adhesives on your mini Hereford are prohibited.

#### **CLASSES**

Showmanship- (No entry fee; Exhibitors will enter at the gate) Ribbons 1-10 2 Champion Showman awards, one for ages 3-8 and one for ages 9-18.

#### Heifers

1. Fall & Winter Junior Heifer Calves (7/18-12/18)	Ribbons 1-5
2. Spring & Summer Heifer Calves (4/18-6/18)	Ribbons 1-5
3. Winter & Spring Heifer Calves (1/18-3/18)	Ribbons 1-5
4. Fall & Winter Intermediate Heifers (9/17-12/17)	Ribbons 1-5
5. Spring & Summer Intermediate Heifers (5/17-8/17)	Ribbons 1-5
6. Winter & Spring Intermediate Heifers (1/17-4/17)	Ribbons 1-5
7. Grand Champion Heifer	Banner
8. Reserve Grand Champion Heifer	Banner
<u>Steers</u>	
9. Prospect Steers	
10. Champion Prospect Steer	Banner & Buckle
11. Reserve Champion Prospect Steer	
12. Market Steers	
13. Champion Market Steer	Banner & Buckle
14. Reserve Champion Prospect Steer	Banner & Buckle

#### **OPEN MINIATURE HEREFORD SHOW**

Dolores Jenkins - Superintendent

Entry Fee: \$35.00 per head- No limit on entries

Entry Deadline: January 10, 2019 postmarked (Double fees Jan. 10-show)

Arrival Begins: 9:00 a.m., Thursday, January 31, 2019

In Place: 12:00 p.m. (Noon), Thursday, January 31, 2019

Check Papers: 2:00 p.m., Thursday, January 31, 2019 Weigh/Measure: 2:00 p.m., Thursday, January 31, 2019

Time of Show: Friday, February 1, 2019- Immediately following Youth Show

Judge: Dennis Poole, Gail, TX

- 1. All rules apply to the Open Miniature Hereford Show. Please refer to the General Rules.
- 2. Entries must be registered with the American Hereford Association, and registered in the exhibitor's name. Animals with "pending" or "applied for" registrations are not eligible to show.
- 3. Entries are subject to provisions and rules for showing as set forth by the AHA Board of Directors and are subject to supervision of the Show and Sale Committee representing the MHBA.
- 4. All exhibitors must be current members of the MHBA in order to be eligible to show.
- 5. Maximum height to be shown in these classes is 45" on mature females and 48" on mature bulls. All entries will be measured for height and weight prior to showing at a time and place designated by the Show Officials. The MHBA show representative or a designee will conduct all height and weight measurements. Exhibitors shall not intervene or otherwise interfere with any representative or designee during the height and weight measuring process. Those exceeding the height requirement will be disqualified from competition.
- 6. All horned and polled Miniature Hereford cattle will show together.
- 7. Any animal without a legible tattoo will not be eligible to show.
- 8. Any steer that is 16 months or younger on show day will show as a prospect steer. Any steer over 16 months on show day will show in the market steer division. Classes will be further broken by show weight.
- 9. Show management reserves the right to adjust the class schedule as needed.
- 10. This is a non-fit show. Blow & show only! Usage of paint, glue or other adhesives on your mini Hereford are prohibited.

1<sup>st</sup> Place- \$35 2<sup>nd</sup> Place- \$25

# **CLASSES**

#### **Female Classes**

1. Fall & Winter Junior Heifer Calves (7/18-12/18)	Ribbons 1-5
2. Spring & Summer Junior Heifer Calves (4/18-6/18)	Ribbons 1-5
3. Winter & Spring Junior Heifer Calves (1/18-3/18)	Ribbons 1-5

4. Champion Junior Heifer Calf	Banner
5. Reserve Champion Junior Heifer Calf	Banner
6. Fall & Winter Intermediate Heifers (9/17-12/17)	Ribbons 1-5
7. Spring & Summer Intermediate Heifers (5/17-8/17)	Ribbons 1-5
8. Winter & Spring Intermediate Heifers (1/17-4/17)	
9. Champion Intermediate Heifer	Banner
10. Reserve Champion Intermediate Heifer	Banner
11. Grand Champion Heifer	Banner & \$100
12. Reserve Grand Champion Heifer	
13. Cow/Calf (any female older than the above ages with calf at side	Ribbons 1-5
*Calf must not be more than 270 days of age on show date.	
Cow/Calf class does not compete for Grand Champion Heifer	
14. Pair of Females	Ribbons 1-5
Bull Classes	
15. Fall & Winter Junior Bull Calves (7/18-12/18)	
16. Spring & Summer Junior Bull Calves (1/18-6/18)	
17. Champion Junior Bull Calves	
18. Reserve Champion Junior Bull Calves	
19. Fall & Winter Intermediate Bulls (7/17-12/17)	
20. Spring & Summer Intermediate Bulls (1/17-6/17)	
21. Champion Intermediate Bull	
22. Reserve Champion Intermediate Bull	Banner
23. Grand Champion Bull	•
24. Reserve Grand Champion Bull	Banner & \$50
Steers	
25. Prospect Steers	Ribbons 1-5
26. Champion Prospect Steer	
27. Reserve Champion Prospect Steer	·
28. Market Steers	·
29. Champion Market Steer	
30. Reserve Champion Prospect Steer	· ·
pp	: <del>7</del> - 0

#### **TLBAA YOUTH TEXAS LONGHORN SHOW**

Dennis Urbantke, Superintendent

Entry Fee: \$42.00 per head – No limit on entries

\$20.00 per head – Youth Points Only Show – No limit on entries

Entry Deadline: January 10, 2019 Postmark

Start Receiving: 12:00 p.m., Friday, February 15, 2019 (Cattle Barn)
Barn Opens: 7:00 a.m., Saturday, February 16, 2019 (Cattle Barn)

In Place: 9:00 a.m., Saturday, February 16, 2019 Complete Check-in: 9:00 a.m., Saturday, February 16, 2019

Time of Show: 3:00 p.m., Saturday, February 16, 2019 – Youth Points Show

\*See Rule # 13 in regards to point show\*

9:00 a.m., Sunday, February 17, 2019 - Youth Show

Judge: Youth Show – Maggie Salem, Alba, TX

Points Only – Keith DuBose, Ben Wheeler, TX

- 1. All rules apply to the Longhorn Show. Please refer to the General Rules.
- 2. The San Angelo Stock Show will receive \$35.00 of the original entry fee. Entries in these classes for this show will be accepted with the understanding that each exhibitor agrees to conform to the rules and regulations of the TLBAA & TLBT Official Handbooks.
- 3. Any member in good standing of the TLBT may show in TLBT shows through high school graduation or may be a graduating senior not exceeding 18 years of age on National Show date.
- 4. A photocopy of the original registration certificate must accompany entry application no pending registration will be accepted. All animals must be registered with TLBAA and must be properly identified by brand and private herd number, and match the description of the registration certificate.
- 5. Texas Longhorn Breeders of Tomorrow shows are considered open shows. Cattle may be owned by youth, ranch or other breeders of Texas Longhorn cattle.
- 6. All animals must be at least 120 days old to be eligible to show, born before October 20, 2018.
- 7. Cattle may be subjected to mouthing by a certified veterinarian for age verification.
- 8. No grooming chutes are allowed.
- 9. NOSE LEADS with strap (not tongs) will be used on bulls 12 months and over.
- 10. Animals must be kept under control at all times. Should an animal become unmanageable, the show manager and/or the San Angelo Stock Show management shall have the right and responsibility to remove such animal from competition and all entry fees shall be forfeited.
- 11. A dress code will be enforced at these shows.
  - Western attire, long sleeve shirt with collar and cuffs. Western boots and western jeans
    are to be worn while in the ring. Western hats (not caps) may be worn. Violators of this
    rule will be disqualified upon the discretion of the show committee.
- 12. In the showmanship class/classes exhibitors must exhibit an animal that was shown in competition in the same TLBT show.

For questions regarding this show, please contact Superintendent Dennis Urbantke at (325)656-9321 or by e-mail at <u>dennis@thlonghorns.com</u>. Any questions regarding entering the show should be directed to the livestock office.

13. Youth exhibitors will only be allowed to enter animals in the points only show if they are entered the Youth show on Sunday, February 17, 2019. Entry fees for the points show will be \$20 / head

# TLBT YOUTH TEXAS LONGHORN SHOW – CLASS SCHEDULE

HALTERED FEMALE CLASSES:
Class 1: Born September – October 2018
Class 2: Born July – August 2018
Class 3: Born May – June 2018
Class 4: Born March – April 2018
Class 5: Born January – February 2018
Class 6: Junior Champion Youth Female
Class 7: Reserve Junior Champion Youth Female
Class 8: Born September – December 2017
Class 9: Born May – August 2017
Class 10: Born January – April 2017
Class 11: Born 2016
Class 12: Senior Champion Youth Female
Class 13: Reserve Champion Youth Female
Class 14: Grand Champion Youth Female
Class 15: Reserve Grand Champion Youth Female\$100.00
BULL CLASSES: (SHOW AT HALTER WITH NOSE LEAD)
Class 16: Born September – October 2018
Class 17: Born July – August 2018
Class 18: Born May – June 2018
Class 19: Born March – April 2018
Class 20: Born January – February 2018
Class 21: Born September – December 2017
Class 22: Grand Champion Youth Bull
Class 23: Reserve Grand Champion Youth Bull
STEER CLASSES
Class 24: Born October 2018
Class 25: Born July – September 2018
Class 26: Born April – June 2018
Class 27: Born January – March 2018
Class 28: Junior Champion Youth Steer
Class 29: Junior Reserve Champion Youth Steer
Class 30: Born September – December 2017
Class 31: Born May—August 2017
Class 32: Born January - April 2017
Class 33: Born January—December 2016
Class 34: Senior Champion Youth Steer
Class 35: Senior Reserve Champion Youth Steer
Class 36: Grand Champion Youth Steer\$125.00
Class 37: Reserve Grand Champion Youth Steer

# **SHOWMANSHIP CLASSES**

Junior	
Intermediate	10-12 years as of 1/1/2018
Teen	13-15 years as of 1/1/2018
Senior	

**YOUTH Showmanship** will be immediately following the Youth Show.

The San Angelo Stock Show will furnish ribbons for  $1^{st} - 3^{rd}$  in each class and banners for Champions. The West Texas Longhorn Association will provide Trophies and cash prizes.

#### TLBAA WORLD QUALIFYING HALTERED TEXAS LONGHORN SHOW

Dennis Urbantke, Superintendent

Entry Fee: \$42.00 per head – No limit on entries

Entry Deadline: January 10, 2019 Postmark (Double fees after Jan. 10 postmark)

Start Receiving: 12:00 p.m., Friday, February 15, 2019 (Cattle Barn)

In Place: 9:00 a.m., Saturday, February 16, 2019 Complete Check-in: 9:00 a.m., Saturday, February 16, 2019

Time of Show: 12:00 p.m., Saturday, February 16, 2019 – Open Haltered Show

9:00 a.m., Sunday, February 17, 2019 -Youth Show

Judge: William Henderson, Spring, TX

1. All rules apply to the Longhorn Show. Please refer to the General Rules and Junior Show Rules.

- 2. The San Angelo Stock Show will receive \$35.00 of the original entry fee. Entries in these classes for this show will be accepted with the understanding that each exhibitor agrees to conform to the rules and regulations of the TLBAA World Show Handbook. All exhibitors must be a member of TLBAA.
- 3. A photocopy of the original registration certificate must accompany entry application no pending registration will be accepted. All animals must be registered with TLBAA and must be properly identified by brand and private herd number, and match the description of the registration certificate.
- 4. All animals must be at least 120 days old to be eligible to show, born before October 20, 2018.
- 5. Cattle may be subjected to mouthing by a certified veterinarian for age verification.
- 6. No grooming chutes are allowed.
- 7. Group classes will be shown at halter from female age classes 1 11, matured female classes 16 17, and bull age classes 20 29.
- 8. NOSE LEADS with strap (not tongs) will be used on bulls 12 months and over and all trophy steers.
- 9. Animals must be kept under control at all times. Should an animal become unmanageable, the show manager and/or the San Angelo Stock Show management shall have the right and responsibility to remove such animal from competition and all entry fees shall be forfeited.
- 10. A dress code will be enforced at these shows.
  - Western attire, long sleeve shirt with collar and cuffs. Western boots and western jeans are to be worn while in the ring. Western hats (not caps) may be worn. Violators of this rule will be disqualified upon the discretion of the show committee.

For questions regarding this show, please contact Superintendent Dennis Urbantke at (325)656-9321 or by e-mail at <a href="mailto:dennis@thlonghorns.com">dennis@thlonghorns.com</a>. Any questions regarding entering the show should be directed to the livestock office.

# TBLAA WORLD QUALIFYING HALTERED TEXAS LONGHORN SHOW – CLASS SCHEDULE

HALTERED FEMALE CLASSES:	
Class 1: Born September – October 2018	
Class 2: Born July – August 2018	
Class 3: Born May – June 2018	
Class 4: Born March – April 2018	
Class 5: Born January – February 2018	
Class 6: Junior Champion Haltered Female	\$25, Trophy & Banner
Class 7: Reserve Junior Champion Haltered Female	Banner
Class 8: Born September – December 2017	
Class 9: Born May – August 2017	
Class 10: Born January – April 2017	
Class 11: Born 2016	
Class 12: Senior Champion Haltered Female	\$25, Trophy & Banner
Class 13: Reserve Champion Haltered Female	Banner
Class 14: Grand Champion Haltered Female	\$75, Belt Buckle & Banner
Class 15: Reserve Grand Champion Haltered Female	\$50, Trophy & Banner
HALTERED MATURE FEMALE CLASSES	
Class 16: Born 2012, 2013, 2014 or 2015	
Class 17: Born 2011 or before	
Class 18: Grand Champion Mature Haltered Female	\$75, Belt Buckle & Banner
Class 19: Reserve Grand Champion Mature Haltered Female	\$50, Trophy & Banner
BULL CLASSES: (SHOW AT HALTER WITH NOSE LEAD)	
Class 20: Born September – October 2018	
Class 21: Born July – August 2018	
Class 22: Born May – June 2018	
Class 23: Born March – April 2018	
Class 24: Born January – February 2018	
Class 25: Junior Champion Haltered Bull	\$25, Trophy & Banner
Class 26: Reserve Junior Champion Haltered Bull	Banner
Class 27: Born September – December 2017	
Class 28: Born May – August 2017	
Class 29: Born January – April 2017	
Class 30: Senior Champion Haltered Bull	\$25, Trophy & Banner
Class 31: Reserve Senior Champion Haltered Bull	Banner
Class 32: Grand Champion Haltered Bull	
Class 33: Reserve Grand Champion Haltered Bull	
Class 34: Produce of Dam	Banner
Class 35: Get of Sire	Banner
TROPHY STEER CLASSES: (SHOW AT HALTER WITH NOSE LEAD)	
Class 36: Born 2016-2017	
Class 37: Born 2014-2015	
Class 38: Junior Champion Steer	\$25, Trophy & Banner
Class 39: Junior Reserve Champion Steer	Ranner

Class 40: Born 2013 & before	
Class 41: Senior Champion Steer	\$25, Trophy & Banner
Class 42: Senior Reserve Champion Steer	Banner
Class 43: Grand Champion Trophy Steer	\$75, Buckle & Banner
Class 44: Reserve Grand Champion Trophy Steer	\$50, Trophy & Banner

The San Angelo Stock Show will furnish ribbons for  $1^{st} - 3^{rd}$  in each class and banners for Champions. The West Texas Longhorn Association will provide Trophies and cash prizes.

#### **OPEN BREEDING SHEEP SHOW**

Robbie Eckhoff, Superintendent

Entry Fee: \$25.00 per head – Limit 3 per single class per breed

Entry Deadline: January 10, 2019 Postmark (Double fees after Jan. 10 – to check-in)

Barn Opens: 10:00 a.m., Thursday, February 14, 2019 In Place: 3:00 p.m., Friday, February 15, 2019 Check Papers By: 3:00 p.m., Friday, February 15, 2019

Time of Show: 1:00 p.m. Saturday, February 16, 2019; Dorpers

1:00 p.m., Sunday, February 17, 2019; All other breeds

Judge: Jess Yeaman, Uvalde, TX

- 1. All rules apply to the Open Breeding Sheep Show. Please refer to the General Rules.
- 2. Each livestock entry card must contain full name, address, and socials security number of exhibitor, the name of breed, and the number of head entered. It will not be necessary to give the name of the animal, registry number or name of sire and dam until the certificates of registry are presented to the superintendents. Health papers are required; please check the Animal Health Regulations for complete details.
- 3. All sheep will be judged according to the classification on Breed Association score card (breed standards).
- 4. All breeding sheep must be registered in the flock books of their respective breeds, and bear such identification as that breed association requires, before entering the ring. Sheep not carrying ear tags or tattoo at time of showing will be barred from competition.
- 5. The breeder of an animal is the owner of the dam at the time of service. If an individual showing sheep in the registered classes is such a breeder, the lamb must be registered in his/her name by opening day of the show.
- 6. If an individual is showing a sheep in the registered classes that is a gift from some breeder, or if the sheep has been purchased from some breeder, the transfer certificate must be dated on Association records on or before January 15 of the year after this show.
- 7. In <u>all breeds</u> of the Open Breeding Sheep Show, classes are provided for lambs, two-tooth sheep and four to six-tooth sheep. Sheep in the lamb classes must retain all lamb teeth and be at least 6 months of age. Sheep which have dropped one or more milk teeth, or show one or both teeth of the first permanent pair of incisors are eligible only on the two-tooth classes. Sheep showing the first two pair or three pair of permanent incisors are eligible to show in the four to six-tooth classes only. In order to be able to move a ewe lamb or buck lamb up, you must fill the class first. Show management has the right to check teeth on entries at any time including in the show ring, and may move entries accordingly.
- 8. Each exhibitor may show three and place two entries in each single class but may show only one entry in a group class.
- 9. Any animal exhibited in a group class (i.e. a pair of Rams) must be entered in its respective class (i.e. Ram class) in the show, as well.

10. To enter the grounds for livestock unloading and loading, all trailers will enter the fairgrounds on the North side at Gate 6 off of Lake View Heroes Drive. There will be two lots indicated for trailer staging. At the direction of officials, trailers will be allowed to back up to the West Side of the South Livestock Barn for unloading. Once unloaded, vehicles will exit Gate 2, circle back towards Gate 6 to proceed toward the trailer lot.

Pen assignments will be made by pen stewards at time of arrival. One pen will be assigned per two entries.

#### 11. UNLOADING IN FRONT OF THE BARN IS PROHIBITED!

- 12. All Rambouillet sheep must be shorn on or after October 20<sup>th</sup> of the year preceding the show.
- 13. In the Other Wool Breed division, lambs and two-tooth sheep may be shown in full fleece and four to six-tooth sheep must have been shorn with a machine, using Texas combs, over the entire body since March 15<sup>th</sup> of the year preceding the show. Other stock shows may have different requirements, so if you are planning to attend and show at any other shows to know their specific rules for your breed.
- 14. All Southdown, Other Medium Wool and Dorper sheep must be slick shorn within one week prior to show. Foretops and boots may be left on Southdown sheep. Boots may be left on the Dorper sheep and all Dorper sheep must have docked tails.
- 15. There will be two Dorper sheep shows: 1) Dorper (white with black heads) and 2) White Dorper (all white), must indicate which show on entry forms.
- 16. American purebred Dorper ewes must be at least 7/8 blood and will show with full blood South African ewes. American purebred Dorper rams must be at least 15/16 blood and will show with full blood South African rams.
- 17. The Open Dorper Sheep Show will be judged by an approved judge. The American Dorper sheep Breeders Society will furnish a list of approved judges to the show.

# PREMIUMS PREMIUM CHECKS WILL BE MAILED FOLLOWING THE SHOW

# In Class	1st	2nd	3rd	4th	5th	6th	7th	8th	9th	10th	11th	12th	13th	14th	15th
1	\$30														
2 to 4	\$30	\$25													
5 to 8	\$35	\$30	\$25	\$15											
9 to 12	\$40	\$35	\$30	\$25	\$20	\$15									
13 to 15	\$45	\$40	\$35	\$30	\$25	\$20	\$15	\$15							
16 to 18	\$50	\$45	\$40	\$35	\$30	\$25	\$20	\$20	\$15	\$15					
19 to 22	\$55	\$50	\$45	\$40	\$35	\$30	\$25	\$20	\$20	\$15	\$15				
23 to 26	\$60	\$55	\$50	\$45	\$40	\$35	\$30	\$25	\$20	\$20	\$15	\$15			
27 to 29	\$65	\$60	\$55	\$50	\$45	\$40	\$35	\$30	\$25	\$20	\$20	\$15	\$15		
30+	\$70	\$65	\$60	\$55	\$50	\$45	\$40	\$35	\$30	\$25	\$20	\$20	\$20	\$15	\$15

# **CLASSES**

Rambouillet	
Class 1 – Ram Lambs	Ribbons 1- 10
Class 2 – Two-Tooth Rams	Ribbons 1- 10
Class 3 – Four to Six Tooth Rams	Ribbons 1- 5
Class 4 – Champion Ram	Banner
Class 5 – Reserve Champion Ram	Banner
Class 6 – Pair of Rams	Ribbons 1- 5
Class 7 – Ewe Lambs	Ribbons 1- 10
Class 8 – Two-Tooth Ewes	Ribbons 1- 10
Class 9 – Four to Six Tooth Ewes	Ribbons 1- 5
Class 10- Champion Ewe	Banner
Class 11 – Reserve Champion Ewe	Banner
Class 12 – Pair of Ewes	Ribbons 1- 5
Class 13 – Pair of Sheep- both sexes represented	Ribbons 1- 3
Other Wool Breeds (Ex: Delaine, Columbia, Merino, Corriedal	le, etc.)
Class 14 – Ram Lambs	Ribbons 1- 8
Class 15 – Two-Tooth Rams	Ribbons 1- 8
Class 16 – Four to Six Tooth Rams	Ribbons 1- 4
Class 17 – Champion Ram	Banner
Class 18 – Reserve Champion Ram	Banner
Class 19 – Pair of Rams	Ribbons 1- 4
Class 20 – Ewe Lambs	Ribbons 1- 8
Class 21 – Two-Tooth Ewes	Ribbons 1- 8
Class 22 – Four to Six Tooth Ewes	Ribbons 1- 4
Class 23 – Champion Ewe	Banner
Class 24 – Reserve Champion Ewe	Banner
Class 25 – Pair of Ewes	Ribbons 1- 4
Class 26 – Pair of Sheep- both sexes represented	Ribbons 1- 3
Southdown	
Class 27 – Ram Lambs	Ribbons 1- 8
Class 28 – Two-Tooth Rams	Ribbons 1- 8
Class 29 – Four to Six Tooth Rams	Ribbons 1- 4
Class 30 – Champion Ram	Banner
Class 31 – Reserve Champion Ram	
Class 32 – Pair of Rams	
Class 33 – Ewe Lambs	
Class 34 – Two-Tooth Ewes	
Class 35 – Four to Six Tooth Ewes	
Class 36 – Champion Ewe	
Class 37 – Reserve Champion Ewe	
Class 38 – Pair of Ewes	
Class 39 – Pair of Sheen- both sexes represented	

Other Medium Wool Breeds (Ex: Dorset, Hampshire, Suffolk, Etc)	
Class 40 – Ram Lambs	Ribbons 1- 8
Class 41 – Two-Tooth Rams	Ribbons 1- 8
Class 42 – Four to Six Tooth Rams	Ribbons 1- 4
Class 43 – Champion Ram	Banner
Class 44 – Reserve Champion Ram	Banner
Class 45 – Pair of Rams	Ribbons 1- 4
Class 46 – Ewe Lambs	Ribbons 1- 8
Class 41 – Two-Tooth Ewes	Ribbons 1- 8
Class 48 – Four to Six Tooth Ewes	Ribbons 1- 4
Class 49 – Champion Ewe	Banner
Class 50 – Reserve Champion Ewe	Banner
Class 51 – Pair of Ewes	Ribbons 1- 4
Class 52 – Pair of Sheep- both sexes represented	Ribbons 1- 3
Dorper (White with Black Head)	
Class 53 – Ram Lambs	Ribbons 1- 10
Class 54 – Two-Tooth Rams	Ribbons 1- 10
Class 55 – Four to Six Tooth Rams	Ribbons 1- 5
Class 56 – Champion Ram	Banner
Class 57 – Reserve Champion Ram	Banner
Class 58 – Pair of Rams	Ribbons 1- 5
Class 59 – Ewe Lambs	Ribbons 1- 10
Class 60 – Two-Tooth Ewes	Ribbons 1- 10
Class 61 – Four to Six Tooth Ewes	Ribbons 1- 5
Class 62 – Champion Ewe	Banner
Class 63 – Reserve Champion Ewe	Banner
Class 64 – Pair of Ewes	Ribbons 1- 5
Class 65 – Pair of Sheep- both sexes represented	Ribbons 1- 3
White Dorper (All White)	
Class 66 – Ram Lambs	Ribbons 1- 10
Class 67 – Two-Tooth Rams	Ribbons 1- 10
Class 68 – Four to Six Tooth Rams	Ribbons 1- 5
Class 69 – Champion Ram	Banner
Class 70 – Reserve Champion Ram	Banner
Class 71 – Pair of Rams	Ribbons 1- 5
Class 72 – Ewe Lambs	Ribbons 1- 10
Class 73 – Two-Tooth Ewes	Ribbons 1- 10
Class 74 – Four to Six Tooth Ewes	Ribbons 1- 5
Class 75 – Champion Ewe	Banner
Class 76 – Reserve Champion Ewe	Banner
Class 77 – Pair of Ewes	
Class 78 – Pair of Sheen- both sexes represented	

#### **OPEN BOER GOAT SHOW**

Warren Cude, Superintendent

Entry Fee: \$25.00 per head – 3 head per class

Entry Deadline: January 10, 2019 Postmark (Double fees after Jan. 10)

Arrival Time: 8:00 a.m., Monday, February 4, 2019 In Place: 5:00 p.m., Monday, February 4, 2019 Check-In by: 6:00 p.m., Monday, February 4, 2019

Time of Show: 8:00 a.m., Tuesday, February 5, 2019 (HEB Community Center)

Judge: TBD

- 1. All rules apply to the Open Boer Goat Show. Please refer to the General Rules.
- 2. Each livestock entry card must contain full name, address, and socials security number of exhibitor, the name of breed, and the number of head entered. It will not be necessary to give the name of the animal, registry number or name of sire and dam until the certificates of registry are presented to the superintendents. Health papers are required; please check the Animal Health Regulations for complete details.
- 3. It is not necessary to identify the animals at time of entry, but the registration certificates are required at check-in. Health papers are required; please check Animal Health Regulations for complete details.
- 4. All goats must be registered in the flock book of the American Boer Goat Associations and bear such identification as that breed association requires at check-in. Goats not carrying such identification at validation shall be disqualified from competition.
- 5. The breeder of a goat is the owner of the dam at the time of service. Such a breeder must have his/her entries in his/her name and produce same registration certificates at check-in.
- 6. All goats must be registered in the exhibitors name with the flock book of the American Boer Goat Association on or before **January 15** of the year of the show. Pending of approval from the ABGA will only be accepted for 0-3 month entries.
- 7. Partnerships will be accepted only if all partners are listed on the registration certificate and all partners are eligible. Partnership entries must remain as partnerships.
- 8. Percentage females, full blood males and full blood female goats will be classed by birth date on certificate of registration. If birth date falls on date of show, goat will be moved to next upper age class.
- 9. Exhibitors are not allowed to enter more than three head per class in any division, but may only receive premiums on two per class.
- 10. The judge making awards must have the clerk record ear number, ear tag or tattoo of all animals awarded prizes.
- 11. Heelers will be allowed in the class.

- 12. The fitting of hair of all animals will be left up to the discretion of the exhibitor: with the exception of artificial color and the use of drugs and/or chemicals that are not approved by the FDA or USDA. If an exhibitor's animal is found to have been dyed, the said animal will be disqualified from the show and the said exhibitor will be barred from future shows. Goats may be clipped after arrival.
- 13. Goats may be washed after arrival. Facilities are available for washing goats in the swine area.
- 14. To enter the grounds for livestock unloading and loading, all trailers will enter the fairgrounds on the North side at Gate 6 off of Lake View Heroes Drive. There will be two lots indicated for trailer staging. At the direction of officials, trailers will be allowed to back up to the West Side of the South Livestock Barn for unloading. Once unloaded, vehicles will exit Gate 2, circle back towards Gate 6 to proceed toward the trailer lot.
  - Pen assignments will be made by pen stewards at time of arrival.
- 15. All goats must be removed from the barn after the show unless retained for exhibit.
- 16. Exhibitors must kid proof their own pens. Materials will not be provided for this.
- 17. Rosettes will be awarded to the first place in each class.

**Premiums**Premium checks will be mailed following the show to the owner of the animal.

# In Class	1st	2nd	3rd	4th	5th	6th	7th	8th	9th	10th	11th	12th	13th	14th	15th
1	\$30														
2 to 4	\$30	\$25													
5 to 8	\$35	\$30	\$25	\$15											
9 to 12	\$40	\$35	\$30	\$25	\$20	\$15									
13 to 15	\$45	\$40	\$35	\$30	\$25	\$20	\$15	\$15							
16 to 18	\$50	\$45	\$40	\$35	\$30	\$25	\$20	\$20	\$15	\$15					
19 to 22	\$55	\$50	\$45	\$40	\$35	\$30	\$25	\$20	\$20	\$15	\$15				
23 to 26	\$60	\$55	\$50	\$45	\$40	\$35	\$30	\$25	\$20	\$20	\$15	\$15			
27 to 29	\$65	\$60	\$55	\$50	\$45	\$40	\$35	\$30	\$25	\$20	\$20	\$15	\$15		
30+	\$70	\$65	\$60	\$55	\$50	\$45	\$40	\$35	\$30	\$25	\$20	\$20	\$20	\$15	\$15

# CLASSES Percentage Does

Class 1 – Doe Kids, U-3 Months	Ribbons 2- 6
Class 2 – Doe Kids, 3-6 Months	Ribbons 2-6
Class 3 – Doe Kids, 6-9 Months	Ribbons 2- 6
Class 4 – Doe Kids, 9-12 Months	Ribbons 2- 6
Class 5 – Does, 12-18 Months	Ribbons 2- 6
Class 6 – Does, 18-24 Months	Ribbons 2- 6
Class 7 – Does, 2 Year Olds, 24-36 Months	Ribbons 2- 6
Class 8 – Aged Does, Over 36 Months	Ribbons 2- 6
Class 9 – Grand Champion Percentage Doe	Banner
Class 10 – Reserve Grand Champion Percentage Doe	Banner

# **Full Blood & American Purebred Does**

Class 11 – Doe Kids, 0-3 Months	Ribbons 2- 6
Class 12 – Doe Kids, 3-6 Months	Ribbons 2-6
Class 13 – Doe Kids, 6-9 Months	Ribbons 2- 6
Class 14 – Doe Kids, 9-12 Months	Ribbons 2- 6
Class 15 – Does, 12-18 Months	Ribbons 2- 6
Class 16 – Does, 18-24 Months	Ribbons 2- 6
Class 17 – Does, 2 Year Olds, 24-36 Months	Ribbons 2- 6
Class 18 – Aged Does, Over 36 Months	Ribbons 2- 6
Class 19 – Champion Doe	Banner
Class 20 – Reserve Champion Doe	Banner
Full Blood & American	Purebred Bucks
Class 21 – Buck Kids, 0-3 Months	Ribbons 2- 6
Class 22 – Buck Kids, 3-6 Months	Ribbons 2-6
Class 23 – Buck Kids, 6-9 Months	Ribbons 2- 6
Class 24 – Buck Kids, 9-12 Months	Ribbons 2- 6
Class 25 – Bucks, 12-18 Months	Ribbons 2- 6
Class 26 – Bucks, 18-24 Months	Ribbons 2- 6
Class 27 – Bucks, 2 Year Olds, 24-36 Months	Ribbons 2- 6
Class 28 – Aged Bucks, Over 36 Months	
Class 29 – Champion Buck	Banner
Class 30 – Reserve Champion Buck	

#### **OPEN LLAMA SHOW**

Susan Leslie, Superintendent

Show will include youth, performance, and halter classes.

ENTRY DEADLINE: January 10, 2019 postmark (Late entry between Jan. & Feb. for additional fee)

PLEASE INCLUDE A PHOTOCOPY OF ALSA MEMEBERSHIP CARD

ARRIVAL TIME: Beginning at 1:00 p.m. on Friday, February 15, 2019 (or by arrangement with show

management for early arrival). Enter through Gate 6 on the north side of the

fairgrounds, off 50<sup>th</sup> Street.

IN PLACE: All llamas must be in place and checked in no later than 7:30 a.m. Saturday, February

16, 2019.

TIME OF SHOW: Saturday, February 16, 2019

7:30 a.m., Exhibitor meeting with judge in Spur Arena 8:00 a.m., Youth Classes and Open Performance Classes

9:00 a.m., Sunday, February 17, 2019- Halter & Showmanship Classes

RELEASE: Immediately following the conclusion of the show Sunday, February 17, 2019- see show

management for release

FEES: Per animal (includes ALSA fee): \$40.00/Llama (late entry: double fees)

Class entry exceeding one fee: \$5.00/class
Get of Sire/Produce of Dam ALSA fee: \$10.00/entry
Per stall requested (including tack stall): \$40.00
Vendor Stall: \$50.00

Non-ALSA members farm fee: \$50.00 Non-ALSA youth in youth classes: \$15.00

JUDGES: Llama Judge: Bill Feick, Seguin, TX

Performance Judge: Bill Feick, Seguin, TX & TBD

# The South Central Llama Association sponsors this ALSA-sanctioned Level Two Llama Show.

- 1. This show is governed by the rules and regulations of the Alpaca and Llama Show Association (ALSA).
- 2. All llamas entering the show grounds must comply with the 20<sup>th</sup> edition ALSA Handbook and by the rules of the San Angelo Stock Show & Rodeo Association. Each exhibitor is responsible for being familiar with all rules as stated in the ALSA Handbook, which has any changes posted on the ALSA Web site.
- **3.** Age of Animals is determined by the day the llama enters the show ring.
- **4.** All Youth ages are determined by January 1, 2019, except for eight year olds, who are eligible to show as of their 8<sup>th</sup> birthday.
- **5.** All <u>llamas 5 months and older entered in approved classes must be registered</u> or have passed screening in the ILR or CLRC, with the <u>exception</u> of animals in Youth Classes, Novice, Masters, or Open Performance classes and Non-breeders class with vet certificate.

- 6. COPIES OF REGISTRATION PAPERS (INCLUDING JUVENILES) MUST BE SENT WITH THE ENTRY FORM show management for verification of name and age. Exhibitors must be registered owners and make entry in the exact names of both owner and animal as shown on the registration certificate or present a "Permission to Show" form signed by the registered owner. FAILURE TO MEET THESE REQUIRMENTS PROHIBITS ENTRY IN THE SHOW.
- **7.** Completed entry forms, copies of registration papers, and proof of ALSA membership along with all fees should be postmarked no later than January 10, 2019.

San Angelo Stock Show & Rodeo Attn: Livestock 200 West 43<sup>rd</sup> Street San Angelo, TX 76903

(Note: Late entries may be made between January 11, 2019 and day of check in, with an additional fee.)

**8.** No smoking in the barn or the arena.

<u>Youth Classes:</u> Llamas shown in Youth Classes may not be shown in Open Performance Classes. Detailed rules are found in the current ALSA Handbook. Per ALSA, <u>all youth must be current 2019 ALSA youth members or must pay the non-ALSA youth fee of \$15.00.</u> Youth ages 8 to 12 years of age will <u>NOT</u> be permitted to show an intact make over 24 months of age.

Sub-Junior (non ALSA): ages 7 years and younger

Junior: ages 8 thru 11 years

Intermediate: ages 12 thru 14 years Senior: ages 15- thru 18 years

All Youth ages are determined by January 1, 2019, except for 8 yr-olds, who are eligible to show as of their  $8^{th}$  birthday.

<u>SASSRA INCENTIVES:</u> The San Angelo Stock Show & Rodeo Association awards two incentives to <u>senior</u> youth exhibitors. These incentives are based solely on the scoring in the performance classes on a weighted point system with high point names Junior Llama Show Champion and runner-up Junior Llama Show Reserve Champion.

The Champion winner will receive \$500 and the Reserve Champion winner will receive \$250. Incentives will be paid in full to the exhibitor and will be mailed with other premiums. Checks will go out approximately Mid-April. These champions will be named during the show on Sunday.

<u>Payout schedule</u> will be as follows: 1<sup>st</sup> place will receive \$20, 2<sup>nd</sup> place will receive \$15, and 3<sup>rd</sup> will receive \$10.

<u>Pack Classes (Open and Youth):</u> Animals must be 5 months of age or older. All exhibitors must provide their own saddle and panniers, or training pack as specified by the current ALSA Handbook.

<u>Adult Showmanship:</u> Adult Showmanship class is open to exhibitors aged 19 and older. (If a youth turns 19 during their final youth show season, they have the option to continue to show in the Senior Showmanship class, but if the youth shows in an Adult Showmanship class they no longer are eligible to complete in youth showmanship class.)

#### **Wool Divisions:**

**Suri Wool:** Suri llamas have a natural balanced, athletic type, which may appear narrower than llamas of other fiber types when viewed from the front or rear. The fleece of a Suri Llama should have a natural luster and hang and drape over the llamas body, usually forming a natural part of the spine. The fibers are grouped into very distinct and well-defined locks with many individual separate locks of fiber formed at the skin and carrying out to the ends of each lock. The fleece should be lustrous, the locks independent and consistent in size, and the degree of wave or spiral content throughout the neck and body. The fiber is also characterized by absence of crimp and minimal loft.

**Light Wool:** Minimal body wool, short neck wool with smooth legs.

**Medium Wool:** Moderate to long body wool, minimal to moderate neck wool, smooth to moderate leg wool.

**Heavy Wool:** Abundant body and neck wool with minimal to abundant leg wool. (i.e., leg wool at least to knee and hock).

Produce of Dam and Get of Sire Classes: These classes are entered under the name of the Dam and Sire. Registration certificates of the Dam or Sire must be sent with the entry. If Dam &/or Sire is not present at the show, an ALSA fee of \$10.00 must be sent with the entry. There may be more than one entry for a Dam or Sire but only the top placing will earn points.

- -Produce of Dam consists of two offspring by the same dam, each shown in appropriate halter classes.
- -Get of Sire consists of three offspring by the same sire by a least two dams, each shown in appropriate class.
- -Offspring must be designated to show management before these classes or held.

<u>Age Divisions for Animals Entries</u>: Age determined by the age of the llama on the day they enter the ring in halter.

Juvenile.....5 through 12 months

Two Year Olds.....24 through 36 months

Yearling.....12 through 24 months Adult.....36 months and older

Show management reserves the right to combine wool divisions if lack of enough entries warrants the decision.

- -Ribbons will be awarded in all classes for places 1-5. Rosettes will be awarded for all Grand and Reserve Champions
- -Additional cash premiums are offered by the San Angelo Stock Show Association.

#### PREMIUM CHECKS WILL BE MAILED FOLLOWING THE SHOW

#### **SCHEDULE FOR SHOW**

**Saturday, February 16** Exhibitors' Meeting with the Judges at 7:30 a.m.

Show begins at 8 a.m.

**Sunday, February 17** Show begins at 9 a.m.

# **Llama Classes**

Youth Performance Classes	Novice/Advanced Performance Classes
1. Sub-Jr Obstacle	18. Novice Obstacle
2. Junior Obstacle	19. Advanced Obstacle
3. Intermediate Obstacle	20. Master Obstacle
4. Senior Obstacle	21. Novice Pack
5. Junior Pack	22. Advanced Pack
6. Intermediate Pack	23. Master Pack
7. Senior Pack	24. Novice PR
8. Sub-Junior PR	25. Advanced PR
9. Junior PR	26. Master PR
10. Intermediate PR	27. Grand Novice Performance
11. Senior PR	28. Res. Grand Novice Performance
12. Grand Jr. Performance	29. Grand Advance Performance
13. Res. Grand Jr. Performance	30. Res. Grand Advance Performance
14. Grand Int. Performance	31. Grand Master Performance
15. Res. Grand Int. Performance	32. Res. Grand Master Performance
16. Grand Sr. Performance	
17. Res. Grand Sr. Performance	

	<u>Sh</u>	owmanship Classes		
33. Sub-Junior	34. Junior	35. Intermediate	36. Senior	37. Adult

Halter Classes: MALE							
Suri Wool	Light Wool	Medium Wool	Heavy Wool				
38. Juvenile	44. Juvenile	50. Juvenile	56. Juvenile				
39. Yearling	45. Yearling	51. Yearling	57. Yearling				
40. Two Yr. Old	46. Two Yr. Old	52. Two Yr. Old	58. Two Yr. Old				
41. Adult	47. Adult	53. Adult	59. Adult				
42. Grand	48. Grand	54. Grand	60. Grand				
43. Res. Grand	49. Res. Grand	55. Res. Grand	61. Res. Grand				

	Halter	Classes: NON-BRE	EDER	
62. Yearling	63. Two Yr. Old	64. Adult	65. Grand	66. Res. Grand

Halter Classes: FEMALE						
Suri Wool	Light Wool	Medium Wool	Heavy Wool			
67. Juvenile	73. Juvenile	79. Juvenile	85. Juvenile			
68. Yearling	74. Yearling	80. Yearling	86. Yearling			
69. Two Yr. Old	75. Two Yr. Old	81. Two Yr. Old	87. Two Yr. Old			
70. Adult	76. Adult	82. Adult	88. Adult			
71. Grand	77. Grand	83. Grand	89. Grand			
72. Res. Grand	78. Res. Grand	84. Res. Grand	90. Res. Grand			

Group Classes	Best of Show
91. Produce of Dam	93. Female
92. Get of Sire	94. male